
 

MEETING 
 

CONTRACT MONITORING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

MONDAY 13TH JANUARY, 2014 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, NW4 4BG 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF CONTRACT MONITORING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(Quorum 3) 
 
Chairman: Councillor John Marshall MA (Hons), 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Rowan Quigley Turner 
 
Councillors 
 
Geof Cooke 
Andrew Harper 
Ross Houston 
Sury Khatri 
 

Alison Moore 
Barry Rawlings 
Brian Salinger 
Daniel Seal 
 

 

 
Co-opted Members 
 
Kanu Dave, Barnet Homes Performance 
Advisory Group 
 

Maxwell Doku, Barnet Homes Performance 
Advisory Group 
 

 
Substitute Councillors 
 
Anthony Finn 
Anne Hutton 
 

Brian Schama 
Alan Schneiderman 
 

  
 

 
 

You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Nathan – Head of Governance 

 

Governance Services contact: Ash Tadjrishi 020 8359 2368 ash.tadjrishi@barnet.gov.uk 

 

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 

 
ASSURANCE GROUP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
    

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

a)  To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 9 
October 2013 as a correct record; and, 

b)  To note any update on matters for which follow-up action had 
been requested. 

 

1 - 12 

2.   ABSENCE OF MEMBERS  
 

 

3.   DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS  
 

a)      Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

b)      Whipping Arrangements (in accordance with Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17) 

 

 

4.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (IF ANY)  
 

 

5.   MEMBERS' ITEMS (SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULE 9)(IF ANY)  
 

 

6.   QUARTER TWO PERFORMANCE 2013/14  
 

13 - 86 

7.   HB PUBLIC LAW - FULL YEAR PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 

87 - 106 

8.   EXTERNAL CONTRACTS - MANAGEMENT RESOURCES  
 

107 - 114 

9.   ADVANCE NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS  
 

115 - 120 

10.   CONTRACT MONITORING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 

121 - 128 

11.   ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Ash Tadjrishi 
020 8359 2368 ash.tadjrishi@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who have a text 
phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee Rooms 
also have induction loops. 

 



 
    

 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by Committee 
staff or by uniformed custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Decisions of the Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
9 October 2013 

 
Members Present:- 

 
Councillor John Marshall (Chairman) 

Councillor Rowan Quigley Turner (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Councillor Geof Cooke 
Councillor Andrew Harper 
Councillor Ross Houston 
Councillor Sury Khatri 
Councillor Barry Rawlings 
 

Councillor Brian Salinger  
Kanu Dave (Housing Co-opted Member)  
Maxwell Doku (Housing Co-opted 
Member)  
Councillor Alan Schneiderman  
(In place of Alison Moore) 
 

 
Apologies for Absence 

 
Councillor Alison Moore 
 

Councillor Daniel Seal 
 

 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The minutes of the meeting held on 18 June 2013 be approved as a correct 

record; 

 

2. Actions and responses to resolutions passed by Contract Monitoring Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting of 18 June 2013 be noted as follows: 

a. The request for the Committee’s Terms of Reference to be amended was 

considered and agreed by the Constitution, Ethics and Probity Committee 

on 8 July 2013 as below:  

 

1. To receive and scrutinise reports from the Commissioning Group, 

Delivery Units and Lead Commissioners detailing the performance against 

targets that are included within the Corporate Plan and otherwise relating to 

the services provided by the Customer & Support Group, Development & 

Regulatory Services, The Barnet Group Ltd, HB Public Law (external 

delivery units) NSL and other major contracts, and to be able to challenge 

external providers. 

 

2. To receive and scrutinise reports from the Commissioning Group, 

Delivery Units and Lead Commissioners detailing the financial performance 

of the external delivery units against savings targets detailed in the Budget 

and Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 

AGENDA ITEM 1

1



 

2 

3. To receive and scrutinise change requests and contract variations 

between the Council and external service providers to include (but not be 

limited to) the introduction of new key performance indicators, delivery of 

new commissions via the external delivery units, changes required due to 

new legislation and commercial development opportunities. 

 

4. To engage with partner organisations, other relevant public sector bodies, 

private sector organisations, trade unions, local residents or any other 

appropriate witnesses when fulfilling the overview and scrutiny role in 

relation to the monitoring of contracts for services provided by external 

service providers. 

 

b. The response received from the Cabinet Member for Housing on the 

challenge and impact of the lack affordable housing in the borough 

(forwarded to OSC Members on 7 August 2013) was: 

 

“All London Boroughs are subject to market forces, Barnet being no 

exception. If there are people willing to buy and sell property at a certain 

price, then that is the fair price for that property. There may be instances 

where individuals wish to live in Barnet, but realise they cannot afford to do 

so. This is unfortunate, but the high price reflects the desirability of Barnet. 

  

The Council always explores how much affordable housing can be 

accommodated on a new development, and will continue to do so, and looks 

forward to cross party support for regeneration schemes which will help to 

deliver affordable housing units.” 

 

c. Officers were requested on 22 July to provide details of enforcement areas 

requiring signs and lines improvements and a schedule for completing 

these works. A full response had not been provided. 

 

d. The Cabinet Member for Environment, Housing & Environment Lead 

Commissioner and Street Scene Director were asked on 22 July to 

undertake a root and branch review of parking service operations with a 

view to rationalising the operation to improve the customer journey. A full 

response had not been provided. 

 

3. The Chairman to write to the Director for Place to request that a formal 

response to items c. and d. above be provided to all Committee Members. 

 
2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS  

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Daniel Seal and Councillor 
Alison Moore (who was substituted for by Alan Schneiderman). 
 
 

2



 

3 

3. DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS  
 

Member Subject Interest declared 

Councillor John 
Marshall 
 

Agenda Item 7 
(Quarter 1 2013/14 
Performance – The 
Barnet Group) 
 

Non-pecuniary interest 
as a Council appointed 
representative on the 
Board of The Barnet 
Group Ltd 
 

Councillor Ross 
Houston 

Agenda Item 7 
(Quarter 1 2013/14 
Performance – The 
Barnet Group) 

Non-pecuniary interest 
as a Council appointed 
representative on the 
Board of The Barnet 
Group Ltd 
 

 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 
Details of the questions asked and the published answers were provided with the agenda 
papers for the meeting.  Verbal responses were given to supplementary questions at the 
meeting. 
 
 

5. MEMBERS' ITEMS  
 
None. 
 
 

6. KIER CONTRACT - PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 
The Head of Corporate Programmes, James Wills-Fleming, presented a report which set 
out the performance of the Strategic Partnership Agreement with Kier London for the 
delivery of construction schemes under the Primary School Capital Investment 
Programme (PSCIP) as at June 2013. Members were advised that the final two schemes 
to be delivered by Kier under the Strategic Partnership were on-site, under construction 
and due to complete in 2014. The Committee heard that, since Kier had been appointed 
in 2008, the overall performance of the Partnership had not dropped below good. 
Furthermore, no single Key Performance Indicator (KPI) had scored below satisfactory. It 
was noted that the total spend on the contract in which would deliver a total of 12 
schemes was projected to be £83,981,452.  
 
The Head of Corporate Programmes advised the Committee that the Strategic 
Partnership Agreement had been a successful venture that has delivered all projects on 
time and in budget. 
 
A Member noted that the total cost of all schemes was projected to come within budget, 
but questioned whether changes to individual schemes budgets, in particular the reduced 
cost per square metre, would effectively reduce the quality of school developments 
completing later in the contract lifecycle. Responding to this, the Head of Corporate 
Programmes confirmed that each scheme had its own contract which ensured that 
quality of later schemes would be comparable with those completed earlier. 
 

3



 

4 

Committee Members were advised that after the Strategic Partnership Agreement 
expires the development of new and existing schools would continue to be a priority for 
Barnet. 
 
The Chairman highlighted that the Kier contract had delivered high quality schools in the 
borough and the Committee noted that positive management of this contract had 
resulted in a benchmark for Council in being able to deliver major projects and attract 
additional funding. 
 
RESOLVED that the Kier Contract Performance Report be noted. 
 
 

7. QUARTER 1 2013/14 PERFORMANCE  
 
The Head of Commercial, Kari Manovitch, presented the Quarter 1, 2013-14, 
Performance Report for four of Council’s major commercial partnerships. The Committee 
were advised that two of the contracts had only recently transitioned from being in-house 
(the New Support and Customer Services Organisation (NSCSO) (now the Customer 
Support Group (CSG)) on 1 September 2013, and Development and Regulatory 
Services (DRS) contact (now RE) on 1 October 2013, and as such performance reported 
for Quarter 1 was based on in-house data. 
 
HB Public Law 
 
The Committee considered the performance report for HB Public Law. It was noted that a 
20% reduction in the use of external counsel was being reported (9.3, p.21) and the 
Head of Commercial confirmed that, due to being a larger practice with broader 
expertise, HB Public Law were able to provide advice to service areas which had 
historically been commissioned externally.   
 
Noting that the risk register had indicated that a Management Agreement should have 
been finalised by 31 July 2013 (p.40), a Member asked if this had been completed and 
whether quality and value for money measures would be provided as part of Quarter 2 
reporting (p.34). The Head of Commercial confirmed that this was the case and stated 
that there had been on-going work with HB Public Law to understand how best to 
measure quality and value for money which would result in additional measures being 
reported in quarter 2. Customer satisfaction had been measured since the beginning of 
the contract. 
 
The report forecast an overspend of £254,000 for the year as a result of additional hours 
in Quarter 1 and shortfall on income recovery (p.31). A Member noted that the 
performance report for DRS referred to under-resourcing at HB Public Law as a cause of 
scheme slippage in the growth and regeneration programme (p.81).  In response to 
these issues, the Head of Commercial assured Members that HBPL had engaged 
extensively with the service to remedy this and it was no longer a major issue.  
Responding to further questions on the risk posed to the future sustainability of HB 
Public Law (p.39), the Head of Commercial advised that the Customer Support Group 
(CSG) had continued to use the HB Public Law service under Capita, discussions were 
being held with DRS (now RE) for a similar arrangement,  Further, whilst the contract 
with Barnet Homes was being debated in order to remove the Council from the position 
of ‘middleman’, the expectation was for Barnet Homes to continue to procure legal 
services from HB Public Law. 
 

4



 

5 

The Barnet Group 
 
The Director of Operations, Derek Rust, and Head of Housing Options, Kate Laffan, for 
Barnet Homes introduced the performance report for The Barnet Group.  
 
In response to questions on the effectiveness of actions being taken to address the fact 
that Barnet was one of the worst performing boroughs in London in terms of emergency 
accommodation, the Director of Operations for Barnet Homes described how they were 
trying restrict the problem from worsening through the recent adoption of a Placements 
Policy and focusing on preventative measures to homelessness. Members heard that 
North London was a hotspot for temporary accommodation with 1 in 5 placements in 
England occurring in the area. Consequently this was a significant challenge. It was 
noted that the report provided the total number of households placed in emergency 
accommodation and that Barnet was ranked 27 out of 33 boroughs (p.44). Members 
commented that, due to Barnet having the largest population of the London boroughs, 
performance comparison would be more effective if the data reported this figure as a 
percentage against total households in the borough.  
 
Regarding the challenge of reducing the average length of time spent by households in 
short-term nightly accommodation (p.48); a Member queried the review of the definition 
of short-term nightly purchased accommodation. The Head of Housing Options for 
Barnet Homes confirmed that, whilst this had been explored, there would be no change 
to the definition.  
 
In response to questions as to whether collaborative or regional approaches were being 
considered, Members heard that Barnet Homes were working closely with Haringey, 
Islington and other boroughs to pool ideas and share resources. However, the purchase 
of emergency accommodation was a highly competitive market as boroughs sought to 
purchase wherever there was availability and at the best price and this did not always 
result in collaborative approaches.  
 
The Head of Housing Options described how out of borough placements were being 
revised following the recently adopted Placements Policy which came in to force in 
October 2013. To date, aside from emergency accommodation, there had been 50 
placements outside of the borough, all of which had been voluntary. Consideration had 
been given towards a joint procurement approach to out-of-borough placements. In 
response to a question on the assessment method used to decide out-of-borough 
placements, the Head of Housing Options stated that the Placements Policy will ensure a 
full test of the suitability of such accommodation taking into account the individual 
circumstances of the applicant. 
  
A Member asked how Barnet Homes were proposing to address the increased level of 
arrears as percentage of debit (p.49).  The Director of Operations stated that this had 
become a more significant challenge in recent months due to the under-occupation 
charge and the trend was set to continue. Under occupation arrears had increased by 
£50,000 in Quarter 1. The Committee heard that the actions being taken to improve 
performance in this area included additional staff being appointed to concentrate on this 
issue, increased benefits advice, job support and assistance with moving to smaller 
accommodation.  
 
Following discussion on a number of KPIs where for which performance could be largely 
affected by national policies, it was asked whether the targets set were currently fit for 
purpose or in need of review. The Director of Operations for Barnet Homes agreed that it 

5



 

6 

illustrated the need for a wider context to be given when considering performance in 
affected areas. However, it was felt that these measures were important in maintaining 
the motivation and focus on improvement. The Head of Commercial agreed that 
environmental context had to be considered when assessing performance across all the 
contracts as the factors affecting performance often changed throughout the year. 
 
A Co-opted Member asked why, given that rent collection was a challenge, the link to the 
facility to pay online did not work. The Director of Operations said that although other 
payment methods, such as payment by card, had been recently introduced, the problem 
with the facility for online payments would be investigated. 
 
In reference to a question on the benchmarking data provided in the report (p.60) the 
Head of Housing Options confirmed that as more data became available from other 
neighbouring authorities there would be improved benchmarking measures from quarter 
2 onwards. 
 
New Support and Customer Services Organisation (NSCSO) / Customer Support 
Group (CSG) 
 
The Head of Commercial, Kari Manovitch, Deputy Chief Operating Officer, John Hooton, 
and CSG Partnership Manager, Marcus Hobbs, introduced the performance report for 
NSCSO. The Committee noted that, following the transition to Capita on 1 September 
2013, future performance reports would be published under the new name of CSG 
(Customer Support Group) and that the report for Quarter 1 summarised performance 
data whilst the service was still being provided in-house. 
 
 
Responding to Members’ questions on contact centre performance (p.66), the CSG 
Partnership Manager confirmed that, since Revenues & Benefits calls were now routed 
to Capita staff in the first instance, and then routed to Barnet staff when all Capita staff 
are engaged. This process ensures that Capita staff are always utilised to maximum 
capacity. Performance in Quarter 2 was expected to report as being close to target and 
on target from Quarter 3 onwards.  
 
Members requested information on the level of training given to contact centre staff on 
understanding local government. The CSG Partnership Manager agreed to provide 
specific detail on this to Members subsequent to the meeting.  
 
The CSG Partnership manager explained that all Contact Centre staff are provided with 
induction training that provides an overview of Barnet Council and its services and 
additional service specific training dependent upon the service area to which staff are 
assigned. The Contact Centre has been experiencing significant turnover of staff and the 
high number of temporary staff has led to some training issues which are now being 
addressed. 
 
A Member asked why the target for apprenticeship placement had been set so low (at 
one) and the reason for failing to meet this target. The CSG Partnership Manager 
explained that this was a new measure which, once filled, would become an increasing 
target over time.  
 
Members stressed the importance of benchmarking performance, to which the CSG 
Partnership Manager described how this was an on-going process which was expected 
to be finalised and reported from Quarter 3. The Head of Commercial added that there 

6



 

7 

were already several new indicators being reported and this also accounted for the gaps 
in trend information which Members had identified. 
 
Referring to a question from a Member on the responsibility to ensure that all Council 
owned buildings had the required compliance certification (p.63), the CSG Partnership 
Manager stated that Capita had a duty to maintain 100% compliance throughout the 
contract.  However, as Council had a duty to identify any buildings that were not 
compliant and bring them up to standard before handover, this could require additional 
investment. 
 
Development and Regulatory Services (DRS) / Regional Enterprise (RE) 
 
The Head of Commercial, Lead Commissioner for Housing & Environment, Declan 
Hoare, DRS Partnership Manager, Mark Holmes, Enterprise and Regeneration Lead 
Commissioner, Cath Shaw, and Head of Regeneration, Tony Westbrook,  introduced the 
performance report for DRS. The Committee noted that, following the transition to the 
joint venture company Re Ltd. in October 2013, future performance reports would be 
published under this name and that the report for Quarter 1 summarised performance 
data whilst the service was still being provided in-house. 
 
In response to a question from a Member on the air quality grant of £260,000 that had 
been secured from the Greater London Authority, the Lead Commissioner for Housing & 
Environment would ask colleagues from Environmental Health to provide more 
information to Members on the scheme subsequent to the meeting.  
 
The Enterprise and Regeneration Lead Commissioner, following a Member’s question, 
confirmed that all of the secure tenants that had been required to relocate as part of the 
Stonegrove/Spur Road regeneration project had now been moved and demolition of the 
site was underway. 
 
Questions on the reasons for unchallenging targets for bringing empty properties back in 
to use (p.82) and increasing the number of homes with burglary prevention measures 
(p.94) would be forwarded to the relevant officers and responses would be provided 
subsequent to the meeting. 
 
Committee Members discussed the risks to maintenance of footpaths and roads and 
sought clarification on what would happen after week 14, which had been identified as 
the estimated time at which the budget for such maintenance would be expended (p.92). 
The DRS Partnership Manager stated that Capita would seek to make value-for-money 
savings in this area but that Council may need to consider wider budget issues for 
Highways. 
 
Following general questions on KPIs and penalties, the Head of Commercial 
acknowledged that due to the diversity of council responsibilities there would be areas 
where KPIs would appear to be in competition, however strategic priorities need to be 
clear. The example given by a member was a reduction in death rates being a risk to 
Cemetery and Crematorium incomes. It was acknowledged that a number of KPIs were 
still awaiting baselines and therefore targets being established, however the Head of 
Commercial stated that this would not reduce the overall amount of money at risk against 
their achievement, because the total would be distributed across other KPIs until the 
baselines and targets were set. 
 
 

7



 

8 

RESOLVED that: 
 

1. The Quarter 1, 2013-14 Performance Report be noted; 
 

2. The CSG Partnership Manager to provide specific detail on training being 
given to contact centre staff; 

 
3. The Lead Commissioner for Housing & Environment to provide information 

to Members on the Air Quality Fund Scheme; 
 

4. Officers be asked to provide rationale for the reduced target for bringing 
empty properties back in to use; 

 
5. Officers be asked to provide rationale for the reduced target for increasing 

the number of homes with burglary prevention measures; 
 

6. It be recommended to The Barnet Group that the facility to pay online be 
fixed as soon as possible on the Barnet Homes website; 

 
7. Given the delay between the availability of quarterly data and the scheduling 

of the committee meetings, Officers be asked to include up to date narrative 
on trends and actions when compiling performance reports for the 
Committee; and 

 
8. Members be provided with links to performance data as soon as they are 

published in order that key areas of interest may be identified in advance of 
Committee meetings. 

 
 

8. CAPITA / CAPITA PROPERTY & INFRASTRUCTURE PRESENTATION  
 
The Barnet Partnership Director, Mark Wyllie (Capita), Transformation Director, Robert 
MacDougall (Capita), Services Director, Mike Hainge (RE Ltd.) and Operations Director, 
Alun Parfitt (RE Ltd.), gave a presentation to Committee on the strategic objectives and 
improvement road maps for the CSG and DRS contracts. 
 
The Head of Commercial introduced the item by putting in to context the services being 
outsourced. Members heard that the CSG and DRS contracts represented around 11% 
and 4% respectively of the total services provided by the London Borough of Barnet. 
 
Members noted that Capita and RE Ltd. meetings would not ordinarily be public nor 
provide publically available minutes, although they would be subject to Freedom of 
Information (FOI) obligations. The Head of Commercial assured Committee that the 
Council was committed to transparency and provide full monitoring information through 
this committee, in addition to the defined audit procedures detailed in the publically 
available contract. 
 
Seeking clarification on the meaning of the ‘new relationship with residents’ highlighted in 
the presentation, Members asked how residents would be engaged with and have their 
complaints heard. The Capita directors described how residents were to be consulted as 
part of a co-design process that would support the development of personalised web-
portals and accounts which would be accessed online, over the phone and face-to-face. 

8



 

9 

Complaints and escalations would be recorded and measured across the contract as 
part of the performance framework.  
 
On matters relating to the joint venture company, Re Ltd. Members asked for detail on 
the growth targets that had been set. It was noted that the income to Council was a 
guaranteed minimum and not at risk if projected growth was not realised. The Directors 
present stressed, however, that the aim was to exceed growth targets. It was noted that 
KPIs relating to customer satisfaction were set to be intentionally challenging to ensure 
that the relationship was a success and in order to attract further business. 
 
Committee heard that the contract with Barnet prevented other joint venture operations 
being set up with Capita across the south of England which would ensure that services 
being provided by RE to councils and businesses outside of the borough would be of 
direct benefit to Barnet.  
 
In response to questions on the Members about the arrangements for carrying out non-
delegable statutory duties, Re Ltd. Directors detailed how all relevant staff had signed 
joint-employment contracts which retained accountability to Council when fulfilling such 
responsibilities. Extensive legal advice had been sought to ensure that this approach 
complied with statute. 
 
In response to questions relating to continuity of service, it was noted that Capita 
recognised the importance of a system which was designed to be able to adapt to 
changes to legislation and priorities. New IT hardware and software would be provided 
and maintained throughout the life of the contract. The Head of Commercial confirmed 
that there was an obligation for Capita to transfer assets back to Council at the end of the 
contract. 
 
A member asked whether the council could audit Capita. Mark Wyllie explained that the 
Council did not have the right to audit Capita Group, whilst the Head of Commercial 
confirmed that the contract with Capita gave the council the right to audit the RE 
services. 
 
Member asked for detailed information on around £30m in payments made to Capita 
prior to the commencement of the CSG & RE contracts on 1 September 2013 and 1 
October 2013 respectively.  The Member questioned the relationship of these payments 
to the investment amounts quoted in the presentation of £16m under the CSG contract 
and £15.9m under the RE contract. The Head of Commercial agreed to provide a 
response to the Member after the meeting. Committee asked that the response be made 
publically available. 
 
At the conclusion of the presentation Committee Members recorded a vote of thanks to 
the Directors of Capita and Re Ltd. and requested that the presentation be made 
publically available. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the presentation be noted and made publically available on the Council 
website; and, 
 

2. The Head of Commercial to provide Members with detail on monies paid to 
Capita for services provided prior to the CSG contract going live. 

 

9



 

10 

 
 

9. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Committee noted that the report detailing the staffing structure and financial resources 
dedicated to managing key external contracts had been deferred due to management 
arrangements being finalised. Overview and Scrutiny Officer, Ash Tadjrishi, advised that 
it would be possible for Committee to receive the report at its meeting of 13 January 
2014. 
 
RESOLVED that the External Contracts – Management Resources report be 
included on the Forward Work Programme to be considered at the 13 January 
2014 meeting. 
 
 

10. ANY OTHER ITEMS THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT  
 
None. 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 9.48 pm 
 

10



Agenda Item 1(b) - Update on matters for which follow-up action had been requested. 

Responses to resolutions which were passed by Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee at its meeting of 9 October 2013 as follows: 

1. The Chairman to write to the Director for Place to request that a formal 

response to the following be provided to all Committee Members: 

• Details of enforcement areas requiring signs and lines improvements and a 

schedule for completing these works. 

• The Cabinet Member for Environment, Housing & Environment Lead 

Commissioner and Street Scene Director to undertake a root and branch 

review of parking service operations with a view to rationalising the operation 

to improve the customer journey. 

A response was sent to Members via email on 20 December 2013 

2. The Lead Commissioner for Housing & Environment to provide information to 

Members on the Air Quality Fund Scheme. 

Information on the scheme was sent to Members via email on 19 December 2013 

3. Officers to provide rationale for the reduced target for bringing empty 

properties back in to use. 

 

Response from Officers as follows: 

 

Experience has shown that different empty properties can involve significantly 

varying levels of resource and time to resolve. Some simply require an initial contact 

with the owner to prompt action to bring the property back into use. Other properties 

however can require lengthy and resource intensive activity, including; negotiation, 

investigation (often involving tracing overseas owners), giving of empty property 

grants and in some cases enforcement action such as compulsory purchase. 

Although the target for last year was 100 properties back into use, we achieved over 

200 as an effort was made to deal with the easier cases, or the ‘low hanging fruit’. 

For this year we recognised that there would be less of the easier cases and more of 

the resource intensive cases to deal with and so we kept the target at 100 to reflect 

this. In essence, last year’s performance was a one-off that is unlikely to be repeated. 

 

4. Officers to include up to date narrative on trends and actions when compiling 

performance reports for the Committee. 

 

Members will be provided an update on trends and actions being taken since the 

Quarter Two report at the January meeting. 

 

5. That the Capita presentation be made publically available on the Council 

website. 

 

The presentation was published online on 10 October 2013. 

 

6. The Head of Commercial to provide Members with detail on monies paid to 

Capita for services provided prior to the CSG contract going live.  

 

The response from the Head of Commercial was sent to Members on 23 October 

2013 and published online. 

11



12

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

 
 

 
 

Meeting Contract Monitoring Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 13 January 2014 

Subject Quarter 2 Performance of the 
Council’s Major Commercial 
Partnerships 

Report of Commercial & Customer Services 
Director 

Summary of Report This report covers the performance of two live 
contracts (HB Public Law and Barnet Group, 
comprised of Barnet Homes and Your Choice 
Barnet), the in-house delivery unit DRS and a mixture 
of in house (NSCSO) and outsource delivery (CSG) 
for support services at quarter 2, 2013-14 

 

 
Officer Contributors Claire Symonds, Commercial & Customer Services 

Director 

 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected All 

Key Decision No 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

N/A 

Function of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Enclosures APPENDIX 1 – Overview of major contract 
performance 
APPENDIX 2 – HB Public Law Q2 Performance 
APPENDIX 3 – Barnet Homes Q2 Performance 
APPENDIX 4 – DRS Q2 Performance 
APPENDIX 5 – CSG Q2 Performance 
APPENDIX 6 – Your Choice Barnet Q2 Performance 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Claire Symonds, Commercial & Customer Services 
Director, Claire.symonds@barnet.gov.uk 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 6

13



 2

1. RECOMMENDATION  
 

1.1 That the Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee consider 
the information in this report and associated appendices and make 
comments and recommendations as appropriate. 

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 

2.1 Council, 16 April 2013, (item 4.3) – approved recommendations from the 
Constitution Ethics and Probity Committee, which included the establishment 
of a Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee with responsibility 
for scrutinising the performance of the main externalised contracts 

 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 

3.1 The three priority outcomes set out in the 2013/16 Corporate Plan are: 

• Promote responsible growth, development and success across the 
borough 

• Support families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, 
learning and wellbeing 

• Improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London 
Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study 

 
3.2 All the commercial partnerships are intended to contribute to one or more of  
 these priorities. 
 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 

4.1 Risks with a rating of 12 or above are reported as part of the Council’s quarterly 
performance monitoring process, and the risks that were live at quarter 1 can be 
found in the reports that are contained in the appendices. The reports for HB 
Public Law (HBPL) and Barnet Homes include all risks, not just those rated 12 
or above.  

 
4.2 Many of the risks reported at Q2 will continue to be live, whilst some will have 

been closed or replaced. 
 
4.3 The Council maintains its own separate risk logs for all major contracts, which 

are informed by the risks reported by each partner. The Council’s risk log for 
each contract will be published in the council’s quarterly performance reports 
and reported internally and externally as part of the routine performance cycle. 
The same applies to the Barnet Group and HBPL contracts. 

 
4.4 Each partner reports their risks at least monthly to the Council for review by the 

commercial team and respective contract boards. 

14



 3

5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1  Each contract places obligations on our partners to support the Council in 

 carrying out its public sector equality duty (as set out in the Equality Act 2010).   
 

5.2 This means having due regard to the need to: 
  

 a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under the Act;  

  

 b) advance equality of opportunity between those who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not;  

  

 c) foster good relations between those who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not.  

  

 The ‘protected characteristics’ referred to are: age; disability; gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex and 
sexual orientation. The duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, but to 
a limited extent. 

 
5.3  Effective contract management is vital to ensuring that the Council’s duties 

 under the Equality Act 2010 are supported by its partners. 
 
5.3 Equality performance will be monitored by collecting data on service usage, 

customer feedback and specific performance indictors. Where service 
changes affecting residents or service users are proposed, equality impact 
assessments will be undertaken, and where needed, these will include 
consultation with residents or service users. 

 

6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROCUREMENT, 
PERFORMANCE & VALUE FOR MONEY, STAFFING, IT, PROPERTY, 
SUSTAINABILITY) 

6.1 The council is forecasting an overspend on HB Public Law of £0.294m due to 
the cost of additional hours purchased in quarter 2. Whilst the use of HBPL is 
higher than that originally budgeted and forecast for 2013-4, it is consistent 
with previous years’ usage, and the council is benefitting from increased use 
of in-house HBPL lawyers rather than external lawyers. Between 2011-12 and 
2012-13 there was a 20% reduction in the use of external counsel, saving the 
Council £110,000. 

 
6.2 The council is forecasting an overspend for Barnet Homes of £0.729m. This is 

as a result of cost pressures on temporary accommodation. The Council is 
working closely with the Barnet Group on a strategy to increase the supply of 
social housing and thereby reduce the use of temporary accommodation. 

 
6.3 DRS (now RE) and CSG are both forecast to stay within their respective 

budgets. As previously reported the additional cost arising from the delay 
caused by the application for Judicial Review has been met from reserves. 

15



 4

 
6.4 The overall savings forecast to be delivered by the CSG and RE contracts are 

£125.4m and £39m respectively. In 2013/14, the savings profiled in the MTFS 
are £1.908m and £1.755 respectively, although savings for both contracts are 
expected to exceed this. For CSG, Capita has 8% of fee at risk against 31 
KPIs and 3 super KPIs. For RE there is 10% of fee at risk against 53 KPIs and 
6 super KPIs. Service credits will not be applied until quarter 3, at which point 
Capita will have been running CSG for 4 months and RE for 3 months. 

 
6.5 Performance analysis can be found in section 9, Background information, and 

full performance data is contained in the Q2 performance reports in the 
appendices. 

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 The management of contracts is governed by the terms and conditions of each 

contract, and common law. 
 
7.2 Where legal expertise is required by the Commercial Team, this will be 

sourced in the first instance from the specialist contract team within HB Public 
Law.  An exception to this would be in the event that the Council required 
independent legal advice with respect to its Inter-Authority Agreement with 
Harrow for HB Public Law itself, where legal advice would be sourced from an 
appropriately qualified independent legal adviser instead. 

 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 The roles and terms of reference of all overview and scrutiny Committees are 

contained within Part 2, Article 6 of the Constitution; and in the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution). The Contract Monitoring 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for scrutinising reports from 
the Commissioning Group, Delivery Units and Lead Commissioners detailing 
the performance against targets that are included within the Corporate Plan 
and otherwise relating to the services provided by the Customer & Support 
Group, Development & Regulatory Services, The Barnet Group Ltd, HB Public 
Law and NSL (external Delivery Units) NSL and other major contracts, and to 
be able to challenge external providers. 

   
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 Appendix A shows the summary of performance across the four delivery 

units within scope of the Commercial function. Of the indicators reported, the 
balance of met and missed targets was 80% met (43 targets rated as green) 
and 20% missed (11targets rated as red, red-amber, or green-amber).  

 

16



 5

9.2 A summary of performance highlights and challenges is included below for 
each delivery unit. Your Choice Barnet performance is covered separately in 
Appendix 6.  

 
9.3 At the last meeting of the committee, it was acknowledged that there was 

some considerable delay between the availability of quarterly data and the 
scheduling of the committee meetings.  It is intended that more up-to-date 
data be provided to Members before this meeting.  

 
9.4 HB Public Law -83% of targets met 

 
5 of the 6 performance targets were met, successes including: 

• 100% positive responses to client satisfaction forms retuned.  

• On going increase in the volume of work that would have previously 
been outsourced  

• Increased training being provided by HBPL to delivery units 
 

More detail can be found in Appendix 2. 
 

9.5 Barnet Homes – 79% targets met 
 
15 out of 19 performance targets were met, successes including:  

• The first new Council housing in a generation has started on site at 
Alexandra Road  

• Leasehold satisfaction increased by 7.3% on 2010 levels to 47% using a 
STATUS compliant survey. This is a 16% increase since 2008 

• Barnet Homes is in the top quartile in 5 out of 7 Key Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) 

 
Areas of particular challenge identified as requiring further action were:  

• the number of  households placed in emergency accommodation, which 
was 638 instead of the target of 500 

• a continued increase in rent arrears  
 
As reported previously, levels of demand for social housing have led to an 
increased number of households being admitted into emergency 
accommodation. Despite a number of successful initiatives aimed at 
increasing affordable supply, continuing demand has meant that numbers in 
emergency accommodation remain high.  
 
Rental income collection remains a concern, as arrears have continued to 
increase. An arrears recovery action plan is in place to address arrears under 
performance. This includes actions to improve the performance of individual 
officers in the Rental Income Team 
 
More detail can be found in Appendix 3. 
 
 
 

17



 6

9.6 DRS – 90% targets met 
 
This quarter’s performance results will reflect council performance – it is not 
until quarter 3 results that performance will be the responsibility of the new 
joint venture RE, which commenced on 1 October 2013. 
10 out of 11 reported performance targets were met, successes including: 

• Stonegrove Spur Road: Construction for Phase 5 (Acadamy Lane) and 
Phase 6b (Kings Lane Mews) has commenced to deliver 198 new homes. 

• Successful prosecutions were carried out to tackle poor conditions in the 
private housing sector. 

• Successful completion of mobilisation and due diligence with minimal 
disruption to service delivery. 

 
Areas of particular challenge identified as requiring further action were: 

• Pressure on Highways Maintenance budget 
 
The Council began collecting data for 36 additional key performance indicators 
in quarter 2 that are part of the agreed set of 59 KPIs for RE. This leaves a 
further 12 key performance indicators that RE will begin collecting baseline 
data on from 1 October 2013. Whilst baselines are being established, service 
credit points will be redistributed across the live KPIs so that the total fee at 
risk remains the same throughout the year. 
 
More detail can be found in Appendix 4. 
 
 

9.7 NSCSO/CSG – 75% targets met 
 

15 out of 20 performance targets were met, successes including: 

•  8 services and 413 staff (385 FTE) transferred successfully with no major 
operational issues arising. The overall health and performance of the 
service remains good 

• Good progress has been made to ensure PSN compliance following the 
new Zero Tolerance policy. Both Capita and the Council are now focussing 
considerable joint effort and resources to the project - work is on-going and 
of the 75 issues identified originally, only 3 remain. 

•  Estates - succeeded in the short notice relocation of the Somali Bravanese 
Community Centre to Barnet House and dealt with the challenge of 
preparing for and supporting the Council during the Fire Fighters Strike. 

 
 Areas of particular challenge were: 

• Baseline of Civic Estate condition surveys  

• Performance against Key Performance Indicators for benefits speed of 
processing and accuracy was above target but represents a challenge as 
this is achieved through the implementation in December 2012 of a face to 
face operating model using 16 staff that Capita state was not built into their 
offer or price which assumed all benefits processing staff were located 
outside Barnet.. 

 

18



 7

Quarter 2 performance for this delivery unit will comprise two months where 
the delivery unit was managed in house, and one month, September, when it 
was managed by Capita, with the new name of Customer and Support Group 
(CSG). Because of this, the service credits that are applied to KPI results as 
part of the payment system will not be applied to CSG until quarter 3, and at 
this point there will be four month’s of credit available. 
 
More detail can be found in Appendix 5. 

 
9.8 The Q2 performance report for Your Choice Barnet, which is contract 

managed by the Adults and Communities Delivery Unit, can be found at 
appendix 6. 

 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 All quarterly delivery unit performance reports are published on the council’s 

website at www.barnet.gov.uk/performance 
 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) AD 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) PM 

 

19



20

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 –
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

m
a
jo

r 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

 

1
. 

B
U

D
G

E
T

A
R

Y
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

  

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 u
n
it
 

 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
c
tu
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

£
’0
0
0
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
c
tu
a
l 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

£
’0
0
0
 

H
B
 P
u
b
li
c
 L
a
w
 

2
9
4
 

n
/a
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 

G
F
 

7
2
9
 

2
7
3
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 

H
R
A
 

6
9
7
 

(5
0
0
) 

D
R
S
 

0
 

(5
,5
3
7
) 

C
S
G
 

0
 

(2
0
) 

 2
: 

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 I

N
D

IC
A

T
O

R
S

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
  

 *
P

le
a

s
e
 n

o
te

: 
W

h
e
re

 t
h

e
 

d
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 
is

 N
/A

 o
r 

b
la

n
k
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e
n

 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
. 

    

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 u
n
it
 

T
o
ta
l 
n
o
. 

o
f 
K
P
Is
 

 
R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 

P
o
s
it
iv
e
/ 

n
e
u
tr
a
l 

D
o
T
* 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

D
o
T
* 

N
o
. 
o
f 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

G
re
e
n
 

G
re
e
n
 

a
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 

a
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 

H
B
 P
u
b
li
c
 L
a
w
 

6
 

3
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

3
 

1
 

4
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 

2
4
 

1
5
 

3
 

0
 

1
 

1
3
 

5
 

1
9
 

C
S
G
 

3
1
 

1
5
 

1
 

1
 

3
 

2
0
 

 
2
0
 

D
R
S
 

1
2
 

1
0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

7
 

1
 

1
2
 

T
o
ta
l 

7
3
 

3
8
 

4
 

2
 

5
 

4
3
 

7
 

5
5
 

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



 
1

   1
.1

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 U

N
IT

 D
A

S
H

B
O

A
R

D
 

 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
je
c
te
d
 y
e
a
r 
e
n
d
 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 £
0
0
0
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
c
tu
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 £
0
0
0
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
  

2
9

4
 

N
/A

 
2

.5
 

  1
.2

 T
O

P
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
N

D
 A

C
T

IO
N

S
 

  1
.3

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 T

H
E

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 U

N
IT

’S
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 h

a
s
 g

e
n

e
ra

lly
 b

e
e

n
 g

o
o

d
 w

it
h

 n
o

 r
e

a
l 
is

s
u
e

s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
. 
T

h
e
 s

h
a

re
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

d
 t
o

 d
o

 m
o

re
 l
e

g
a

l 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 h
o

u
s
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h
e

 c
o

s
t 
o
f 
e

x
p

e
n

s
iv

e
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
s
o

lic
it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 b
a

rr
is

te
rs

. 
A

n
 e

x
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
th

is
 i
s
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
tr

ib
u

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

 
w

h
e

re
 i
t 

is
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
s
o
m

e
 £

1
1

0
,0

0
0
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
a

v
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 
1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 2

0
0

0
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

in
 

re
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 t

h
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b

y
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
s
o

lic
it
o

rs
. 

T
o
p
 3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 
K
e
y
 C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

1
0
0
%
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 c
lie

n
t 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

fo
rm

s
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 

 
P
re
s
s
u
re
s
 o
n
 l
e
g
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

C
lo
s
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
s
p
e
n
d
, 
re
d
u
c
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 

le
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 w

h
e
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 b
e
in
g
 

d
o
n
e
 t
h
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

o
u
ts
o
u
rc
e
d
. 

 
C
re
a
ti
n
g
 a
 g
o
o
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 w

it
h
 C

a
p
it
a
. 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
s
/r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
f 
C
a
p
it
a
 a
re
 m

e
t.
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
  
b
y
 H

B
P
L
 t
o
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 a
n
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

 
 

 

H
B

 L
e
g

a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
–
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 

 

23



 
2

2
. 
B
U
S
IN
E
S
S
 P
L
A
N
N
IN
G
 

2
.1
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
ta
l 
N
o
. 
o
f 

K
P
Is
 

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
  

P
o
s
it
iv
e
/n
e
u
tr
a
l 
D
o
T
 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 D
o
T
 

N
o
. 
o
f 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r 

G
re
e
n
 

G
re
e
n
 A
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 A
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 

6
 

3
 

(7
5
%
) 

0
 

(0
%
) 

1
 

(2
5
%
) 

0
 

(0
%
) 

3
 

1
 

4
 

S
e

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 a
t 

2
.2

 b
e

lo
w

 

 2
.2
 H
o
w
 i
s
 t
h
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
it
s
 K
e
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 (
K
P
Is
):
 E

s
c
a

la
te

d
 K

P
Is

 o
n

ly
 

K
P
I 
N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 
P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 
T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 
O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
  

H
B
L
0
0
1
 

T
o
 e
n
su

re
 t
im

e
ly
 r
e
sp

o
n
se
 t
o
 

a
ll 
in
st
ru
ct
io
n
s/
m
a
tt
e
rs
 

a
) 
N
o
. 
o
f 
h
o
u
rs
 t
o
 

a
ck
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 e
m
a
ils
 (
2
4
 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

b
) 
N
o
. 
o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s 
to
 

re
p
ly
 t
o
 e
m
a
ils
 (
ta
rg
e
t 
5
) 

c)
 N
o
. 
o
f 
d
a
y
s 
to
 r
e
p
ly
 t
o
 f
a
x
 

o
r 
le
tt
e
r 
(t
a
rg
e
t 
1
0
) 

d
) 
N
o
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s 
to
 o
p
e
n
 

a
 f
ile
 (
ta
rg
e
t 
5
) 

e
) 
N
o
. 
o
f 
d
a
y
s 
to
 r
e
sp

o
n
d
 t
o
 

n
o
n
-u
rg
e
n
t 
re
q
u
e
st
s 
(t
a
rg
e
t 

1
0
) 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
3
%
 

9
5
%
 

1
0
9
/1

2
0
 

9
1
%
 

4
.4
%
 

�
 

2
.3
%

 
L
o
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

      

24



 
3

T
h
e
 K
P
I 
is
 m
a
d
e
 u
p
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
b
-t
a
rg
e
ts
 b
e
lo
w
: 

   A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 w
a
s
 d
o
w
n
 a
t 
9
1
%
 t
h
is
 w
a
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 7
5
%
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 f
o
r 
th
e
 K
P
I 
re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 f
ile
 o
p
e
n
in
g
. 
D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 

fi
le
s
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
o
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 m
a
n
n
e
r 
b
u
t 
th
is
 i
s
 l
a
rg
e
ly
 a
n
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 m
a
tt
e
r 
a
n
d
 h
a
s
 n
o
 r
e
a
l 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
It
 i
s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 a
s
 i
t 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 L
E
X
C
E
L
 a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
L
E
X
C
E
L
 i
s
 t
h
e
 L

a
w
 S

o
c
ie
ty
 a

d
m

in
is
te

re
d
 q

u
a
lit
y
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

le
g
a
l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
. 
T
h
e
 m
a
tt
e
r 
is
 n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 
W
it
h
o
u
t 
th
is
 m
e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 9
5
%
 

(o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t)
. 

 
 

H
B
L
0
0
1
 

(a
)*
 

N
o
. 
o
f 
h
o
u
rs
 t
o
 a
ck
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 

e
m
a
ils
 (
2
4
 t
a
rg
e
t)
 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

N
/A
 

9
5
%
 

2
2
/2
4
 

9
2
%
 

3
.5
%
 

N
/A
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

H
B
L
0
0
1
 

(b
)*
 

N
o
. 
o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s 
to
 r
e
p
ly
 

to
 e
m
a
ils
 (
ta
rg
e
t 
5
) 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

N
/A
 

9
5
%

 
2
3
/2
4
 

9
6
%
 

0
.9
%
 

N
/A
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 

H
B
L
0
0
1
 

(c
 )
* 

N
o
. 
o
f 
d
a
y
s 
to
 r
e
p
ly
 t
o
 f
a
x
 o
r 

le
tt
e
r 
(t
a
rg
e
t 
1
0
) 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

N
/A
 

9
5
%

 
2
4
/2
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

5
.3
%
 

N
/A
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 

H
B
L
0
0
1
 

(d
)*
 

N
o
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s 
to
 o
p
e
n
 a
 

fi
le
 (
ta
rg
e
t 
5
) 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

N
/A
 

9
5
%

 
1
8
/2
4
 

7
5
%
 

2
1
.1
%
 

N
/A
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 

H
B
L
0
0
1
 

(e
)*
 

N
o
. 
o
f 
d
a
y
s 
to
 r
e
sp

o
n
d
 t
o
 

n
o
n
-u
rg
e
n
t 
re
q
u
e
st
s 
(t
a
rg
e
t 

1
0
) 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

N
/A
 

9
5
%

 
2
2
/2
3
 

9
6
%
 

0
.7
%
 

N
/A
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 

25



 
4

2
.3
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 &
 E
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
s
 

K
P
I 
N
O
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
  

H
B
L
0
0
1
 

T
o
 e
n
su

re
 t
im

e
ly
 r
e
sp

o
n
se
 

to
 a
ll 
in
st
ru
ct
io
n
s/
m
a
tt
e
rs
 

L
e

v
e

l 
1

 –
 H

B
P

L
 h

a
v

e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c

e
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
l 

a
c

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

n
s

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

fi
le

s
 a

re
 o

p
e

n
e

d
 i

n
 a

 m
o

re
 t

im
e

ly
 f

a
s

h
io

n
 

  3
. 
R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 A
N
D
 V
A
L
U
E
 F
O
R
 M
O
N
E
Y
 

3
.1
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

O
ri
g
in
al
 

B
u
d
g
et

B
u
d
g
et
 V
1
Q
2 
fo
re
ca
st

V
ar
ia
ti
o
n

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

Le
ga
l S
er
vi
ce
s

1,
90
8

1,
93
2

2,
22
6

29
4
P
ur
ch
as
e 
of
 a
dd
iti
on
al
 h
ou
rs
 a
nd
 s
ho
rt
fa
ll 
in
 

pr
oj
ec
te
d 
in
co
m
e.

15
.2
%

T
o
ta
l

1,
90
8

1,
93
2

2,
22
6

29
4

15
.2
%

V
ar
ia
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m
m
en
ts

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n

%
 V
ar
ia
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
re
v
is
ed
 

b
u
d
g
et

 3
.2
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

N
/A
 

  4
. 
O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 O
F
 D
E
L
IV
E
R
Y
 U
N
IT
 

4
.1
 R
is
k
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
  
 

 R
is
k
s
 a

re
 u

n
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 f
ro

m
 l
a
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r
is
k
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 B

a
rn

e
t 
H
o
m

e
s
 w

h
ic
h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
le
te

d
 a

s
 B

a
rn

e
t 
H
o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
o
 r
e
im

b
u
rs

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo

r 
th

e
 f
u
ll 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 
le
g
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id
e
d
 b

y
 H

B
P
L
. 

T
h
e
 o

n
e
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
s
c
o
re

s
 1

2
 r
e
m

a
in
s
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 w
ill
 b

e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 r
is
k
 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 U
n
it
s
. 

   
 

26



 
5

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 

K
P
I 
N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 
P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 
T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 
O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
  

H
B
L
0
0
2
 

%
 o
f 
cl
ie
n
ts
 g
iv
in
g
 a
 r
a
ti
n
g
 o
f 

sa
ti
sf
a
ct
o
ry
, 
g
o
o
d
, 
o
r 
e
x
ce

lle
n
t 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
3
%
 

9
0
%
 

7
8
/7
8
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
1
.1
%
 

�
 

7
.2
%

 
L
o
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

H
B
L
0
0
4
 

(a
) 

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
cc
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

3
/3
 

1
0
0
%
 

0
%
 

�
 

0
%
 

 

L
o
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

H
B
L
0
0
4
 

(b
) 

E
n
su

re
 a
ll 
st
a
ff
 a
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

8
4
/8
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

0
%
 

�
 

0
%
 

L
o
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

 

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



    1
.1
 D
E
L
IV
E
R
Y
 U
N
IT
 D
A
S
H
B
O
A
R
D
 

 

 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
je
c
te
d
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 £
0
0
0
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro
je
c
te
d
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 £
0
0
0
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
  

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t/
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d
 -
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

N
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

7
2
9
  

2
7
3
  

2
 

1
5
.5
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

6
9
7
  

(5
0
0
) 
 

  1
.2
 T
O
P
 A
C
H
IE
V
E
M
E
N
T
S
 A
N
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

  
 

T
o
p
 3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 
K
e
y
 C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

n
e
w

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 a

 g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 o

n
 s

it
e
 a

t 
A

le
x
a
n
d
ra

 R
o
a
d
. 
  

 
H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

  
C

o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
  
th

e
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

d
e
m

a
n
d
  

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 7

.3
%

 o
n
 

2
0
1
0
 l
e
v
e
ls

 t
o
 4

7
%

 u
s
in

g
 a

 S
T

A
T

U
S

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 1
6
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
8
. 

 
R

e
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
  
to

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 L

e
v
e
l 

2
 i

n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
  

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

a
n
 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 
re

c
o
v
e
ry

 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

B
a
rn

e
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 i
n
 5

 o
u
t 

o
f 

7
 K

e
y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 (

K
P

Is
) 

 
 

 
 

B
a
r
n

e
t 

H
o

m
e
s

–
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 

29



 1
.3

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 T

H
E

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 U

N
IT

’S
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 

 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
a
rg
e
ts
. 
In
 c
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 L
o
n
d
o
n
, 
o
f 
th
e
 7
 K
P
Is
 w
h
e
re
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
, 
B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 i
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 i
n
 5
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 n
o
n
e
 

in
 t
h
e
 b
o
tt
o
m
 q
u
a
rt
ile
. 
 

 T
h
e
 p
ri
n
c
ip
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 r
e
m
a
in
 t
h
e
 g
ro
w
in
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 

W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 a
c
u
te
 a
c
ro
s
s
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 s
o
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
s
. 

 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 h
a
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
 p
ro
je
c
t 
b
o
a
rd
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 o
v
e
rs
e
e
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 

g
ro
w
in
g
 p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
. 
It
 a
ls
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 

to
 w
o
rk
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm
 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 B
o
a
rd
 t
o
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
ts
 o
f 
W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm
. 
 

 R
e
n
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 a
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
, 
a
s
 a
rr
e
a
rs
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
. 
T
h
e
 t
e
rm
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 M
it
ie
 g
a
s
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
a
 r
is
k
, 
th
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
. 
 

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 r
e
m
a
in
 f
o
r 
th
e
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d
, 
re
la
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t,
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
. 
 

 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 w
o
n
 a
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
te
a
m
 o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
a
w
a
rd
 i
n
 r
e
c
o
g
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 p
a
y
a
b
le
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
, 
fr
o
m
 A
P
N
 N
e
w
s
.1
 

  
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 N
e
w
s
®
 i
s
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
a
te
s
t 
in
 A
P
 t
h
in
k
in
g
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 
o
n
 a
 n
o
t-
fo
r-
p
ro
fi
t 
b
a
s
is
, 
a
ll 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 p
a
y
a
b
le
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ts
 P
a
y
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P
2
P
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
s
 a
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
. 
 

30



 2
. 

D
E

L
IV

E
R

IN
G

 T
H

E
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 P
L

A
N

 

2
.1

 H
o

w
 t

h
e
 D

e
li

v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 i
s

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
it

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
  

C
P
I 

N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 
P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn

2
 
T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 
O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
3
  

8
0
0
1
a
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
4
  
to
 

5
0
0
 

R
o
lli
n
g
 

M
o
n
th
 

6
3
0
 

5
0
0
 

N
/A
 

6
3
8
 

2
7
.6
%
 

�
 

1
.3
%
 

Q
1
 1
3
/1
4
: 
B
a
rn
e
t 
ra
n
k
e
d
 2
9
 o
u
t 

o
f 
3
2
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 f
o
r 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
 E
A
 (
B
&
B
, 
s
h
a
re
d
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
lf
-c
o
n
ta
in
e
d
 

T
A
).
 F
ig
u
re
s
 r
a
n
g
e
 f
ro
m
 0
 t
o
 

8
8
1
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
. 
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rs
: 

H
a
c
k
n
e
y 
(1
9
th
),
 B
re
n
t 
(2
0
th
),
 

E
n
fi
e
ld
 (
2
7
th
) 
a
n
d
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

(3
2
n
d
).
  
O
v
e
ra
ll,
 2
2
 o
f 
th
e
 3
2
 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 h
a
d
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

Q
1
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 Q
4
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
r.
  
In
 Q
1
 L
B
B
 h
a
d
 

0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 w
it
h
 s
h
a
re
d
 

fa
c
ili
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
a
d
 0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 

in
 B
&
B
. 
 

8
0
0
1
b
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 

ti
m
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
b
y
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
5
 t
o
 

2
6
 w
e
e
k
s
  

R
o
lli
n
g
 

M
o
n
th
 

3
1
.7
 

2
6
 

N
/A
 

3
4
.6
 

3
3
.1
%
 

�
 

9
.1
%
 

N
o
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

    
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
 T
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
p
re
v
io
u
s
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 u
s
e
d
 w
ill
 e
it
h
e
r 
b
e
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 o
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
r.
 T
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
, 
c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 (
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 a
d
d
 u
p
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 a
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
s
 ‘
y
e
a
r 
to
 d
a
te
’)
 a
n
d
 i
f 
th
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 

s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
fl
u
c
tu
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

3
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 e
x
tr
a
c
te
d
 f
ro
m
 C
L
G
 P
1
E
 r
e
tu
rn
s
. 
 

4
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n
ig
h
tl
y
 p
a
id
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

5
 T
h
is
 C
P
I 
w
a
s
 f
o
rm

e
rl
y 
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
s
 s
h
o
rt
-t
e
rm

 n
ig
h
tl
y
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
It
 i
s
 t
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 a
s
 E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y 
A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

31



 2
.2

 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s

 &
 E

s
c

a
la

ti
o

n
s
 

C
P
I 
N
O
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
  

8
0
0
1
a
 

R
e
d
u
ce
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
 

h
o
u
se
h
o
ld
s 
p
la
ce
d
 i
n
 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
cy
 a
cc
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 5
0
0
 

D
e
s
p
it
e
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 s
u
p
p
ly
, 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 h
a
s
 m

e
a
n
t 
th
a
t 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
  
re
m
a
in
 h
ig
h
. 
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 d
ir
e
c
t-
le
t 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 P
ri
v
a
te
 R
e
n
te
d
 S
e
c
to
r 
(P
 

R
S
) 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 s
u
rp
a
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 1
2
/1
3
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 w
it
h
 1
7
6
 l
e
tt
in
g
s
 Y
e
a
r 
to
 D
a
te
 (
Y
T
D
);
 a
n
d
 a
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 l
e
a
s
in
g
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

o
ff
e
r 
fo
r 
la
n
d
lo
rd
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
a
b
o
u
t 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 s
u
p
p
ly
 w
it
h
 a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 4
0
 u
n
it
s
 s
e
c
u
re
d
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ip
e
lin
e
) 

Y
T
D
. 
 W

it
h
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
n
 Q
3
, 
s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
 n
e
w
 p
ip
e
lin
e
 o
f 
o
u
t-
o
f-
L
o
n
d
o
n
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 i
n
 a
re
a
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 L
u
to
n
, 

a
n
d
 a
 n
e
w
 O
u
t-
o
f-
L
o
n
d
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
t 
b
o
a
rd
 c
re
a
te
d
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 s
e
c
u
re
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
u
p
p
ly
, 
it
 i
s
 h
o
p
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
fu
rt
h
e
r 
in
c
re
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

in
im
is
e
d
. 

 

8
0
0
1
b
 

R
e
d
u
ce
 t
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 

o
f 
ti
m
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
b
y
 h
o
u
se
h
o
ld
s 

in
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
cy
 

a
cc
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 2
6
 w
e
e
k
s 
 

W
it
h
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 f
a
c
e
d
 i
n
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 m

o
v
e
-o
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 

le
n
g
th
 o
f 
s
ta
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 Q
2
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 p
o
s
e
 a
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 m

o
n
th
s
 w
h
ils
t 
m
a
rk
e
t 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 r
e
m
a
in
 b
u
o
y
a
n
t.
 

T
h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 

P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
y
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
L
o
c
a
lis
m
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 
n
e
w
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
s
 H
o
m
e
le
s
s
, 
w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
ly
 b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 

in
to
 o
th
e
r 
fo
rm

s
 o
f 
T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
, 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in
 i
n
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 l
o
n
g
e
r,
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
s
ta
y
. 

 

 3
. 

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

 R
E

P
O

R
T

IN
G

 

3
.1

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 

T
o
ta
l 
N
o
. 
o
f 

K
P
Is
 

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
  

P
o
s
it
iv
e
/n
e
u
tr
a
l 
D
o
T
 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 D
o
T
 

N
o
. 
o
f 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r 

G
re
e
n
 

G
re
e
n
 A
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 A
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 

2
4
 

1
5
 

(7
8
.9
%
) 

3
 

(1
5
.8
%
) 

0
 

(0
%
) 

1
 

(5
.3
%
) 

1
3
 

5
 

1
9
 

 O
v
e
ra
ll,
 t
h
is
 i
s
 a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
, 
w
it
h
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 f
ro
m
 4
 t
o
 1
, 
a
n
d
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 g
re
e
n
 f
ro
m
 1
1
 t
o
 1
5
. 
 

  
 

32



 3
.2

 H
o

w
 i
s

 t
h

e
 D

e
li

v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 a
c

h
ie

v
in

g
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
it

s
 K

e
y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 (

K
P

Is
):

 E
s
c
a

la
te

d
 K

P
Is

 o
n

ly
 

 K
P
I 
N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 
P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 
a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 

O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
6
 

H
F
0
0
6
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
rr
e
a
rs
 a
s
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
d
e
b
it
 

R
o
lli
n
g
 

m
o
n
th
 

2
.7
%
 

2
.6
5
%
 

1
7
5
4
0
1
3
/5
9
7
0
4
1
8
9
 

2
.9
%
 

1
0
.9
%
 

�
 

8
.8
%
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 

in
 L
o
n
d
o
n
. 
 

H
N
0
1
2
 

G
a
s
 s
e
rv
ic
in
g
 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 

R
o
lli
n
g
 

m
o
n
th
 

9
9
.1
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

8
8
3
4
/8
8
8
1
 

9
9
.5
%
 

0
.5
%
 

�
 

0
.4
%
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 i
n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
. 
L
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
ti
m
e
 C
P
1
2
s
 

o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
: 
0
-1
0
 w
k
s
: 
2
4
; 
1
0
-

2
0
 w
k
s
: 
1
6
; 
2
0
-3
0
 w
k
s
: 
6
; 
3
0
+
 

w
k
s
: 
1
. 
T
o
ta
l:
 4
7
. 

C
C
0
1
8
 

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 a
t 

s
ta
g
e
 1
 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
2
.6
%
 

9
3
%
 

3
5
2
/3
7
9
 

9
2
.9
%
 

0
.1
%
 

�
 

0
.2
%
 

N
o
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

H
F
0
0
8
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
a
n
n
u
a
l 

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

c
h
a
rg
e
 c
o
lle
c
te
d
 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

2
1
.5
%
 

5
0
%
 

1
6
0
5
1
5
7
/3
2
5
5
8
9
7
 

 
4
9
.3
%
 

 
1
.4
%
 

�
 

1
2
9
.5
%
 

 

N
o
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

   3
.3

 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s

 &
 E

s
c

a
la

ti
o

n
s
 

K
P
I 
N
O
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
  

H
F
0
0
6
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
rr
e
a
rs
 a
s
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
d
e
b
it
 

L
e
v
e
l 
2
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
 

T
h
is
 w
a
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
e
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
b
u
t 
th
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 B
o
a
rd
 o
n
 6
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
a
s
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 a
s
 a
 l
e
v
e
l 
2
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 i
s
 d
is
a
p
p
o
in
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
 a
rr
e
a
rs
 l
e
v
e
ls
 s
o
m
e
 £
1
9
0
k
 a
b
o
v
e
 w
h
e
re
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
. 
H
o
m
e
le
s
s
 d
a
ta
 i
s
 f
ro
m
 C
L
G
 P
1
E
 r
e
tu
rn
s
. 
O
th
e
r 
is
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 H
o
u
s
e
m
a
rk
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
  
 

33



 

e
x
p
e
c
t 
to
 b
e
 a
t 
th
is
 s
ta
g
e
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 b
e
s
t 
q
u
a
rt
ile
 f
o
r 
a
rr
e
a
rs
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 L
o
n
d
o
n
. 
D
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
s
 s
h
o
w
s
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
rr
e
a
rs
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
. 
O
n
e
 

is
s
u
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
 v
a
ry
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
 a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
re
 t
a
k
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
w
a
rd
in
g
 o
f 
d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
e
re
 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
ly
 l
o
w
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
w
a
rd
e
d
 i
n
 B
a
rn
e
t,
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 

B
o
a
rd
. 

A
n
 a
rr
e
a
rs
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 a
rr
e
a
rs
 u
n
d
e
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 R
e
n
ta
l 
In
c
o
m
e
 T
e
a
m
. 
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 s
e
t 
c
le
a
r 
d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

th
e
 t
e
a
m
 t
o
 b
e
 m
o
re
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 w
e
e
k
ly
 w
o
rk
in
g
, 
a
d
o
p
ti
n
g
 a
 m
o
re
 p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 p
h
o
n
e
, 
a
v
o
id
 

u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m
u
c
h
 f
ir
m
e
r 
w
it
h
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
a
y
 r
e
n
t.
  
  

B
a
rn
e
t 
 H
o
m
e
s
 d
a
ta
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro
x
. 
 £
6
4
k
 (
3
3
%
) 
o
f 
th
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 a
rr
e
a
rs
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 u
n
d
e
r-

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 c
h
a
rg
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 6
 m
o
n
th
s
 a
g
o
. 
(A
p
p
ro
x
. 
4
0
0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 i
n
 a
rr
e
a
rs
 a
re
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
is
 c
h
a
rg
e
) 
 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
ru
it
e
d
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 c
a
s
e
s
, 
e
n
a
b
lin
g
 R
e
n
t 
In
c
o
m
e
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
a
in
in
g
 b
u
lk
 o
f 

c
a
s
e
s
. 
 T
h
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 t
e
n
a
n
t 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t,
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
d
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
-e
n
fo
rc
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 t
o
 p
a
y
 i
f 
th
e
y
 w
is
h
 t
o
 s
ta
y
. 
T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
e
n
 a
 

th
re
e
-f
o
ld
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
D
H
P
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
w
it
h
 n
e
a
rl
y
 6
0
%
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l.
  

B
e
tw
e
e
n
 A
p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r,
 2
7
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 c
h
a
rg
e
 h
a
v
e
 m
o
v
e
d
 t
o
 s
m
a
lle
r 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
O
f 
th
e
s
e
, 
1
4
 w
e
re
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 b
y
 m
u
tu
a
l 
e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 1
3
 b
y
 t
ra
d
e
 d
o
w
n
. 
 1
3
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 m
o
v
e
s
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 

in
 A
u
g
 a
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r,
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 t
a
k
e
 u
p
 o
f 
th
is
 o
p
ti
o
n
. 
D
a
ta
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 A
L
M
O
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
s
 

th
a
t 
th
is
 i
s
 a
n
 a
re
a
 w
h
e
re
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
. 
 A
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
m
a
tc
h
m
a
k
in
g
 e
v
e
n
t 
o
f 
u
n
d
e
r 
o
c
c
u
p
ie
rs
 a
n
d
 

o
v
e
rc
ro
w
d
e
d
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 m
id
- 
N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.
 

W
h
ils
t 
B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 b
e
lie
v
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
y
e
a
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 m
e
t,
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 a
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
re
m
a
in
s
 a
 r
is
k
. 
T
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 
W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm
 i
s
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
c
le
a
r 
a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 a
s
 y
e
t 

u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
 h
o
w
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
le
g
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
o
s
e
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 i
n
 a
rr
e
a
rs
 f
o
r 
th
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 c
h
a
rg
e
. 
T
h
e
 

c
o
u
rt
’s
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
a
s
 y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 t
e
s
te
d
. 
 

H
N
0
1
2
 

G
a
s
 s
e
rv
ic
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 

L
e
v
e
l 
1
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

T
h
e
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 r
e
s
u
lt
 s
h
o
w
s
 a
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
y
 f
ig
u
re
 o
f 
9
9
.5
%
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
w
it
h
 4
7
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 

o
v
e
rd
u
e
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
o
o
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
g
a
s
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 M
IT
IE
, 
w
h
o
, 
d
e
s
p
it
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 

s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
it
h
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 m
o
n
th
 o
f 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r,
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
-m
o
n
th
 p
ro
fi
le
 t
a
rg
e
ts
. 
 

 M
IT
IE
’s
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
ill
 c
e
a
s
e
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 
o
f 
2
0
1
4
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 i
n
te
ri
m
 p
e
ri
o
d
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 i
m
m
e
d
ia
te
 a
n
d
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 m
e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 m
it
ig
a
te
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
, 
to
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

 

•
 
E
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 G
a
s
 S
a
fe
 r
e
g
is
te
re
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 w
h
e
re
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 

34



 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
fo
c
u
s
s
in
g
 p
re
d
o
m
in
a
n
tl
y
 o
n
 ‘
h
a
rd
 a
c
c
e
s
s
’ 
a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
 o
v
e
rd
u
e
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
. 

•
 
E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 C
lie
n
t 
s
id
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
to
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 s
c
h
e
d
u
lin
g
 a
n
d
 t
ra
c
k
in
g
 o
f 
a
p
p
o
in
tm
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 v
a
lid
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
C
e
rt
if
ie
d
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
. 

•
 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
e
c
h
n
ic
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 v
a
lid
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

•
 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
q
u
a
lit
y
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
o
n
 M
IT
IE
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 w
o
rk
 (
a
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
c
o
s
t)
 

•
 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
b
y
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
. 
It
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
h
a
t,
 i
f 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
th
e
 n
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 

c
o
u
ld
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
c
e
s
s
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 

C
C
0
1
8
  

C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 a
t 

s
ta
g
e
 1
 

 

L
e
v
e
l 
1
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

O
f 
th
e
 3
7
9
 s
ta
g
e
 1
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
n
 f
ir
s
t 
2
 q
u
a
rt
e
rs
, 
9
6
%
 w
e
re
 a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 w
it
h
in
 1
0
 w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 2
7
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 (
7
%
) 
e
s
c
a
la
te
d
 t
o
 s
ta
g
e
 2
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 A
p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 9
6
%
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 w
e
re
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

w
it
h
in
 1
0
 w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
. 
T
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 t
o
p
ic
 f
o
r 
s
ta
g
e
 2
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
a
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
re
p
a
ir
s
. 
5
 o
f 
th
e
 2
7
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 w
e
re
 

u
p
h
e
ld
. 
  

 1
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
p
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
la
te
d
 s
ta
g
e
 2
 c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
w
a
s
 e
s
c
a
la
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
t 
s
ta
g
e
 3
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 A
p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 I
t 

w
a
s
 p
a
rt
ia
lly
 u
p
h
e
ld
. 

 1
 s
ta
g
e
 2
 c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
w
a
s
 e
s
c
a
la
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 T
e
n
a
n
t 
P
a
n
e
l 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
 T
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
d
id
 n
o
t 
re
fe
r 
th
e
 c
o
m
p
la
in
t 
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 O
m
b
u
d
s
m
a
n
. 

 3
 O
m
b
u
d
s
m
a
n
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
 w
e
re
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
N
o
n
e
 w
e
re
 u
p
h
e
ld
. 
 

 

H
F
0
0
8
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
a
n
n
u
a
l 

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
 

c
o
lle
c
te
d
 

L
e
v
e
l 
1
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

D
e
ta
ile
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
 d
a
ta
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
in
c
o
m
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
a
s
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
b
le
 w
it
h
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 
w
it
h
 o
v
e
r 
£
2
.7
m
 b
e
in
g
 

c
o
lle
c
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
6
 m
o
n
th
s
 o
f 
b
o
th
 y
e
a
rs
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 w
a
s
 s
h
o
w
in
g
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

o
v
e
r 
1
0
%
 w
h
e
n
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
rs
 d
e
s
p
it
e
 a
n
 a
c
tu
a
l 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
. 
B
a
rn
e
t 

H
o
m
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
rr
e
c
te
d
 a
 c
o
m
p
u
te
r 
g
lit
c
h
 w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
o
rt
io
n
e
d
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 w
ro
n
g
 c
le
a
ri
n
g
 o
rd
e
r.
 T
h
e
 c
o
rr
e
c
te
d
 f
ig
u
re
 

is
 n
o
w
 m
o
re
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg
e
t.
  

   
 

35



 4
. 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 A

N
D

 V
A

L
U

E
 F

O
R

 M
O

N
E

Y
 

4
.1

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 

O
ri
g
in
a
l 

B
u
d
g
e
t
B
u
d
g
e
t 
V
1
Q
2
 f
o
re
c
a
st

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

H
N
R
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d

2
,9
3
7

3
,3
9
3

4
,1
2
2

7
2
9
O
ve
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 p
re
d
ic
te
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 A
c
c
o
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 n
u
m
b
e
rs

2
1
.5
%

G
F
 T
o
ta
l

2
,9
3
7

3
,3
9
3

4
,1
2
2

7
2
9

2
1
.5
%

%
 V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
re
v
is
e
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
t

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 £
0
.7
2
9
m
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 N
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
 T
h
is
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
o
s
t 
o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
re
la
te
d
 t
o
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fa
c
to
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
: 

• 
T
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 w
e
lf
a
re
 r
e
fo
rm
s
  

• 
S
u
s
ta
in
e
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 p
ri
v
a
te
 r
e
n
te
d
 s
e
c
to
r 
re
n
ts
 i
n
 L
o
n
d
o
n
  

• 
A
 r
e
s
tr
ic
te
d
 m
o
rt
g
a
g
e
 m
a
rk
e
t 
fo
r 
fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 b
u
y
e
rs
  

• 
M
ig
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
c
la
im
a
n
t 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
 f
ro
m
 i
n
n
e
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 t
o
 o
u
te
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
  

• 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 c
re
a
te
d
 b
y
 d
e
c
a
n
ts
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
s
e
-e
n
d
s
 o
f 
lo
n
g
-t
e
rm
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
  

• 
A
 c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 N
o
rt
h
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 m
a
rk
e
t 
w
it
h
 a
lm
o
s
t 
1
 i
n
 5
 T
A
 p
la
c
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 E
n
g
la
n
d
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
d
e
 b
y
 

N
o
rt
h
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 

 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

V
1

Q
2
 f

o
re

c
a

st
V

a
ri

a
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

L
B
B
 R
e
ta
in
e
d

1
7
5

1
7
5

1
2
0

(5
5
)
U
n
d
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 S
a
la
ri
e
s

-3
1
.4
%

H
R
A
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n

1
,1
2
6

1
,1
2
6

1
,0
5
7

(6
9
)
H
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 b
u
d
g
e
te
d
 r
e
c
o
ve
ra
b
le
 o
f c
o
s
ts
 f
ro
m
 d
e
ve
lo
p
e
rs

-6
.1
%

H
R
A
 O
th
e
r 
In
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 (
n
e
t)

(5
5
6
)

(5
5
6
)

2
6
5

8
2
1
S
h
o
rt
fa
ll 
o
n
 H
R
A
 d
w
e
lli
n
g
 r
e
n
ts
 &
 H
R
A
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 

1
4
7
.7
%

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s

5
7
6

5
7
6

5
7
6

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0
%

In
te
re
s
t 
o
n
 B
a
la
n
c
e
s

(8
0
)

(8
0
)

(8
0
)

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0
%

H
R
A
 S
u
rp
lu
s
/D
e
fic
it
 f
o
r 
th
e
 y
e
a
r

(1
,2
4
1
)

(1
,2
4
1
)

(1
,2
4
1
)

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

0
.0
%

H
R

A
 T

o
ta

l
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

6
9
7

6
9
7

1
0
0
.0

%

D
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

%
 V

a
ri

a
ti

o
n

 

o
f 

re
v
is

e
d

 

b
u

d
g

e
t

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

 
 

36



 T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
je
c
te
d
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
(H
R
A
) 
re
v
e
n
u
e
 o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 o
f 
£
0
.6
9
7
m
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 r
e
la
te
d
 t
o
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
fa
c
to
rs
: 
 

•
 
U
n
d
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 s
a
la
ri
e
s
 f
o
r 
L
B
B
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 s
ta
ff
 (
5
5
K
) 

•
 
A
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 o
n
 3
rd
 P
a
rt
y
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 f
o
r 
H
R
A
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 (
6
8
K
) 

•
 
S
h
o
rt
 f
a
ll 
in
 H
R
A
 d
w
e
lli
n
g
 r
e
n
ts
 &
 H
R
A
 T
e
n
a
n
ts
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 (
£
8
2
1
K
).
  
D
w
e
lli
n
g
 r
e
n
ts
 a
re
 l
o
w
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 d
u
e
 

to
 h
ig
h
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 d
e
m
o
lit
io
n
s
 o
n
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 
F
u
ll 
y
e
a
r 
e
ff
e
c
t 
c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 £
1
.4
m
il 
lo
s
s
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

a
s
 t
o
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 f
u
lly
 r
e
c
o
v
e
re
d
 f
ro
m
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 

•
 
O
v
e
ra
ll 
s
ta
ff
in
g
 a
n
d
 n
o
n
-p
a
y
 c
o
s
ts
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 l
o
w
e
r 
th
a
n
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 i
n
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 (
£
6
8
K
) 

 4
.2

 C
a

p
it

a
l 

 

 H
R
A
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

L
a
te
s
t 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

A
d
d
it
io
n
s
/ 

(D
e
le
ti
o
n
s
) 
- 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

(S
li
p
p
a
g
e
) 
/ 

A
c
c
e
le
ra
te
d
 

S
p
e
n
d
 -
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
) 

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 
to
 y
e
a
r-

e
n
d
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

%
 s
li
p
p
a
g
e
 o
f 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

  
£
0
 

£
0
 

£
0
 

£
0
 

£
0
 

£
0
 

%
 

M
a

jo
r 

W
o

rk
s
 (

e
x
c
l 
G

ra
n

v
 R

d
) 

6
,2

1
9

  
  

  
6

,2
1

9
  

6
,2

1
9

  
0

  
  

G
ra

n
v
ill

e
 R

o
a

d
 

3
8

5
  

  
  

3
8

5
  

3
8

5
  

0
  

  

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

 
6

,1
3

5
  

  
(5

0
0

) 
 

5
,6

3
5

 
5

,6
3

5
  

(5
0

0
) 

 
-8

%
 

M
is

c
 –

 R
e

p
a

ir
s

 
1

,7
8

9
  

  
  

1
,7

8
9

  
1

,7
8

9
  

0
  

  

M
&

E
/ 

G
A

S
 

1
2

,2
1
1

  
  

  
1

2
,2

1
1

  
1

2
,2

1
1

  
0

  
  

V
o

id
s
 a

n
d
 L

e
tt
in

g
s

 
1

,9
6

7
  

  
  

1
,9

6
7

  
1

,9
6

7
  

0
  

  

N
e

w
 A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o
m

e
s
 

7
,0

9
3
 

 
 

7
,0

9
3
 

7
,0

9
3
 

0
 

 

H
R
A
 T
o
ta
l 

3
5
,7
9
9
  

0
  

(5
0
0
) 

 
3
5
,2
9
9

 
3
5
,2
9
9
  

(5
0
0
) 

 
-1
%

 

 H
R
A
 y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 £
3
5
.3
m
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 o
f 
£
7
.0
m
 f
ro
m
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 a
n
d
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
e
n
t 

a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 r
e
le
a
s
e
 f
u
n
d
s
 f
o
r 
H
R
A
 n
e
w
 b
u
ild
s
. 
T
h
is
 r
e
fl
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic
y
 o
f 
1
 f
o
r 
1
 r
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
to
c
k
 s
o
ld
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 

e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 r
ig
h
t 
to
 b
u
y
 s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 t
o
 p
o
o
l 
re
c
e
ip
ts
 r
e
ta
in
e
d
 b
y
 L
B
B
. 
T
h
e
 N
e
w
 B
u
ild
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
: 

•
 
B
re
n
t 
P
la
c
e
  
  
5
 u
n
it
s
 

•
 
T
a
rl
in
g
 R
o
a
d
  
8
 u
n
it
s
 

•
 
H
a
ld
e
n
 C
lo
s
e
 1
3
 u
n
it
s
 

•
 
B
e
d
fo
rd
 R
o
a
d
  
5
 u
n
it
s
 

•
 
P
a
rk
 R
o
a
d
  
3
 u
n
it
s
 

37



 A
 m
o
re
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 p
ro
fi
le
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 b
u
ild
 s
p
e
n
d
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
3
 y
e
a
rs
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r3
. 
 I
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
b
o
v
e
 

th
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 £
0
.5
m
 s
lip
p
a
g
e
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 H
R
A
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 i
n
 W
e
s
t 
H
e
n
d
o
n
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
re
te
n
ti
o
n
 a
m
o
u
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 G
ra
n
v
ill
e
 R
o
a
d
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 (
4
0
0
K
) 
is
 a
t 
ri
s
k
 a
n
d
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 s
lip
 i
n
to
 2
0
1
4
/1
5
. 

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 L
a
te
s
t 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
d
d
it
io
n
s
/ 

(D
e
le
ti
o
n
s
) 
- 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2

(S
li
p
p
a
g
e
) 
/ 

A
c
c
e
le
ra
te
d
 

S
p
e
n
d
 -
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 

2

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 B
u
d
g
e
t 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
)

F
o
re
c
a
s
t 
to
 y
e
a
r-

e
n
d

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

B
u
d
g
e
t

%
 s
li
p
p
a
g
e
 

o
f 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 

B
u
d
g
e
t

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

%

H
o
u
si
n
g

5
6
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
7
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
7
3

0
%

T
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

G
ro

u
p

5
6
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
7
3

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

8
4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

8
4
0

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
7
3

0
%

 
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
F
u
n
d
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
re
la
te
s
 t
o
 A
le
x
a
n
d
ra
 r
o
a
d
 n
e
w
 b
u
ild
 o
f 
3
 u
n
it
s
. 
T
h
is
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 H
R
A
 t
o
 

H
G
F
. 
T
h
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
2
7
3
K
 r
e
la
te
s
 t
o
 r
e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 h
o
s
te
ls
 u
n
d
e
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 N
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
 

  5
. 

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 O

F
 D

E
L

IV
E

R
Y

 U
N

IT
 

 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 H
o
m
e
le
s
s
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
s
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
tl
y
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
. 
In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 w
id
e
r 

fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 g
ro
w
in
g
 g
a
p
 i
n
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
ly
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 s
u
s
ta
in
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r.
  

 R
e
n
ta
l 
In
c
o
m
e
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 a
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
. 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
re
n
t 
a
rr
e
a
rs
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
re
m
a
in
s
 a
s
 a
 l
e
v
e
l 
2
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 C
h
a
rg
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 a
 r
e
d
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 n
o
w
 a
m
b
e
r 
g
re
e
n
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 a
 d
a
ta
 c
o
rr
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

A
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
rr
e
a
rs
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
w
 g
re
e
n
. 

 B
o
th
 G
a
s
 s
e
rv
ic
in
g
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
re
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 w
e
re
 r
e
d
/a
m
b
e
r 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
n
d
 a
t 
le
v
e
l 
1
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 i
n
 b
o
th
 

a
re
a
s
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
y
 r
e
m
a
in
 a
s
 l
e
v
e
l 
1
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 s
u
s
ta
in
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t.
 

   
 

38



 5
.1

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

  
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
 

O
u
tt
u
rn
  

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

T
ra
v
e
l 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ry
 

A
ll

 S
y
s

te
m

s
 G

o
 

•
 
N
e
w
 I
.T
 i
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

•
 
N
e
w
 H
R
 s
y
s
te
m
 

•
 
N
e
w
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 s
y
s
te
m
 

•
 
N
e
w
 C
R
M
 s
y
s
te
m
 

•
 
N
e
w
 I
n
tr
a
n
e
t 

•
 
N
e
w
 B
I 
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 

•
 
N
e
w
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 

•
 
M
o
b
ile
 w
o
rk
in
g
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 

A
m

b
e

r 
 

�
 

 

P
h
a
s
e
 1
 g
o
 l
iv
e
 o
f 
th
e
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 f
ro
m
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
. 
 T
h
e
 

s
y
s
te
m
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 s
ti
ll 
b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 b
u
t 

tr
a
in
in
g
 w
ill
 n
o
w
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 o
v
e
r 
a
 l
o
n
g
e
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
. 
 T
h
e
 

o
th
e
r 
s
y
s
te
m
s
 r
e
m
a
in
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t.
  
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 q
u
e
ry
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 s
y
s
te
m
 a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 a
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 m
o
d
u
le
 f
it
s
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
. 

N
e
w

 B
u

il
d

 
2
0
 s
ta
rt
e
d
 o
n
 s
it
e
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 

2
2
0
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 h
o
m
e
s
 b
y
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
 

 

A
m

b
e

r 
�
 

F
ir
s
t 
th
re
e
 h
o
m
e
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
. 
Is
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 n
o
w
 l
a
rg
e
ly
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
 b
u
t 
th
e
re
 a
p
p
e
a
r 

n
o
w
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 w
it
h
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
e
s
 t
o
 p
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

c
o
n
v
e
rs
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
S
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 i
n
fi
ll 
s
it
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
in
g
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 b
ri
n
g
in
g
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 m
o
re
 

s
it
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
it
ia
l 
fe
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 c
o
s
t 
ri
s
k
s
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
. 
  
  

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 T
e

n
a

n
c

ie
s

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

P
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 w
h
e
re
 

te
n
a
n
ts
 c
a
n
 s
u
s
ta
in
 t
h
e
ir
 t
e
n
a
n
c
ie
s
 f
o
r 
a
s
 

lo
n
g
 a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

G
re

e
n

 
�
 

W
o
rk
 s
tr
e
a
m
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
, 
w
e
lf
a
re
 

re
fo
rm
, 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 t
e
n
a
n
c
ie
s
 a
n
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
&
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 p
la
n
 

G
e

t 
R

e
a

l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

P
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

a
d
u
lt
s
 

G
re

e
n

  
�

 

 

S
e
c
o
n
d
 G
e
t 
R
e
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
 w
e
n
t 
liv
e
 i
n
 Q
2
 i
n
 E
a
s
t 
F
in
c
h
le
y
. 

B
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
w
o
 G
e
t 
R
e
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 7
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
, 
a
g
e
d
 1
7
-1
9
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
te
d
. 
A
ll 
a
re
 i
n
 t
ra
in
in
g
 o
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
s
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.
 A
 

fl
o
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
ru
it
e
d
 w
h
o
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 

th
e
 s
e
tt
in
g
 u
p
 o
f 
th
e
 t
h
ir
d
 G
e
t 
R
e
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
 b
y
 e
n
d
 o
f 
Q
4
. 

L
e

a
s

e
h

o
ld

e
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
  

Im
p
ro
v
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 a
m
o
n
g
s
t 
le
a
s
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

G
re

e
n

  
�
 

A
 s
u
rv
e
y
 o
f 
a
ll 
le
a
s
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 w
a
s
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 l
a
te
 A
u
g
u
s
t/
 

S
e
p
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a
 7
%
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 4
0
%
 

to
 4
7
%
. 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
lly
 t
h
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
a
re
a
s
 s
u
rv
e
y
e
d
 s
h
o
w
e
d
 

a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

39



 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c
o
n
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

G
re

e
n

  
�
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 –
 T
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 o
f 
th
is
 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
s
 i
n
 i
ts
 i
n
fa
n
c
y
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 r
u
n
 t
o
 

in
p
u
t 
v
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
a
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
. 

G
ro

u
p

 P
e

o
p

le
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

T
o
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 a
n
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
o
ic
e
 

a
n
d
 I
n
c
re
a
s
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

G
re

e
n

  
�
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 w
it
h
 m
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 A
ll 
S
y
s
te
m
s
 G
o
 p
ro
je
c
t.
  
M
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 

a
re
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 n
e
w
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
io
n
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 w
h
ic
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 
s
k
ill
s
 m
a
tr
ic
e
s
. 

N
e
w

 B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

T
o
 w
in
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il,
 t
e
n
d
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
, 
p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 s
e
lli
n
g
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 

p
ro
d
u
c
t 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

G
re

e
n

  
�
  

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
tw
o
 l
o
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 e
a
rl
y
 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
e
n
d
e
r,
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 i
s
 n
o
w
 

a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
a
n
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

e
v
e
n
ts
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 s
u
m
m
e
r 
h
o
lid
a
y
s
. 
 T
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 a
 c
h
a
ri
ty
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 t
h
e
 v
ia
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

to
g
e
th
e
r 
a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
lly
 b
ri
n
g
in
g
 t
h
e
m
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 G
ro
u
p
. 
A
 

v
ia
b
ili
ty
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
is
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r.
  

B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
a
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 r
u
n
 n
u
rs
e
ry
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
in
 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 d
a
te
. 

T
e

le
h

e
a

lt
h

  
T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 A
S
S
IS
T
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
to
 a
 

te
le
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

R
e

d
 

�
 

 

B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 i
s
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 c
la
ri
ty
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
o
v
e
r 
p
la
n
s
 

fo
r 
te
le
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 t
e
le
c
a
re
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
w
h
ic
h
 a
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 

fo
r 
th
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
to
 a
 t
e
le
h
e
a
lt
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
a
b
le
 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 O
p

ti
o

n
s

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

o
u

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

G
re

e
n

  
�
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 e
.g
. 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 h
a
n
d
lin
g
, 
v
o
id
s
 

tu
rn
a
ro
u
n
d
 e
tc
.,
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 e
m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 

Q
2
. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 u
n
d
e
r 
w
a
y
- 
ta
rg
e
t 
fo
r 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 1
4
 w
it
h
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
re
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 b
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 

o
f 
Q
4
. 
 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 m
o
re
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

a
c
q
u
ir
e
d
 y
td
 t
h
a
n
 i
n
 a
ll 
o
f 
1
2
/1
3
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
 p
ro
je
c
t 
to
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 s
u
p
p
ly
 o
u
t 
o
f 
b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

  
 

40



 5
.2

 R
is

k
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
  
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
s
 t
h
e
 5
 X
 5
 m
a
tr
ix
 ‘
h
e
a
t 
m
a
p
’ 
h
ig
h
lig
h
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ri
s
k
s
 a
t 
a
 D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 L
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
a
te
d
: 

 

PROBABILITY 

S
C
O
R
E
 

IM
P
A
C
T
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

N
e
g
li
g
ib
le
 

M
in
o
r 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

M
a
jo
r 

C
a
ta
s
tr
o
p
h
ic
 

5
 
A
lm
o
s
t 
C
e
rt
a
in
 

 
 

 
 1
 

 

4
 
L
ik
e
ly
 

 
 

 
 1
 

 

3
 
P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

 
 

 2
 

 
 

2
 
U
n
li
k
e
ly
 

 
 

 
 

 

1
 
R
a
re
 

 
 

 
 

 

 T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
is
k
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
lis
ts
 t
h
o
s
e
 r
is
k
s
 r
a
te
d
 a
s
 1
2
 a
n
d
 a
b
o
v
e
: 
 

R
is
k
 

C
u
rr
e
n
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 

P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 

R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

R
is
k
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 

D
a
te
 

(P
ri
o
ri
ty
) 

T
a
rg
e
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 

P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 

R
a
ti
n
g
 

H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
: 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm

 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
is
e
. 
 

 C
a
u
s
e
: 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
h
a
s
 a
n
 o
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 h
o
u
s
e
 p
e
o
p
le
 

th
a
t 
a
re
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

in
te
n
ti
o
n
a
lly
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
. 
U
n
e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t,
 e
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 

d
o
w
n
tu
rn
 e
x
a
c
e
rb
a
te
d
 b
y
 w
e
lf
a
re
 a
n
d
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
re
fo
rm

 a
n
d
 

h
ig
h
 m

a
rk
e
t 
re
n
ts
 a
re
 t
h
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 c
a
u
s
e
s
 o
f 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
, 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 g
a
p
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s
u
b
s
id
y
 r
a
te
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

p
u
tt
in
g
 p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
. 
 

 

      
2
0
 

L
B
B
 a
n
d
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 a
re
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
; 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
u
p
p
ly
; 
a
n
d
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

s
u
p
p
ly
 i
n
 m

o
re
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 A
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 B
o
a
rd
 

m
o
n
th
ly
. 
 

 W
e
lf
a
re
 a
n
d
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
) 
in
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 d
e
te
rm

in
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t.
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

im
p
a
c
t.
  
 

 

R
e
d
 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 o
n
-

g
o
in
g
 

    
 

 
1
6
 

R
is

k
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ta
ry

 f
o

r 
D

e
li

v
e
ry

 U
n

it
: 

  
T

h
e
 t
o
p
 2

 r
is

k
s
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 t
im

e
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 B

a
rn

e
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 j
o
in

tl
y
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
. 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

2
 r

is
k
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
, 
a
n
d
 a

re
 t
h
e
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
o
f 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 b

y
 B

a
rn

e
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 

in
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
T

e
a
m

. 
  
 

 

41



 W
e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

: 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
lf
a
re
 r
e
fo
rm

 w
ill
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 s
tr
e
a
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H
R
A
 s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
is
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
u
tu
re
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 p
o
lic
y
. 

      
1
6
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 L
B
B
 a
re
 j
o
in
tl
y
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 

b
y
 W

e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

. 
T
h
e
 W

e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

 S
te
e
ri
n
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 i
s
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ts
 o
n
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

U
s
e
 o
f 
D
is
c
re
ti
o
n
a
ry
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 P
a
ym

e
n
ts
 (
D
H
P
) 
to
 

a
s
s
is
t 
th
o
s
e
 h
it
 b
y
 W

e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

. 
 W
o
rk
 i
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 W

e
lf
a
re
 R
e
fo
rm

 a
n
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
th
e
re
 i
s
 

a
n
y
 d
ir
e
c
t 
lin
k
a
g
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

re
n
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
. 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 
a
ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
w
e
lf
a
re
 r
e
fo
rm

 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 

 

R
e
d
 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 o
n
-

g
o
in
g
  

      9
 

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
: 
T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 r
is
k
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
s
p
it
e
 a
 r
o
b
u
s
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
re
g
im
e
 a
n
d
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 w
it
h
in
 a
 

b
u
d
g
e
t,
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 i
s
 u
n
a
b
le
 t
o
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y 
w
it
h
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
. 

    
1
2
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
 m

e
a
n
in
g
fu
l 
b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
it
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 K
P
Is
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
ils
, 
A
L
M
O
s
, 
R
S
L
s
. 
 

T
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

w
it
h
 m

e
a
s
u
re
s
 t
o
 r
e
v
e
rs
e
 u
n
d
e
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 d
ri
v
e
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 c
o
s
ts
. 

 

A
m
b
e
r 
B
y
 M
a
rc
h
 

2
0
1
4
 

    6
 

G
a
s
 c
e
rt
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
: 
 T
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
 g
a
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
h
a
s
 

s
e
rv
e
d
 n
o
ti
c
e
 o
n
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 g
ro
u
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
is
 u
n
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
. 
 R
is
k
 t
o
 L
B
B
 o
f 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
s
t 

a
n
d
/o
r 
in
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

    
 

1
2
 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
ill
 r
u
n
 u
n
ti
l 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
. 
B
a
rn
e
t 

H
o
m
e
s
 w
ill
 e
n
s
u
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 b
y
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
in
g
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
o
ld
in
g
 p
u
b
lic
 s
e
c
to
r 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
s
. 
 A
n
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 e
n
te
re
d
 i
n
to
 

th
a
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 b
a
c
k
-u
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
ro
v
id
e
r.
 

 T
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
t 

m
o
n
th
ly
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 
U
s
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

A
m
b
e
r 
B
y
 D
e
c
 

2
0
1
3
 

     6
 

    
 

42



 5
.3

 E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

  
 

 T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
  

R
e
d
u
c
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 

ti
m
e
 s
p
e
n
t 
in
 e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 /
 

B
&
B
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

2
6
 w
e
e
k
s
 i
rr
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 o
f 

p
ro
te
c
te
d
 g
ro
u
p
 

S
e
e
 C
P
I 
8
0
0
1
(B
).
 T
h
is
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
S
e
e
 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 2
.2
 

P
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
h
o
u
s
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
n
ts
 i
n
to
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b
y
 t
y
p
e
 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 

c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
s
 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 Q
3
. 
 

  
  
  
  
 

5
.4

. 
C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

E
x

p
e

ri
e

n
c

e
  

 

 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
E
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 d
a
ta
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
. 

.   
 

43



 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
  

 

K
P
I 
N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 
P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 
a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 

O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
* 
 

E
A
0
0
1
 

F
a
m
ili
e
s 
in
 B
&
B
 f
o
r 

lo
n
g
e
r 
th
a
n
 6
 w
e
e
k
s 

R
o
lli
n
g
 

m
o
n
th
 

0
 

0
 

N
/A
 

0
 

0
%
 

�
 

0
%
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 o
n
e
 o
f 
2
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 

w
it
h
 n
o
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 i
n
 b
e
d
 a
n
d
 b
re
a
k
fa
s
t.
 

Q
2
  

E
A
0
0
2
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

st
a
tu
to
ry
 h
o
m
e
le
ss
 

a
p
p
e
a
ls
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 o
n
 

ti
m
e
 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
1
3
/1
1
3
 

1
0
0
%
 

0
%
 

�
 

0
%
 

N
o
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

E
A
0
0
3
 

T
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

h
o
m
e
le
ss
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
s 

co
m
p
le
te
d
 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

J
u
n
 1
3
 

1
4
4
 

3
2
4
 

N
/A
 

3
3
8
 

4
.3
%
 

�
 

1
3
4
.7
%
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 i
n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 f
o
r 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 w
a
s
 p
re
v
e
n
te
d
 a
n
d
 

re
lie
v
e
d
 p
e
r 
1
,0
0
0
 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
, 
(Q

2
 

1
3
/1
4
).
 I
n
 1
2
/1
3
 i
t 
w
a
s
 1
6
 o
u
t 
o
f 
3
3
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 i
n
 a
b
s
o
lu
te
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
, 
a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 2
3
rd
 

in
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
r.
  
 

E
A
0
0
4
 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 d
a
y
s 
to
 r
e
-l
e
t 

e
m
p
ty
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s 

R
o
lli
n
g
 

m
o
n
th
 

1
6
.7
 

1
9
.5
 

N
/A
 

1
6
.6
 

1
4
.9
%
 

�
 

0
.6
%
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 i
n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
. 

H
H
0
0
5
 

E
n
d
 t
o
 e
n
d
 t
im
e
 f
o
r 

M
a
jo
r 
A
d
a
p
ta
ti
o
n
s 

(w
e
e
k
s)
 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

1
6
 

1
9
 

N
/A
 

1
6
.5
 

1
3
.2
%
 

�
 

4
.4
%
 

N
o
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

H
F
0
0
7
 

T
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

A
cc
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

a
rr
e
a
rs
 a
s 
p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 

o
f 
d
e
b
it
 

R
o
lli
n
g
 

m
o
n
th
 

4
.3
7
%
 

4
.0
9
%
 

5
6
8
2
8
1
/1
4
2
7
2
0
2
9
 

4
.0
%
 

2
.6
%
 

�
 

9
%
 

N
o
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

H
N
0
0
9
 

R
e
sp
o
n
si
v
e
 r
e
p
a
ir
s 

sa
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
7
.9
%
 

9
0
%
 

2
4
3
3
/2
4
7
8
 

9
8
.2
%
 

9
.1
%
 

�
 

0
.3
%
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 i
n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 

44



 

H
N
0
1
0
 

R
e
sp
o
n
si
v
e
 r
e
p
a
ir
s 

fi
rs
t 
ti
m
e
 f
ix
 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

6
9
.9
%
 

7
8
%
 

1
1
2
0
9
/1
4
2
0
2
 

7
8
.9
%
 

1
.2
%
 

�
 

1
2
.9
%
 

N
o
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
. 

H
N
0
1
1
 

T
e
n
a
n
t 
sa
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
 

w
it
h
 v
o
id
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
8
.1
%
 

9
0
%
 

1
1
5
/1
1
8
 

9
7
.5
%
 

8
.3
%
 

�
 

0
.7
%
 

N
o
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

H
N
0
1
3
 

S
a
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 g
a
s 

co
n
tr
a
ct
o
r 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
8
.9
%
 

9
0
%
 

8
3
0
/8
4
2
 

9
8
.6
%
 

9
.5
%
 

�
 

0
.3
%
 

N
o
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

H
N
0
1
4
 

S
a
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 c
a
ll 

h
a
n
d
lin
g
 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
6
.7
%
 

9
0
%
 

8
9
4
8
/8
9
9
6
 

9
9
.5
%
 

1
0
.5
%
 

�
 

2
.9
%
 

N
o
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

E
S
0
1
5
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
e
st
a
te
s 

ra
te
d
 a
s 
3
 o
r 
4
 

(s
a
ti
sf
a
ct
o
ry
 o
r 
v
e
ry
 

g
o
o
d
) 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
3
.5
%
 

9
3
%
 

1
1
5
/1
2
1
 

9
5
%
 

2
.2
%
 

�
 

1
.6
%
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
is
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q
u
a
rt
ile
 i
n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 

E
T
0
1
6
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
2
 y
e
a
r 

fl
e
x
ib
le
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 

cu
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

o
r 
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

R
o
lli
n
g
 

m
o
n
th
 

6
2
.7
%
 

7
0
%
 

1
5
/1
7
 

8
8
.2
%
 

2
6
.1
%
 

�
 

4
0
.6
%
 

N
o
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
. 

C
C
0
1
7
 

S
a
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 

m
a
jo
r 
w
o
rk
s 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
6
.9
%
 

9
5
%
 

9
6
8
/1
0
0
0
 

9
6
.8
%
 

1
.9
%
 

�
 

0
.1
%
 

N
o
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

C
C
0
1
9
 

F
re
e
d
o
m
 o
f 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r
e
sp
o
n
se
s 

o
n
 t
im
e
 

A
p
r 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

2
0
/2
0
 

1
0
0
%
 

0
%
 

�
 

0
%
 

N
o
 C
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 d
a
ta
 

 

45



46

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

   1
.1

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 U

N
IT

 D
A

S
H

B
O

A
R

D
 

 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
je
c
te
d
 y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 £
0
0
0
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
c
tu
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 £
0
0
0
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t/
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

0
 

(5
,5
3
7
) 

2
 

9
 

T
o
p
 3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 
K
e
y
 E
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 
1
. 
S
to
n
e
g
ro
v
e
 S
p
u
r 
R
o
a
d
: 

C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
P
h
a
s
e
 5
 (
A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 L
a
n
e
) 

a
n
d
 P
h
a
s
e
 6
b
 (
K
in
g
s
 L
a
n
e
 M
e
w
s
) 
h
a
s
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
1
9
8
 n
e
w
 h
o
m
e
s
. 

 
P
re
s
s
u
re
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
v
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 b
e
e
n
 r
a
is
e
d
 a
s
 a
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
. 
T
h
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
m
a
in
 a
 

c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
. 

R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
n
d
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
fu
n
d
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

2
. 
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 

to
 t
a
c
k
le
 p
o
o
r 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ri
v
a
te
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 s
e
c
to
r 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 :
 

 

•
 

T
h
e
 i
m
p
o
s
it
io
n
 o
f 
a
 £
1
0
,0
0
0
 f
in
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 

th
e
 o
w
n
e
rs
 o
f 
a
 h
o
u
s
e
 i
n
 m

u
lt
ip
le
 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 p
o
o
rl
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 

a
n
d
 i
n
 a
 p
o
o
r 
s
ta
te
 o
f 
 r
e
p
a
ir
  

 

•
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
s
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 c
a
re
 h
o
m
e
 b
y
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 
h
e
a
lt
h
 &
 s
a
fe
ty
 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
, 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
a
th
 o
f 
a
n
 e
ld
e
rl
y
 

re
s
id
e
n
t 
re
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 a
 f
in
e
 o
f 
£
1
7
5
,0
0
0
. 
 

 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 O
u
te
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
t 
N
o
rt
h
 F
in
c
h
le
y
 a
n
d
 C
ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
s
 c
lo
s
e
 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 d
e
a
d
lin
e
s
 s
e
t 
a
t 
3
1
s
t  

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 a
re
 m
e
t.
 

•
 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 

c
o
s
ts
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t.
 

•
 

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
te
a
m
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A
rc
h
it
e
c
ts
, 
th
e
 G
L
A
 a
n
d
 

in
te
rn
a
l 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 m

it
ig
a
te
 

th
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 
s
lip
p
a
g
e
. 

•
 

C
lo
s
e
r 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o
n
 

th
e
 i
n
p
u
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
ro
m
 o
th
e
r 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 

u
n
it
s
. 

•
 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 s
e
c
u
re
d
. 

 
3
. 
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
D
R
S
 

m
o
b
ili
s
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 D
u
e
 D
ili
g
e
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

m
in
im
a
l 
d
is
ru
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 

 

 
B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 C
ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 d
e
te
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 b
e
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 

if
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 n
o
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
. 
 

•
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 l
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
. 

•
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f
ro
m
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 B
re
n
t 

D
R

S
 –

 2
0

1
3
/1

4
 (

re
n

a
m

e
d

 “
R

e
”
 f

ro
m

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
) 

47



 
 

  1
.2
 T
O
P
 A
C
H
IE
V
E
M
E
N
T
S
 A
N
D
 A
C
T
IO
N
S
 

 K
e
y
 p
re
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
in
 r
e
a
d
in
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 J
o
in
t 
V
e
n
tu
re
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
c
in
g
 i
n
 O
c
to
b
e
r.
 I
n
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
th
is
 h
a
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
K
P
I 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 g
a
th
e
ri
n
g
 d
a
ta
 f
o
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 e
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 

D
u
e
 D
ili
g
e
n
c
e
 w
o
rk
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 t
h
e
 C
a
p
it
a
 m
o
b
ili
s
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
. 
 

 1
.3
 S
U
M
M
A
R
Y
 O
F
 T
H
E
 D
E
L
IV
E
R
Y
 U
N
IT
’S
 P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
 

 T
h
e
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 p
la
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 i
s
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
. 
S
o
m
e
 m
a
jo
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 m
a
in
ly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

a
re
 s
h
o
w
n
 a
s
 b
e
in
g
 a
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 G
ro
w
th
 &
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 B
o
a
rd
. 
T
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r’
s
 r
is
k
 p
ro
fi
le
 

re
fl
e
c
ts
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 f
ro
m
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 s
h
o
rt
fa
lls
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
e
m
e
te
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
re
m
a
to
ri
u
m
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 

p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 T
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 m
o
b
ili
s
a
ti
o
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 D
R
S
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
it
s
 c
o
re
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o
f 
s
o
m
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 a
re
a
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im
e
s
. 
  

 P
le
a
s
e
 n
o
te
, 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
q
u
a
rt
e
rs
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 s
e
e
 a
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
ti
a
l 
in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
K
P
I’
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 R
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

 1
.4
 A
S
S
E
S
S
M
E
N
T
 O
F
 S
U
P
E
R
 K
P
IS
 

 T
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
d
u
e
 f
o
r 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
. 

C
ro
s
s
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 B
o
a
rd
. 

48



 
 

2
. 
D
E
L
IV
E
R
IN
G
 T
H
E
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 P
L
A
N
 

2
.1
 H
o
w
 t
h
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it
 i
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm

in
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
it
s
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
  

C
P
I 

N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 
O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
  

6
0
0
1
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 o
n
 a
ll 
ro
a
d
s 

a
n
d
 f
o
o
tp
a
th
s 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

re
su
rf
a
ci
n
g
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
te
n
a
n
ce
 

w
o
rk
  

J
u
ly
 1
3
-

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

1
3
 

1
5
 

1
5
 

N
/A
 

2
7
 

8
0
%
 

�
 

8
0
%
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 -
 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

6
0
0
2
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
m
e
s 
 

J
u
ly
1
3
-

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

1
3
 

N
/A
 

1
1
6
 

N
/A
 

6
3
 

4
5
.7
%
 

N
/A
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 -
 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

6
0
0
3
 

B
ri
n
g
 e
m
p
ty
 p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s 
b
a
ck
 

in
to
 u
se
 

J
u
ly
 1
3
-

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

1
3
 

2
9
0
 

2
5
 

N
/A
 

1
8
6
 

6
4
4
%
 

�
 

3
5
.9
%
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 -
 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

4
0
0
1
 

M
a
k
e
 S
a
fe
 w
it
h
in
 4
8
 h
o
u
rs
 a
ll 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
l 
p
o
th
o
le
s
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
u
b
lic
  

J
u
ly
 1
3
-

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

1
3
 

7
3
%
 

8
3
%
 

3
0
4
/3
3
1
 

9
1
.8
%
 

1
0
.7
%
 

�
 

2
5
.9
%
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 -
 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

*T
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
p
re
v
io
u
s
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 u
s
e
d
 w
ill
 e
it
h
e
r 
b
e
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
r,
 o
r 
th
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
r.
 T
h
e
 s
a
m
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 y
e
a
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
a
n
n
u
a
l 

in
d
ic
a
to
rs
, 
c
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 (
w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 a
d
d
 u
p
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y
e
a
r 
a
n
d
 a
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
s
 ‘
y
e
a
r 
to
 d
a
te
’)
 a
n
d
 i
f 
th
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
fl
u
c
tu
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 E
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
a
d
e
 o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
n
g
 t
o
 r
o
a
d
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 w
o
rk
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 a
ft
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rp
e
rf
o
rm
in
g
 i
n
 Q
1
 

th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 n
o
w
 a
h
e
a
d
 o
f 
s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 b
y
 8
0
%
. 
W
e
 h
a
v
e
 e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
, 
a
 l
a
rg
e
 f
a
c
to
r 
b
e
in
g
 t
h
e
 s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
fl
u
c
tu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
u
m
m
e
r 
m
o
n
th
’s
 g
o
o
d
 w
e
a
th
e
r 
p
e
ri
o
d
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
d
 m
o
re
 w
o
rk
. 
  
  

 T
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
b
ri
n
g
in
g
 1
0
0
 e
m
p
ty
 h
o
m
e
s
 b
a
c
k
 i
n
to
 u
s
e
 h
a
s
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b
e
e
n
 e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
; 
th
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
u
e
 t
o
 l
e
s
s
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 c
a
s
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 b
ro
u
g
h
t 
b
a
c
k
 i
n
to
 u
s
e
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 t
h
e
 r
a
te
 o
f 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 d
ip
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
a
in
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
a
s
 m
o
re
 c
o
m
p
le
x
 c
a
s
e
s
 a
re
 

b
e
in
g
 t
a
c
k
le
d
 t
h
a
t 
re
q
u
ir
e
 m
o
re
 e
ff
o
rt
, 
ti
m
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
. 
 

 2
.2
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 &
 E
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
s
 

C
P
I 
N
O
 a
n
d
 t
it
le
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
  

6
0
0
2
 

C
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
n
e
w
 

a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
m
e
s
 

G
e

n
e

s
is

 h
a

s
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 f
ir

s
t 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 a

t 
Z

e
n

it
h

 H
o

u
s

e
, 

o
ri

g
in

a
ll

y
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 i

n
 Q

tr
 2

, 
w

il
l 

n
o

w
 b

e
 i

n
 O

c
t/

N
o

v
. 

T
h

e
re

fo
re

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
m

e
t 

o
u

r 
c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

q
tr

 2
 b

u
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 e

x
c

e
e

d
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

in
 q

tr
 3

. 
T

h
e

 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

t 
re

m
a

in
s

 a
c

h
ie

v
a

b
le

. 
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 l

e
v

e
l 

1
 (

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
c
t 

a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

) 

49



 
 

3
. 
C
O
N
T
R
A
C
T
 R
E
P
O
R
T
IN
G
 

3
.1
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
ta
l 
N
o
. 
o
f 

K
P
Is
 

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
  

P
o
s
it
iv
e
/n
e
u
tr
a
l 
D
o
T
 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 D
o
T
 

N
o
. 
o
f 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r 

G
re
e
n
 

G
re
e
n
 A
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 A
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 

1
2
 

1
0
  

(8
3
.3
%
) 

0
 

(0
%
) 

 0
 

(0
%
) 

 

1
 

(8
.3
%
) 

7
 

1
 

1
2
* 

*L
C
 0
2
9
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
N
o
te
: 
In
d
ic
a
ti
v
e
 K
P
Is
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
a
s
 n
o
w
 s
u
p
e
rs
e
d
e
d
 b
y
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
(c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
d
 O

c
to
b
e
r 
1
).
 

 3
.2
 H
o
w
 i
s
 t
h
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
it
s
 K
e
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 (
K
P
Is
):
 E

s
c
a

la
te

d
 K

P
Is

 o
n

ly
 

K
P
I 
N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 
P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 
O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
  

L
C
0
2
9
 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
F
u
ll 

O
ff
ic
ia
l 
S
e
a
rc
h
e
s
 (
o
n
lin
e
 

a
n
d
 p
o
s
t)
 *
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 w
it
h
 d
a
ta
 c
a
p
tu
re
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
W
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 Q

3
. 

R
E
G
0
3
9
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

N
IL
  

1
8
4
 

N
/A
 

6
3
 

6
5
.8
%
 

N
/A
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
- 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

 3
.3
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 &
 E
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
s
 

K
P
I 
N
O
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
  

L
C
0
2
9
 *
 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 t
im

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 f
o
r 
F
u
ll 

O
ff
ic
ia
l 
S
e
a
rc
h
e
s
 (
o
n
lin
e
 

a
n
d
 p
o
s
t)
 

Is
s
u
e
s
 w
e
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
a
ta
 c
a
p
tu
re
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
. 
T
h
is
 h
a
s
 p
re
v
e
n
te
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 b
e
in
g
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t 
fo
r 
th
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r.
 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 l

e
v

e
l 

1
 (

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
c
t 

a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

) 

50



 
 

R
E
G
0
3
9
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
s
 

G
e
n
e
s
is
  
h
a
s
  
c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
a
ff
o
rd
a
b
le
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 a
t 
Z
e
n
it
h
 H
o
u
s
e
, 
o
ri
g
in
a
lly
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 i
n
 Q

tr
 2
, 
w
ill
 n
o
w
 b
e
 i
n
 

O
c
t/
N
o
v
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 w
e
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
m
e
t 
o
u
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
fo
r 
Q
tr
 2
 b
u
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 e
x
c
e
e
d
 o
u
r 
ta
rg
e
t 
in
 Q

tr
 3
. 
T
h
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t 

re
m
a
in
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
. 
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 l

e
v

e
l 

1
 (

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
c
t 

a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

) 

 4
. 
R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 A
N
D
 V
A
L
U
E
 F
O
R
 M
O
N
E
Y
 

4
.1
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

O
ri
g
in
al
 

B
u
d
g
et

B
u
d
g
et
 V
1

Q
2 
fo
re
ca

st
V
ar
ia
ti
o
n

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

M
an

ag
ed

 B
ud

ge
ts

47
11

5
82

(3
3)

A
ll 

m
an

ag
ed

 b
ud

ge
ts

 o
th

er
 th

an
 O

LF
 w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 h

al
f 

ye
ar

 s
av

in
gs

-2
8.

7%

M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ee
77

4
1,

05
6

52
8

(5
28

)
R

ev
is

ed
 b

ud
ge

t i
nc

lu
de

s 
P

IT
 te

am
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

fr
om

 

A
du

lts

-5
0.

0%

B
lo

ck
ed

 D
R

S
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
56

1
56

1
D

R
S

 b
lo

ck
 c

on
tr

ac
t r

es
id

ua
l s

pe
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 

fr
om

 r
is

k 
re

se
rv

e

10
0.

0%

T
o
ta
l

82
1

1,
17
1

1,
17

1
-

   
   
   
   
   
   
  

0.
0%

V
ar
ia
ti
o
n
s

D
es

cr
ip
ti
o
n

%
 V
ar
ia
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
re
vi
se
d
 

b
u
d
g
et

C
o
m
m
en

ts

  4
.2
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

20
13
/1
4 
L
at
es
t 

A
p
p
ro
v
ed
 

B
u
d
g
et

A
d
d
it
io
n
s/
 

(D
el
et
io
n
s)
 -
 

Q
u
ar
te
r 
2

(S
lip
p
ag
e)
 / 

A
cc
el
er
at
ed
 

S
p
en
d
 -
 Q
u
ar
te
r 

2

20
13
/1
4 
B
u
d
g
et
 

(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
 

Q
u
ar
te
r 
2)

F
o
re
ca
st
 t
o
 y
ea
r-

en
d

V
ar
ia
n
ce
 f
ro
m
 

A
p
p
ro
v
ed
 

B
u
d
g
et

%
 s
lip
p
ag
e 

o
f 
20
13
/1
4 

A
p
p
ro
ve
d
 

B
u
d
g
et

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

%

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
T

fL
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

2
0
7 

(4
89

)
19

5
5
,9

1
3

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
9
1
3 

(2
9
4)

3
%

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
no

n-
T

fL
   

   
   

   
   

   
5,

6
5
7 

2
67

(3
0
0
)

5
,6

2
4

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
6
2
4 

(3
3
)

-5
%

P
ar

ki
ng

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3
0
5 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  1

7
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 -
 

32
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3
2
2 

1
7

0
%

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n

   
   

   
   

   
   

9,
3
2
6 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 -
 

(4
,2

5
0
)

5
,0

7
6

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
0
7
6 

(4
,2

5
0
)

-4
6
%

D
is

ab
le

d 
F

ac
ili

tie
s 

P
ro

je
ct

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
3
2
2 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 -
 

(3
0
0
)

2
,0

2
2

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
0
2
2 

(3
0
0)

-1
3
%

H
ou

si
ng

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2
7
3 

(2
73

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
  -

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

(2
73

)
0
%

O
th

er
 P

ro
je

ct
s

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
7
2
7 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1
00

 
(5

0
4
)

2
,3

2
3

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

2,
3
2
3 

(4
0
4)

-1
8
%

D
R

S
 D

el
iv

er
y 

U
n

it
26
,8
17

   
   
   
   
   

(3
78
)

(5
,1
59
)

21
,2
80

   
   
   
   
   

21
,2
80

   
   
   
   
   

(5
,5
37
)

-1
9%

 
 

51



 
 

5
. 
O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 O
F
 D
E
L
IV
E
R
Y
 U
N
IT
 

5
.1
 M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

 G
e
n
e
ra
lly
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
 g
o
o
d
 q
u
a
rt
e
r’
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
. 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im
e
s
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
o
u
g
h
 b
e
e
n
 d
is
a
p
p
o
in
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 h
a
v
e
 

u
n
d
e
rp
e
rf
o
rm
e
d
 w
it
h
 6
0
%
 a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 o
n
 t
im
e
. 
T
h
e
 b
ig
g
e
s
t 
a
re
a
 o
f 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 w
a
s
 i
n
 N
e
tw
o
rk
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
h
e
re
 5
7
%
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 

w
e
re
 a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 o
n
 t
im
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 a
n
 a
re
a
 o
f 
fo
c
u
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
a
m
 i
n
 Q
3
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 g
re
a
te
r 
s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r.
  

 F
re
e
d
o
m
 o
f 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 R
e
q
u
e
s
ts
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 1
0
0
%
 o
f 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 D
R
S
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r.
  
 

  5
.2
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 p
ro
je
c
ts
  
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
 

O
u
tt
u
rn
  

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

T
ra
v
e
l 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ry
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
P
la
tf
o
rm
s
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 P
h
a
s
e
 1
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
  

 
G
re
e
n
 

�
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
P
la
tf
o
rm
s
 P
h
a
s
e
 1
, 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
. 
P
h
a
s
e
 1
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

a
n
d
 p
a
p
e
r 
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 S
C
B
. 
C
e
le
b
ra
ti
o
n
 e
v
e
n
t 
to
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 

o
n
 9

th
 J
u
ly
. 
P
h
a
s
e
 2
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 a
t 

e
n
d
 o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
 

D
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 P
h
a
s
e
 2
 o
f 
th
e
 N
E
E
T
s
 p
la
tf
o
rm
 

to
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 b
y
, 
p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 n
o
t 
in
 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
r 
tr
a
in
in
g
 

(N
E
E
T
s
) 
a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
is
e
d
 b
y
 w
e
lf
a
re
 

re
fo
rm
; 
a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
s
k
ill
s
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
m
e
e
ts
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
lo
c
a
l 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
 

G
re
e
n
 

�
 

P
h
a
s
e
 2
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 –
 P
ri
n
c
e
s
 T
ru
s
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

(l
e
d
 b
y
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
) 
ro
u
n
d
 1
 n
o
w
 c
o
m
p
le
te
; 
ro
u
n
d
 2
 

to
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
n
 D
e
c
 2
0
1
3
. 
In
te
rn
s
h
ip
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
le
d
 b
y
 

S
h
a
ro
n
 D
a
C
u
n
h
a
 H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
) 
is
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 o
f 

b
e
in
g
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
. 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 (
w
it
h
 L
e
a
d
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r)
 a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 k
e
y
 

to
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
in
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

 

G
re
e
n
 

�
 

O
u
te
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 i
n
 y
e
a
r 
2
 o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
, 
fo
r 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
. 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
, 
d
e
s
ig
n
s
 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 w
it
h
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 d
e
s
ig
n
 n
o
w
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
. 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 w
o
rk
s
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 b
y
 e
n
d
 o
f 

O
c
to
b
e
r.
 W
id
e
r 
to
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 b
e
in
g
 l
e
d
 b
y
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 
fo
r 
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 a
n
d
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

52



 
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
 

O
u
tt
u
rn
  

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

T
ra
v
e
l 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ry
 

O
p
ti
m
is
e
 H
R
A
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

re
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

A
m
b
e
r 
�

 

 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
s
 f
o
r 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 h
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
o
ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 s
u
ff
e
re
rs
 f
ro
m
 d
e
m
e
n
ti
a
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 

ta
k
e
n
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
, 
p
e
n
d
in
g
 

c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 t
o
 S
a
v
ill
s
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 d
u
e
 

to
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 d
u
ri
n
g
 O
c
to
b
e
r.
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

G
re
e
n
 

�
  

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
, 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 

n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
v
e
n
e
d
. 

R
e
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
2
 c
re
m
a
to
rs
 w
it
h
 n
e
w
 

m
e
rc
u
ry
 a
b
a
te
m
e
n
t 
c
re
m
a
to
rs
. 

R
e
d
 
�

 

 

S
tr
u
c
tu
ra
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 f
lo
o
r 
o
f 
th
e
 c
re
m
a
to
ry
 h
a
v
e
 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 2
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
w
e
e
k
’s
 s
lip
p
a
g
e
 o
n
 h
a
n
d
o
v
e
r 
a
n
d
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 c
o
s
ts
 (
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 i
s
 c
o
n
ta
in
a
b
le
 w
it
h
in
 

c
u
rr
e
n
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t)
. 
 

  5
.3
 R
is
k
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
  
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
s
 t
h
e
 5
 X
 5
 m
a
tr
ix
 ‘
h
e
a
t 
m
a
p
’ 
h
ig
h
lig
h
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ri
s
k
s
 a
t 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 L
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
a
te
d
: 

 

IMPACT 

S
C
O
R
E
 

P
R
O
B
A
B
IL
IT
Y
  

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

R
a

re
 

U
n

li
k

e
ly

 
P

o
s

s
ib

le
 

L
ik

e
ly

 
A

lm
o

s
t 

C
e

rt
a

in
 

5
 

C
a

ta
s

tr
o

p
h

ic
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

4
 

M
a

jo
r 

0
 

1
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

3
 

M
o

d
e

ra
te

 
0
 

1
 

3
 

1
 

0
 

2
 

M
in

o
r 

0
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

1
 

N
e

g
li

g
ib

le
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

   

R
is

k
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ta
ry

 f
o

r 
D

e
li

v
e
ry

 U
n

it
: 

  
 R

is
k
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 o

n
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 

 T
h
e
 r

is
k
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
k
e
y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 b
u
d
g
e
ts

 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
ri
s
k
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 B

re
n
t 
C

ro
s
s
 C

ri
c
k
le

w
o
o
d
  
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t

h
e
s
e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 

 

53



 
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
is
k
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
lis
ts
 t
h
o
s
e
 r
is
k
s
 r
a
te
d
 a
s
 1
2
 a
n
d
 a
b
o
v
e
: 
 

 

R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

R
is
k
 

S
ta
tu
s
 
B
o
a
rd
 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

(t
im
in
g
) 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

E
T
0
0
7
5
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 F
u
n
d
in
g
 i
s
 n
o
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 t
o
 m

a
in
ta
in
 a
ll 
fo
o
tp
a
th
s
 

a
n
d
 r
o
a
d
s
 i
n
 a
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 t
h
a
t 
p
re
v
e
n
ts
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 d
is
ru
p
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
s
 

s
a
fe
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 P
u
b
lic
. 
 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

A
lm

o
s
t 

C
e
rt
a
in
 

5
 

H
ig
h
 

 2
0
  

S
u
b
m
it
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
b
id
s
 w
it
h
 

ju
s
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 d
a
ta
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 u
s
in
g
 

A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
te
c
h
n
iq
u
e
s
, 

m
o
d
e
lli
n
g
 e
tc
. 
C
a
p
it
a
l 
B
id
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
. 

 

T
o
le
ra
te
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
  

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

A
lm

o
s
t 

C
e
rt
a
in
 

5
 

H
ig
h
 

 2
0
  

E
T
0
0
7
6
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
t 
H
e
n
d
o
n
 

C
e
m
e
te
ry
 &
 C
re
m
a
to
ri
u
m
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 

le
a
d
 t
o
 f
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
b
u
d
g
e
te
d
 

in
c
o
m
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
  

L
ik
e
ly
 

4
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

1
2
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 H
C
C
 a
s
 t
h
e
 

fu
n
e
ra
l 
v
e
n
u
e
 o
f 
c
h
o
ic
e
 i
n
 B
a
rn
e
t.
 

 

T
re
a
t 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

M
in
o
r 

2
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

6
 

E
T
0
0
7
7
 

S
7
3
 A
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 (
 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 o
u
tl
in
e
  

p
la
n
n
in
g
  
c
o
n
s
e
n
t)
  
is
 r
e
fu
s
e
d
  

 

C
a
ta
s
tr
o
p
h
ic
 

5
  

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

H
ig
h
  

1
5
 

W
e
e
k
ly
 P
re
-a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 

ta
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 L
B
B
 P
la
n
n
in
g
, 
T
fL
, 

H
a
m
m
e
rs
o
n
 U
K
, 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
 L
if
e
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts
 t
o
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 a
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
 

E
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
te
a
m
 

a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 

 

T
re
a
t 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 
C
a
ta
s
tr
o
p
h
ic
 

5
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

1
0
 

E
T
0
0
7
8
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
- 
T
h
e
 B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 

C
ri
c
k
le
w
o
o
d
 P
D
A
  
/ 
C
R
L
 S
e
p
a
ra
ti
o
n
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 n
o
t 
s
ig
n
e
d
 

 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

1
2
 

G
V
A
 /
 C
B
R
E
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 t
o
 a
d
v
is
e
 L
B
B
. 
 

H
a
m
m
e
rs
o
n
 U
K
 h
a
v
e
 s
im

ila
rl
y
 

a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 D
T
Z
. 
 T
h
e
 t
e
a
m
 i
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

to
 a
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

T
re
a
t 

Q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
  

2
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

H
ig
h
 

8
 

 
 

54



 
 

5
.4
 E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
  
  

E
q
u
a
li
ti
e
s
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

 

 

D
R
S
 i
s
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 P
o
lic
y
. 
N
e
w
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
is
 a
re
a
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
: 

1
. 
O
v
e
ra
ll 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 D
R
S
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
s
 

2
. 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
im
p
ro
v
e
d
 e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
a
g
re
e
d
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 m
ile
s
to
n
e
s
 

3
. 
Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 B
a
rn
e
t 
a
s
 a
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 l
iv
e
, 
m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
s
 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 R
e
s
id
e
n
t 
P
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
 S
u
rv
e
y
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 i
s
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 t
o
 Q
3
 t
o
 a
llo
w
 t
im
e
 f
o
r 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
rp
re
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

d
a
ta
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 s
e
rv
e
 a
s
 a
n
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
o
f 
h
o
w
 w
e
ll 
D
R
S
 i
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm
in
g
. 
 

 

 5
.5
. 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
E
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
  
 

 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
E
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 d
a
ta
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 Q
3
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
u
rv
e
y
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
. 

   
 

55



 
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 

K
P
I 
N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 
P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 
O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
  

B
C
0
1
0
 

M
e
e
t 
b
u
ild
in
g
 r
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
in
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le
s
 *
 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
7
.9
%
 

9
2
%
 

2
2
4
/2
2
7
 

9
8
.7
%
 

7
.3
%
 

�
 

0
.8
%
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
- 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

E
H
0
1
1
 

(a
) 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

(p
ri
o
ri
ty
 2
) 
 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
5
.2
%
 

9
0
%
 

1
8
2
3
/1
9
3
3
 

9
4
.3
%
 

4
.8
%
 

�
 

0
.9
%
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
- 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

E
H
0
1
2
 

(f
) 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 S
a
fe
ty
 

In
sp
e
ct
io
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

N
/A
 

N
il 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
- 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

E
H
0
1
2
 

(g
) 

A
n
im
a
l 
W
e
lf
a
re
 

In
sp
e
ct
io
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

2
/2
 

1
0
0
%
 

0
%
 

�
 

0
%
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
- 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

E
H
0
1
2
 

(h
) 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 o
r 
D
R
S
 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
 i
n
 

re
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
T
ra
d
in
g
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

8
4
.2
%
 

9
5
%
 

N
/A
  

9
8
.3
%
 

3
.5
%
 

�
 

1
6
.7
%
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
- 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

E
H
0
1
2
 

(j
) 

K
n
o
w
n
 l
ic
e
n
sa
b
le
 H
M
O
s 

a
re
 l
ic
e
n
se
d
 i
n
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 

m
a
n
n
e
r 
 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

3
3
.3
%
 

3
0
%
 

4
/1
1
 

3
6
.4
%
 

2
1
.2
%
 

�
 

9
.2
%
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
- 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

E
H
0
1
2
 

(l
) 

In
cr
e
a
se
d
 c
u
st
o
m
e
r 

sa
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
 o
f 
cu
st
o
m
e
r 

se
rv
ic
e
s 
(s
ta
tu
to
ry
) 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

6
1
.4
%
 

5
9
%
 

3
6
/5
6
 

6
4
.3
%
 

9
%
 

�
 

4
.7
%
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
- 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

E
H
0
1
4
 

(a
) 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
a
te
g
o
ry
 1
 

h
a
z
a
rd
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

J
u
l 
1
3
- 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

3
5
 

3
8
 

N
/A
 

4
2
 

1
0
.5
%
 

�
 

2
0
%
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
- 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

56



 
 

T
S
L
0
3
0
 

(b
) 

E
ff
e
ct
iv
e
n
e
ss
 o
f 

L
ic
e
n
si
n
g
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

N
/A
 

1
5
%
 

N
il 

0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

N
/A
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
- 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

R
E
G
0
3
7
 

B
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

C
o
n
tr
o
ls
 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

1
0
0
%
 

8
5
%
 

n
/a
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
7
.6
%
 

�
 

0
%
 

N
o
 B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
- 

lo
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

   
 

57



58

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

   1
.1

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 U

N
IT

 D
A

S
H

B
O

A
R

D
 

 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
ro
je
c
te
d
 y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 £
0
0
0
[1
]  

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
c
tu
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 £
0
0
0
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

0
 

(2
0
) 

N
/A
 

1
2
 

 1
.2

 T
O

P
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
N

D
 A

C
T

IO
N

S
 

T
o
p
 3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 
K
e
y
 C
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

8
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 4
1
3
 s
ta
ff
 (
3
8
5
 F
T
E
) 
tr
a
n
s
fe
rr
e
d
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 w
it
h
 n
o
 m
a
jo
r 
o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
is
s
u
e
s
 

a
ri
s
in
g
. 
T
h
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
f 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
m
a
in
s
 g
o
o
d
. 

 
B
a
s
e
lin
e
 o
f 
C
iv
ic
 E
s
ta
te
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 

3
rd
 p
a
rt
y
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
w
e
re
 p
o
o
r.
 

C
a
p
it
a
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 M
o
u
c
h
e
l 

a
n
d
 P
e
lli
n
g
s
 t
o
 g
e
t 
th
e
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 

s
u
rv
e
y
s
 r
e
-d
o
n
e
 w
h
e
re
 q
u
a
lit
y
 p
o
o
r.
 

G
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 P
S
N
 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 Z
e
ro
 T
o
le
ra
n
c
e
 

p
o
lic
y
. 
B
o
th
 C
a
p
it
a
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
re
 n
o
w
 

fo
c
u
s
s
in
g
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 j
o
in
t 
e
ff
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
- 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 a
n
d
 

o
f 
th
e
 7
5
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o
ri
g
in
a
lly
, 
o
n
ly
 3
 

re
m
a
in
. 

 
P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
k
e
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

fo
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
p
e
e
d
 o
f 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 w
a
s
 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
a
rg
e
t 
b
u
t 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 a
s
 t
h
is
 i
s
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 i
n
 D
e
c
-1
2
 o
f 

a
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 m
o
d
e
l 
u
s
in
g
 1
6
 s
ta
ff
 t
h
a
t 

C
a
p
it
a
 s
ta
te
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
u
ilt
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
ir
 o
ff
e
r 
o
r 
p
ri
c
e
 

(B
A
F
O
 i
n
 O
c
t-
1
2
),
 w
h
ic
h
 a
s
s
u
m
e
d
 a
ll 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 s
ta
ff
 w
e
re
 l
o
c
a
te
d
 o
u
ts
id
e
 B
a
rn
e
t.
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
c
o
s
ts
 v
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 

e
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 B
o
a
rd
 f
o
r 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 o
n
 a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 c
o
s
t.
 

E
s
ta
te
s
 -
 s
u
c
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s
h
o
rt
 n
o
ti
c
e
 

re
lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 S
o
m
a
li 
B
ra
v
a
n
e
s
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 t
o
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
a
lt
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
re
p
a
ri
n
g
 f
o
r 
a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 F
ir
e
 F
ig
h
te
rs
 

S
tr
ik
e
. 

 
 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  C
S

G
 –

 2
0
1

3
/1

4
 Q

2
 

59



 
 

 1
.3
 S
U
M
M
A
R
Y
 O
F
 T
H
E
 D
E
L
IV
E
R
Y
 U
N
IT
’S
 P
E
R
F
O
R
M
A
N
C
E
 

 
 

T
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r’
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 2
 m
o
n
th
s
 (
J
u
l 
&
 A
u
g
) 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 a
n
d
 1
 m
o
n
th
 (
S
e
p
) 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 C
a
p
it
a
 o
n
 1
s
t 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ry
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 -

v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 i
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 o
r 
e
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
C
a
p
it
a
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 f
o
rw
a
rd
. 
F
o
r 
th
e
 m
o
n
th
 o
f 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r,
 n
o
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
re
d
it
s
 w
e
re
 d
u
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
o
s
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 w
h
e
re
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
re
d
it
s
 a
re
 c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 m
o
n
th
ly
. 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
s
a
w
 t
h
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 f
ro
m
 B
a
rn
e
t 
to
 C
a
p
it
a
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 w
e
re
 l
a
rg
e
ly
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
is
 p
e
ri
o
d
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
 m
a
jo
r 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
ta
ff
 i
s
 t
o
 b
e
 a
p
p
la
u
d
e
d
. 
G
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty
 o
r 
th
e
 J
R
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
is
 p
e
ri
o
d
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
 e
ff
o
rt
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r,
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
a
ll 
K
P
I’
s
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 o
v
e
r 
Q
1
 

is
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
e
ff
o
rt
s
 o
f 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

 S
o
m
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
tu
a
l 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 d
e
la
y
, 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
th
e
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
T
e
a
m
 i
s
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 C
a
p
it
a
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 i
f 
b
a
s
e
lin
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
s
ts
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a
d
ju
s
tm

e
n
t 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
lib
ra
ry
 c
a
lls
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
w
e
e
k
 o
f 
A
u
g
u
s
t.
 A
ll 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 a
re
 

b
e
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 C
a
p
it
a
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 L
B
B
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
T
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 a
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
t 
th
e
 m
o
n
th
ly
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 B
o
a
rd
. 

 C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 b
a
s
e
 l
in
in
g
 o
f 
s
o
m
e
 K
P
I 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 o
c
c
u
rr
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 

th
e
 J
R
. 
In
 s
u
m
m
a
ry
 t
h
e
s
e
 a
re
 a
s
 f
o
llo
w
s
; 

- 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 &
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
: 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 i
ts
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 m
o
d
e
l 
in
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 c
la
im
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 a
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
lo
c
a
te
d
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 p
e
rs
o
n
n
e
l.
 T
h
is
 m
o
d
e
l 
h
a
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 t
u
rn
a
ro
u
n
d
 t
im
e
s
 

b
u
t 
is
 m
o
re
 e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
 t
o
 o
p
e
ra
te
 t
h
a
n
 C
a
p
it
a
 h
a
d
 a
s
s
u
m
e
d
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 b
a
c
k
 o
ff
ic
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
. 
A
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

is
 n
o
w
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 t
o
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
c
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 m
o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
. 

- 
E
s
ta
te
s
 
C
o
n
d
it
io
n
 
&
 
C
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 
S
u
rv
e
y
s
: 
th
e
 
E
s
ta
te
s
 
fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 
is
s
u
e
s
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 
to
 

d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
s
 d
a
ta
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
la
y
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 L
B
B
 C
lie
n
t 
a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
te
a
m
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 C
a
p
it
a
 t
o
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 a
n
d
 e
x
p
e
c
t 
to
 h
a
v
e
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
s
 f
u
lly
 a
g
re
e
d
 i
n
 Q
3
. 

- 
A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
a
ll 
v
o
lu
m
e
s
 
fr
o
m
 
th
e
 
L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
e
re
 
ta
k
e
n
 
in
to
 
th
e
 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
C
e
n
tr
e
 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 C
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t 

w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
n
y
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 o
r 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 p
la
c
e
d
 s
o
m
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
tr
a
in
 o
n
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
. 
L
B
B
 a
n
d
 

C
a
p
it
a
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 t
o
g
e
th
e
r 
to
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
 t
h
is
 i
s
s
u
e
 a
n
d
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
c
o
s
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
. 

  
  

 1
.4
 A
S
S
E
S
S
M
E
N
T
 O
F
 S
U
P
E
R
 K
P
IS
 

N
o
 S
u
p
e
r 
K
P
Is
 d
u
e
 t
o
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
 p
e
ri
o
d
 

60



 
 

2
. 
C
O
N
T
R
A
C
T
 R
E
P
O
R
T
IN
G
 

2
.1
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

T
o
ta
l 
N
o
. 
o
f 

K
P
Is
 

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
  

P
o
s
it
iv
e
/n
e
u
tr
a
l 
D
o
T
 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 D
o
T
 

N
o
. 
o
f 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r 

G
re
e
n
 

G
re
e
n
 A
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 A
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 

3
1
 

1
5
 

(7
5
%
) 

1
 

(5
%
) 

 1
 

(5
%
) 

 

3
 

(1
5
%
) 

2
0

 
0

 
2
0
 

 2
.2
 H
o
w
 i
s
 t
h
e
 D
e
li
v
e
ry
 U
n
it
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
it
s
 K
e
y
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 (
K
P
Is
):
 E

s
c
a

la
te

d
 K

P
Is

 o
n

ly
 

 K
P
I 
N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 
P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 
O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
  

C
S
0
0
1
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
cu
st
o
m
e
r 

sa
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
ta
ct
 

ce
n
tr
e
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
fa
ce
 

to
 f
a
ce
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
w
e
b
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 &
 

fi
rs
t 
co
n
ta
ct
 e
-m

a
il 
se
rv
ic
e
 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

4
5

%
 

6
0

%
 

6
,4

0
1

/1
2

,0
7

7
 

5
3

%
 

1
1

.7
%

 
�
 

1
8

.3
%
 

B
e

s
t 

a
v

g
 G

o
v

M
e

tr
ic

 
re

s
u

lt
 i

s
 1

, 
th

e
 w

o
rs

t 
is

 -
1

. 
In

 Q
2

 B
a

rn
e

t 
s

c
o

re
d

 0
.2

, 
a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

th
e

 o
th

e
r 

7
4

 
G

o
v

M
e

tr
ic

 c
o

u
n

c
ils

 
th

e
 t

o
p

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 

th
ir

d
 e

x
c

e
e

d
e

d
 0
.5

, 
b

o
tt

o
m

 t
h

ir
d

 s
c

o
re

d
 

b
e

lo
w

 -
0
.7
, 

s
o

 B
a

rn
e

t 
w

a
s

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

id
d

le
 

th
ir

d
. 

C
S
0
0
2
 

F
ir
st
 c
o
n
ta
ct
 r
e
so
lu
ti
o
n
 –
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 c
a
lls
 

w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
 q
u
e
ry
/r
e
q
u
e
st
 w
a
s 

re
so
lv
e
d
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
tr
a
n
sf
e
r 
to
 

a
n
o
th
e
r 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
o
r 
te
a
m

1
 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

1
5

.5
%

 
3

5
%

2
  

5
5

,9
2

5
/1

8
0

,4
7

0
 

3
1

%
 

1
1

%
 

�
 

9
9

.5
%
 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
 T
h
is
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
s
 s
w
it
c
h
b
o
a
rd
 c
a
lls
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 i
t 
is
 p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 a
 ‘
tr
a
n
s
fe
r’
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
s
 c
a
lls
 a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 b
y
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 w
e
 a
re
 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
b
le
 

to
 v
e
ri
fy
 w
it
h
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
ir
 q
u
e
ry
 o
r 
re
q
u
e
s
t 
w
a
s
 r
e
s
o
lv
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 v
ir
tu
a
l 
a
g
e
n
t.
 

 

61



 
 

K
P
I 
N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 
P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 
O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
  

F
IN
0
1
2
 

%
 o
r 
£
 v
a
ri
a
n
ce
 t
o
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 

th
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

fo
re
ca
st
 o
r 
a
ct
u
a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 f
ro
m
 

la
te
st
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

J
u

l 
1

3
- 

S
e

p
t 

1
3

 
1

.1
%

 
0

%
 

2
9

6
4

6
0

/2
9

2
9

5
1

 
1

%
 

N
/A

 
�
 

8
.8

%
 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

F
IN
0
1
3
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s 

im
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
: 
q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 p
ro
ce
ss
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 

J
u

l 
1

3
- 

S
e

p
t 

1
3

 
8

6
%

 
9

1
%

 
1

2
8

3
1

/1
4

4
9

2
 

8
8

.5
%

 
2

.7
%

 
�
 

3
%
 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

P
R
0
2
6
b
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
w
o
rk
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce
 

p
la
ce
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 n
e
w
 

p
ro
cu
re
m
e
n
t 
a
ct
iv
it
y
 &
 N
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
w
o
rk
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
ce
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s 
w
it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

su
p
p
ly
 c
h
a
in
 

J
u

l 
1

3
- 

S
e

p
t 

1
3

 
0

 
4

 
N

/A
 

0
 

1
0

0
%

 
�
  

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

  2
.3
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 &
 E
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
s
 

K
P
I 
N
O
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
  

C
S

0
0

1
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 
c

o
n

ta
c

t 
c

e
n

tr
e

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 
s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
fa

c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 
s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
w

e
b

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 &

 f
ir

s
t 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

e
-m

a
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

L
e

v
e

l 
2

 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 (

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 w

it
h

in
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 U
n

it
) 

T
h

e
 

o
v

e
ra

ll 
s

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 
le

v
e

ls
 

a
re

 
d

ri
v

e
n

 
b

y
 

lo
w

 
s

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 
w

it
h

 
F

a
c

e
 

to
 

F
a

c
e

 
a

n
d

 W
e

b
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 
s

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 
is

 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

t 
9

1
%

, 
b

u
t 

lo
w

e
r 

v
o

lu
m

e
s

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
s

. 
A

c
ti

o
n

 i
s

 b
e

in
g

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 r

e
v

ie
w

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

in
g

 l
e

v
e

ls
 i

n
 t

h
e

 F
a

c
e

 t
o

 F
a

c
e

 
o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 a

n
y

 q
u

ic
k

 w
in

s
. 

L
o

w
 l

e
v

e
ls

 o
f 

s
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
e

 w
e

b
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 W

a
s

te
 &

 R
e

c
y

c
lin

g
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 l
a

c
k

 o
f 

c
le

a
r 

C
P

Z
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ri

e
s

. 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

2
 S

o
m

e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
t 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s

it
io

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 a
s

 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 i

n
c

o
rp

o
ra

te
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

S
G

 C
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
–

 S
c

h
e

d
u

le
 4

, 
P

a
ym

e
n

t 
m

e
c

h
a

n
is

m
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ic

e
s

 w
e

re
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

 w
it

h
 a

 1
s
t  A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

3
 a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 

d
a

te
. 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i

n
 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
c

ir
c

u
m

s
ta

n
c

e
s

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
iv

e
 m

o
n

th
 d

e
la

y
 h

a
v

e
 i

m
p

a
c

te
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
lin

e
s

. 
A

n
y

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 c
a

n
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 v

ia
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 m

u
s

t 
b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 C

S
G

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

 B
o

a
rd

 
 

62



 
 

K
P
I 
N
O
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
  

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it

s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s

s
 t

h
e

s
e

 i
s

s
u

e
s

. 

C
S

0
0

2
 

F
ir

s
t 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

re
s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 –

 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
te

le
p

h
o

n
e

 c
a

lls
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 
q

u
e

ry
/r

e
q

u
e

s
t 

w
a

s
 

re
s

o
lv

e
d

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

tr
a

n
s

fe
r 

to
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
o

ff
ic

e
r 

o
r 

te
a

m
 

L
e

v
e

l 
1

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

A
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
d

, 
a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 i

s
 l

im
it

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
c

a
lls

 f
o

r 
R

e
v

e
n

u
e

s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 b
e

in
g

 
tr

a
n

s
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 b
a

c
k

 o
ff

ic
e

. 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s

 t
h

e
s

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
re

 e
x

p
e

c
te

d
 

to
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 t

h
e

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 r
a

te
 o

f 
fi

rs
t 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

re
s

o
lu

ti
o

n
. 

F
IN

0
1

2
 

%
 o

r 
£

 v
a

ri
a

n
c

e
 t

o
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 V

a
ri

a
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
fo

re
c

a
s

t 
o

r 
a

c
tu

a
l 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 f

ro
m

 l
a

te
s

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 

L
e

v
e

l 
1

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

It
 h

a
s

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 T

a
rg

e
t 

p
ro

fi
le

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s
 a

d
ju

s
ti

n
g

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 f
a

c
t 

th
e

 0
%

 o
v

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 i
s

 a
n

 e
n

d
-o

f-
ye

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t.

 T
h

e
 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 i

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s

 o
f 

b
e

in
g

 a
g

re
e

d
. 

T
h

e
 F

in
a

n
c

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
s

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 d

ir
e

c
tl

y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 U
n

it
s

 t
o

 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

re
s

s
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

. 
T

h
e

 m
a

in
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 r
e

la
te

 t
o

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

, 
S

tr
e

e
t 

s
c

e
n

e
 a

n
d

 T
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

G
ro

u
p

. 
 

  

F
IN

0
1

3
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
: 

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c

e
s

s
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

 

L
e

v
e

l 
1

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 s

a
v

in
g

s
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

d
 -

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 o
f 

£
3

1
6

k
. 

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 w

o
rk

 i
s

 b
e

in
g

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 S

E
N

 A
s

s
is

te
d

 T
ra

v
e

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
to

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 s
a

v
in

g
s

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 t
o

 f
in

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
lo

n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 s
a

v
in

g
s

; 
D

R
S

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

d
 o

n
 1

s
t 

O
c

to
b

e
r.

  
O

n
ly

 h
a

lf
 y

e
a

r 
s

a
v

in
g

 o
f 

£
8

7
8

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

; 
£

2
4

9
k

 o
n

 S
P

A
 p

a
rk

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

t.
  

A
 P

a
rk

in
g

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 p

la
n

 i
s

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 m
it

ig
a

te
 t

h
is

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e

r 
£

6
9

k
 

o
n

 o
ff

-s
tr

e
e

t 
to

 b
e

 d
e

fe
rr

e
d

 u
n

ti
l 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 a
n

d
 i

n
c

o
rp

o
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 m

o
v

in
g

 v
io

la
ti

o
n

s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
£

2
8

k
 t

e
x

ti
le

 i
n

c
o

m
e

, 
s

h
a

re
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
c

t 
d

e
la

y
e

d
, 

to
 b

e
 s

u
b

s
ti

tu
te

d
 i

n
to

 w
a

s
te

 t
ra

n
s

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
 

E
S

T
0

1
8

a
 

C
iv

ic
 E

s
ta

te
s

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

L
e

v
e

l 
2

 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 (

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 w

it
h

in
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 U
n

it
) 

N
o

 K
P

I 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
u

t 
th

e
re

 i
s

 a
n

 o
n

-g
o

in
g

 d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 t
o

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
K

P
Is

. 
T

h
e

 K
P

Is
 a

n
d

 P
Is

 f
o

r 
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 c
a

n
n

o
t 

b
e

 f
u

lly
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 a

s
 t

h
e

re
 a

re
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 i

s
s

u
e

s
 t

o
 f

in
a

lis
e

 t
h

e
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 &
 C

o
m

p
lia

n
c

e
 s

u
rv

e
y

s
 w

it
h

 
P

e
lli

n
g

s
 a

n
d

 M
o

u
c

h
e

l.
  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il 
a

n
d

 C
a

p
it

a
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 s
e

e
k

 a
 r

e
s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

 d
is

p
u

te
 w

it
h

 T
h

ir
d

 P
a

rt
y

 s
u

p
p

lie
rs

 
a

n
d

 f
in

a
lis

e
 a

n
 a

c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 

 
E

S
T

0
1

8
b

 
B

u
ild

in
g

 K
e

y
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 
C

o
m

p
lia

n
c

e
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 f
in

a
lis

e
d

 a
t 

e
n

d
 o

f 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i

n
 Q

3
. 

E
S

T
0

2
0

 
A

s
s

e
t 

D
is

p
o

s
a

ls
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
c

e
ip

ts
 T

a
rg

e
t 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 f
in

a
lis

e
d

 a
t 

e
n

d
 o

f 
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i

n
 Q

3
 

63



 
 

K
P
I 
N
O
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
  

P
R

0
2

5
 

A
ll 

C
o

m
p

le
x

/H
ig

h
 R

is
k

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 i
n

 a
c

c
o

rd
a

n
c

e
 

w
it

h
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 

R
u

le
s

 (
C

P
R

's
) 

a
n

d
 C

o
d

e
 

o
f 

P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 

L
e

v
e

l 
1

  
P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

B
o

a
rd

 a
re

 d
e

c
id

in
g

 f
in

a
l 

s
tr

a
te

g
y

 f
o

r 
th

is
 K

P
I.

  
T

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 i
n

 Q
3

. 

P
R

0
2

6
b

 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 n
e

w
 p

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

a
c

ti
v

it
y

 &
 N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 
w

it
h

in
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

u
p

p
ly

 
c

h
a

in
 

L
e

v
e

l 
1

 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 n
o

 e
x

a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 e
x

p
e

ri
e

n
c

e
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il.
  

T
h

e
 p

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 i

s
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 

n
e

w
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s

u
p

p
lie

rs
 

s
o

 
th

a
t 

c
o

n
tr

a
c

ts
 

c
a

n
 

b
e

 
a

lig
n

e
d

 
to

 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

b
o

th
 

w
o

rk
 

e
x

p
e

ri
e

n
c

e
 

a
n

d
 

a
p

p
re

n
ti

c
e

s
h

ip
s

. 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 
a

re
 

e
x

p
e

c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
t 

b
y

 e
n

d
 o

f 
Y

e
a

r,
 

 

  
 

64



 
 

3
. 
R
E
S
O
U
R
C
E
S
 A
N
D
 V
A
L
U
E
 F
O
R
 M
O
N
E
Y
 

3
.1
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

O
ri
g
in
al
 

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
et
 V
1
Q
2 
fo
re
c
as
t

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

£
00
0

£
00
0

£0
00

£0
00

C
S

G
2
4
,1

7
8

2
4
,5

4
6

2
4
,5

4
6

-
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
0
.0

%

T
o
ta
l

2
4,
17
8

24
,5
46

24
,5
46

-
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

0
.0

%

%
 V
a
ri
at
io
n
 

o
f 
re
v
is
ed
 

b
u
d
g
e
t

D
e
sc
ri
p
ti
o
n

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s

C
o
m
m
en
ts

 3
.2
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

20
13
/1
4 
L
at
es
t 

A
p
p
ro
ve
d
 

B
u
d
g
et

A
d
d
it
io
n
s/
 

(D
el
et
io
n
s)
 -
 

Q
u
ar
te
r 
2

(S
lip
p
ag
e)
 / 

A
cc
el
er
at
ed
 

S
p
en
d
 -
 Q
u
ar
te
r 

2

20
13
/1
4 
B
u
d
g
et
 

(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
 

Q
u
ar
te
r 
2)

F
o
re
ca
st
 t
o
 y
ea
r-

en
d

V
ar
ia
n
ce
 f
ro
m
 

A
p
p
ro
ve
d
 

B
u
d
g
et

%
 s
lip
p
ag
e 

o
f 
20
13
/1
4 

A
p
p
ro
ve
d
 

B
u
d
g
et

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

%

C
S

G
 D

el
iv

er
y 

U
ni

t
6,

83
8

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
0)

6,
81

8
   

   
   

   
   

  
6,

81
8

   
   

   
   

   
  

(2
0)

0%

C
S

G
 D

el
iv

er
y 

U
n

it
6,
83
8

   
   
   
   
   
  

-
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

(2
0)

6,
81
8

   
   
   
   
   
  

6,
81
8

   
   
   
   
   
  

(2
0)

0%

   4
. 
O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 O
F
 D
E
L
IV
E
R
Y
 U
N
IT
 

4
.1
 M
a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
h
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

T
h
is
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
s
a
w
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 f
ro
m
 a
n
 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 t
o
 C
a
p
it
a
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1

s
t  
o
f 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ry
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ts
 2
 m

o
n
th
s
 i
n
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 1
 m

o
n
th
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
d
e
liv
e
ry
. 
G
iv
e
n
 t
h
e
 u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty
 o
r 
th
e
 J
R
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
is
 p
e
ri
o
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

tr
a
n
s
it
io
n
 e
ff
o
rt
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r,
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th
a
t 
a
ll 
K
P
Is
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 a
n
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 o
v
e
r 
Q
1
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
e
ff
o
rt
s
 

o
f 
a
ll 
s
ta
ff
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
. 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
  

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n
o
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
a
rg
e
t 
in
 t
w
o
 K
P
Is
 t
h
e
 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
tr
a
v
e
l 
is
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 p
u
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 w
ill
 

b
e
 m

e
t 
in
 Q
3
. 
In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
a
ll 
v
o
lu
m
e
s
 w
e
re
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is
 p
e
ri
o
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w
a
s
te
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
je
c
t 
w
h
ic
h
 r
o
lle
d
 o
u
t 
1
0
2
,0
0
0
 b
in
s
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
, 
p
lu
s
 c
a
lls
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
tw
o
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
's
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

(D
u
ty
 r
o
s
te
r 
a
n
d
 F
o
s
te
r 
C
a
re
).
  

65



 
 

E
s
ta
te
s
  

A
ll 
E
s
ta
te
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
e
re
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
m
a
jo
r 
in
c
id
e
n
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
. 
O
n
g
o
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
 f
in
a
lis
in
g
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
s
 f
o
r 
K
P
I’
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 

jo
in
tl
y
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
 i
n
 Q
3
. 
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
  

A
ll 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
w
e
re
 
d
e
liv
e
re
d
 
w
it
h
o
u
t 
m
a
jo
r 
in
c
id
e
n
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 
th
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
. 
C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 
a
ro
u
n
d
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
id
e
 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 
a
n
d
 
o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e
. 
T
h
e
 m

a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 m

e
t 
ta
rg
e
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
w
it
h
 P
I 
ta
rg
e
ts
 s
ti
ll 
b
e
 d
e
fi
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
d
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
a
g
e
d
 s
u
n
d
ry
 d
e
b
t.
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 f
in
a
lis
e
d
 i
n
 Q
3
. 

A
 n
e
w
 A
D
 o
f 
F
in
a
n
c
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
g
u
n
 t
o
 f
ill
 s
o
m
e
 k
e
y
 p
o
s
ts
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
s
. 
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
s
 t
im
e
ta
b
le
d
 f
o
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 1
4
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 w
e
 a
re
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
is
 d
e
a
d
lin
e
. 
T
h
e
 c
o
s
t 
p
re
s
s
u
re
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 Q

2
 r
e
p
o
rt
in
g
 r
e
fl
e
c
ts
 a
n
 a
c
c
u
ra
te
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 a
s
 a
t 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 F
u
tu
re
 y
e
a
r 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 

a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
-s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m
. 
 

T
h
e
 P
e
n
s
io
n
 f
u
n
d
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
c
lo
s
e
 d
o
w
n
 f
o
r 
th
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 t
o
 M

a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a
u
d
it
o
rs
 w
it
h
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
b
e
in
g
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 b
u
ilt
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r’
s
 c
lo
s
e
 d
o
w
n
. 

H
R
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  

A
ll 
H
R
 k
e
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 m

e
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 H
R
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 u
n
d
e
r 
p
re
s
s
u
re
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 i
n
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
  
H
R
 h
a
v
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
h
e
 o
u
tg
o
in
g
 C
S
G
 a
n
d
 D
R
S
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rs
, 
o
n
e
 a
c
a
d
e
m
y
 c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
, 
in
s
o
u
rc
in
g
 

o
f 
M
a
y
 G
u
rn
e
y
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
H
R
. 
 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 P
I 
in
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 C
o
n
ta
c
t 
re
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
m
e
t.
 T
h
is
 i
s
 m

a
in
ly
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
in
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 t
e
m
p
o
ra
ry
 s
ta
ff
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

te
a
m
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
re
p
o
rt
in
g
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 f
in
a
l 
In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
P
a
y
ro
ll 
(c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
to
 C
a
p
it
a
) 
w
a
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 w
it
h
 a
n
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
‘s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
’.
  

T
h
e
re
 w
e
re
 n
o
 ‘
P
ri
o
ri
ty
 1
’ 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 n
o
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

IS
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 d
e
s
p
it
e
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
s
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
: 
th
e
 w
o
rk
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

b
o
th
 t
h
e
 C
S
G
 a
n
d
 D
R
S
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 w
o
rk
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
S
N
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
. 

G
o
o
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 P
S
N
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 Z
e
ro
 T
o
le
ra
n
c
e
 p
o
lic
y
 w
it
h
 C
a
p
it
a
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
c
u
s
s
in
g
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 j
o
in
t 
e
ff
o
rt
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
- 
w
o
rk
 i
s
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 7
5
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o
ri
g
in
a
lly
, 
o
n
ly
 3
 r
e
m
a
in
. 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 

T
h
e
 C
e
n
tr
a
l 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
it
s
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 s
e
t-
u
p
 a
n
d
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 

o
f 
C
S
G
 a
n
d
 D
R
S
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
k
e
y
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 w
it
h
 n
o
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
. 

66



 
 

T
h
e
 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 
w
it
h
 
th
e
 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 
U
n
it
s
 
in
 
o
rd
e
r 
to
 
b
e
tt
e
r 
u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
s
, 
M
T
F
S
 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 
p
la
n
s
 
a
n
d
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
m
 m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 i
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
 d
o
u
b
le
 c
o
u
n
t 
w
it
h
 C
a
p
it
a
 s
a
v
in
g
s
. 

T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 1
3
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 i
n
 f
lig
h
t,
 w

h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
b
o
a
rd
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 d
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

a
ro
u
n
d
 £
1
.2
m
 a
n
n
u
a
lis
e
d
 s
a
v
in
g
s
. 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
5
0
+
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 w
it
h
 e
s
ti
m
a
te
d
 a
g
g
re
g
a
te
d
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
f 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 £
3
m
 a
n
d
 £
5
m
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 B
e
n
e
fi
ts
  

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 k
e
y
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
fo
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
p
e
e
d
 o
f 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
in
g
 n
e
w
 c
la
im
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 i
s
 g
o
o
d
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
 n
e
e
d
 

to
 f
in
a
lis
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
te
d
 t
a
rg
e
t 
a
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
6
 d
a
y
s
 a
n
d
 9
6
%
 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
re
 i
n
 p
a
rt
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
im
p
le
m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a
 n
e
w
 

fa
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 T
h
is
 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
a
s
 n
o
t 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 C
a
p
it
a
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 m

o
d
e
l 
o
r 
p
ri
c
e
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

re
a
c
h
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
is
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 

C
a
p
it
a
 b
e
g
a
n
 u
s
in
g
 E
q
u
it
a
 a
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 b
a
ili
ff
s
 t
ra
n
s
fe
rr
in
g
 c
a
s
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
m
 a
ft
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t.
  
W
h
ile
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
 t
h
e
 

a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 B

a
ili
ff
 f
ir
m
s
 d
id
 m

a
k
e
 c
o
m
p
la
in
ts
 t
o
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 s
e
e
k
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 o
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
g
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
is
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
lie
r.
 I
t 
a
ls
o
 r
a
is
e
d
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 o
n
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
fl
ic
ts
 o
f 
in
te
re
s
t.
 C
a
p
it
a
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
o
rk
e
d
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w
it
h
 H
B
 P
u
b
lic
 L
a
w
 t
o
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 a
llo
w
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
is
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
a
n
d
 t
o
 s
a
ti
s
fy
 t
h
e
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
y
 c
o
n
fl
ic
t 
o
f 
in
te
re
s
t 
w
a
s
 o
ff
s
e
t 
b
y
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

 
 

67



 
 

4
.2
 R
is
k
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
  
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 i
s
 t
h
e
 5
 X
 5
 m

a
tr
ix
 ‘
h
e
a
t 
m
a
p
’ 
h
ig
h
lig
h
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ri
s
k
s
 a
t 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 L
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 w
h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
a
te
d
: 

 
 

     T
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
is
k
 r
e
g
is
te
r 
lis
ts
 a
ll 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
ri
s
k
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 C
S
G
: 
 

R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

R
is
k
 

S
ta
tu
s
 
B
o
a
rd
 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

(t
im
in
g
) 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

E
S
R
2
9
- 
L
a
c
k
 o
f 
c
la
ri
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 ‘
re
ta
in
e
d
 

c
lie
n
t’
 f
o
r 
E
s
ta
te
s
 

C
a

ta
s

tr
o

p
h

ic
 

5
 

L
ik

e
ly

  
4

 
H

ig
h

 
2

0
 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 C
a
p
it
a
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 k
e
y
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 

d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

d
e
ta
ile
d
 d
e
fi
n
it
io
n
 o
f 
c
lie
n
t 
s
id
e
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

T
re
a
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

T
B
C
 

T
B
C
 

T
B
C
 

P
R
R
0
1
- 
N
e
w
 2
0
1
4
-1
5
  
M
T
F
S
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
 m
a
y
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p
ro
je
c
te
d
 

N
S
C
S
O
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 o
u
ts
id
e
 o
f 
th
e
 M
F
T
S
 

p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
if
 o
v
e
rl
a
p
s
 a
re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

M
a

jo
r 

 
4

 
L

ik
e

ly
 

4
 

H
ig

h
 

1
6

 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 f
ir
m
 u
p
 p
la
n
s
, 

re
v
ie
w
 w
it
h
 L
B
B
 f
in
a
n
c
e
, 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

N
S
C
S
O
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
g
re
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

T
re
a
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

T
B
C
 

T
B
C
 

T
B
C
 

IMPACT 

S
C
O
R
E
 

P
R
O
B
A
B
IL
IT
Y
  

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

R
a

re
 

U
n

li
k

e
ly

 
P

o
s

s
ib

le
 

L
ik

e
ly

 
A

lm
o

s
t 

C
e

rt
a

in
 

5
 

C
a

ta
s

tr
o

p
h

ic
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

0
 

4
 

M
a

jo
r 

0
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

3
 

M
o

d
e

ra
te

 
0
 

1
 

2
 

1
 

0
 

2
 

M
in

o
r 

0
 

1
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

N
e

g
li

g
ib

le
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

R
is

k
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ta
ry

 f
o

r 
D

e
li

v
e
ry

 U
n

it
: 
  

-
R

is
k
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 s
h

o
w

s
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri

s
k
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 C

S
G

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 1

s
t  S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 
-

Id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 r

is
k
 p

ro
fi
le

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o

 c
h
a
n

g
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

l 
p

e
ri

o
d
 

a
ft

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 C

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 /
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

jo
in

t 
ri

s
k
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

-
L
o
n
g

 t
e
rm

 r
is

k
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 i
n

n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

re
q
u
ir

e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 b
o
th

 p
a
rt

ie
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u

t 
th

e
 t
e
rm

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 m

e
t.
 

-
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 o
f 

R
is

k
 p

ro
fi
le

 t
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
s
 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 t
h
re

e
 

c
a
te

g
o
ri

e
s
 o

f 
R

is
k
; 
a
) 

C
o
u
n

c
il 

R
is

k
 b

) 
J
o
in

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

/ 
C

a
p
it
a
 R

is
k
 

a
n
d
 c

) 
C

a
p
it
a
 R

is
k
. 

-
A

n
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 C

a
p
it
a
 R

is
k
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 b

a
c
k
e
d
 o

ff
 i
n
 t
h
e

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.

 

68



 
 

R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

R
is
k
 

S
ta
tu
s
 
B
o
a
rd
 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

(t
im
in
g
) 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

E
P
0
5
R
4
- 
T
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o
f 
a
p
p
e
ti
te
 f
o
r 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 A
g
ile
 w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 b
y
 L
B
B
 

C
a

ta
s

tr
o

p
h

ic
 

5
 

P
o

s
s

ib
le

 
3

 
H

ig
h

 
1

5
 

A
g
ile
 w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 w
it
h
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
re
a
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

T
B
C
 

T
B
C
 

T
B
C
 

IS
3

-
 
N
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 c
re
a
te
s
 

c
o
n
fu
s
io
n
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
lie
rs
 /
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
/ 
C
S
G

 

M
o

d
e

ra
te

 
3

 
P

o
s

s
ib

le
 

3
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

H
ig

h
 

9
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 e
s
c
a
la
te
 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
s
tr
e
a
m
 

T
re
a
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

T
B
C
 

T
B
C
 

T
B
C
 

C
O
M
N
S
0
0
0
1
 -
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

A
n
y
 e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
, 
lo
n
g
-t
e
rm
, 
in
fl
e
x
ib
le
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
/l
e
a
s
e
s
 (
o
v
e
r 
£
2
5
k
 a
n
d
 E
U
 

th
re
s
h
o
ld
) 
c
o
u
ld
 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 a
 s
u
b
-o
p
ti
m
a
l 

s
o
lu
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 N
S
C
S
O
 p
ro
je
c
t 

 

M
o

d
e

ra
te

 
3

 
P

o
s

s
ib

le
 

3
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

H
ig

h
 

9
 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 

u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 s
iz
e
/l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
, 
a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 t
o
 

re
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
N
S
C
S
O
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
ti
m
e
lin
e
s
 

T
re

a
t 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 

T
B

C
 

T
B

C
 

T
B

C
 

         
 

69



 
 

4
.3
. 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
E
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
  
 

 S
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 

%
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 (

s
u
rv

e
y
 t
o
ta

l)
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

F
a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 

4
1
%
 

4
7
%
 

3
5
%
 

4
1
%
 (
3
,9
1
2
) 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 

9
0
%
 

9
1
%
 

9
1
%
 

9
1
%
 (
3
,0
3
2
) 

W
e
b
 

4
1
%
 

4
0
%
 

3
8
%
 

4
8
%
 (
4
,9
7
5
) 

E
m
a
il 

8
0
%
 

6
9
%
 

6
3
%
 

6
9
%
 (
1
6
3
) 

C
o
m
b
in
e
d
 

5
3
%
 

5
9
%
 

4
7
%
 

5
3
%
 (
1
2
,0
8
2
) 

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s

a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 c
h

a
n

n
e

l 
is

 c
o

n
s

is
te

n
tl

y
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 –

 a
t 

9
1

%
, 

y
e

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

p
le

 i
s

 v
e

ry
 l

o
w

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 f

a
c

e
 t

o
 f

a
c

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

 a
s

 i
t 

is
 

s
ta

ff
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t.

 W
e

b
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c

k
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
. 

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
is

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k

 h
a

s
 r

e
v

e
a

le
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 v

ia
 t

h
is

 r
o

u
te

 c
o

v
e

rs
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 
th

e
 w

e
b

 –
 i

t 
is

 u
s

e
d

 t
o

 e
x

p
re

s
s

 d
is

s
a

ti
s

fa
c

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 p
o

lic
y 

a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 f
a

ilu
re

 t
o

o
. 

A
 p

ro
m

in
e

n
t 

th
e

m
e

 f
o

r 
w

e
b

 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k

 i
n

 Q
2

 w
a

s
 l

a
c

k
 o

f 
c

la
ri

ty
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 n
e

w
 

w
a

s
te

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 m

is
s

e
d

 b
in

 c
o

lle
c

ti
o

n
s

. 
 

 L
o

n
g

 w
a

it
 t

im
e

s
 a

t 
B

a
rn

e
t 

H
o

u
s

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 d
ri

v
e

 m
o

re
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 t
h

a
n

 p
o

s
it

iv
e

 G
o

v
m

e
tr

ic
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c

k
 f

o
r 

th
e

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

T
h

e
 w

a
it

in
g

 t
im

e
 i

s
s

u
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 

b
e

 a
d

d
re

s
s

e
d

 u
rg

e
n

tl
y

 b
y

 t
h

e
 2

 a
re

a
s

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 l
e

n
g

th
ie

s
t 

fa
c

e
 t

o
 f

a
c

e
 w

a
it

 t
im

e
s

 –
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

d
v

ic
e

 a
n

d
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 (

fo
r 

th
e

 l
a

tt
e

r,
 d

e
s

p
it

e
 l

e
n

g
th

y
 w

a
it

 
ti

m
e

s
 a

t 
B

a
rn

e
t 

H
o

u
s

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 d

ri
v

e
 v

e
ry

 p
o

s
it

iv
e

 G
o

v
m

e
tr

ic
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c

k
 o

v
e

ra
ll)

. 
 

 W
a
it
 t
im
e
s
  

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 w

a
it

 t
im

e
 m

in
s
 (

fo
o

tf
a
ll
) 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
3
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

B
u
rn
t 
O
a
k
 

2
.8
0
 (
4
,0
9
6
) 

3
.7
5
 (
3
,5
5
0
) 

1
.8
0
 (
4
,0
5
8
) 

2
.7
8
 (
1
1
,7
0
4
) 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
 

3
.1
 (
1
,7
6
0
) 

2
.6
 (
2
0
,1
8
0
) 

2
 (
2
,0
0
4
) 

2
.5
 (
5
,7
8
2
) 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
 

2
.5
 (
2
,2
3
6
) 

4
.9
 (
1
,5
3
2
) 

1
.6
 (
2
,0
5
4
) 

3
 (
5
,9
2
2
) 

B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
u
s
e
 

5
.4
3
 (
7
,6
0
6
) 

6
.8
3
 (
6
,2
8
5
) 

9
.5
2
 (
7
,0
2
8
) 

7
.2
6
 (
2
0
,9
1
9
) 

H
o
m
e
s
e
e
k
e
rs
 

1
1
.3
 (
1
,1
4
7
) 

8
.5
 (
9
8
3
) 

1
2
 (
1
,2
2
3
) 

1
0
.6
 (
3
,3
5
3
) 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
e
n
e
fi
t 
 

1
3
.6
0
 (
9
4
5
) 

2
3
  
(1
,1
0
4
) 

3
2
.2
  
(1
2
,1
3
0
) 

2
2
.9
7
 (
3
,2
6
2
) 

2
n
d
 f
lo
o
r 

1
 (
5
7
8
) 

2
.5
 (
6
0
8
) 

6
.1
 (
8
8
6
) 

3
.2
 (
2
,0
7
2
) 

 A
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 w
a
it
 t
im
e
 a
t 
B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
u
s
e
 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
C
S
G
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a
t 
B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 B
u
rn
t 
O
a
k
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 

d
is
p
a
ri
ty
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 b
o
th
 s
it
e
s
. 

 

  
 

70



 
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 
 K
P
I 
N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 
P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 
T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 

O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 

C
S

0
0

3
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
ca
lls
 

a
n
sw

e
re
d
 w
it
h
in
 2
0
 

se
co
n
d
s3
 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

6
1

.1
%

 
7

0
%

 
1

6
8

4
2

8
/2

3
4

5
8

0
  

7
1

.8
%

 
2

.6
%

 
�
 

1
7

.5
%

 

L
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
is

 u
p

p
e

r 
q

u
a

rt
ile

 
b

a
s

e
d

 o
n

 2
5

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

IS
0

0
4

 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 

to
p
 7
 I
T
 s
y
st
e
m
s 
a
n
d
 

se
rv
ic
e
s 
("
co
re
 c
o
u
n
ci
l 

sy
st
e
m
s"
) 
o
v
e
r 
su
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

h
o
u
rs
 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

9
9

.3
%

 
9

9
.5

%
 

4
5

4
0

.7
6

/4
5

5
0

 
9

9
.8

%
 

0
.3

%
 

�
 

0
.5

%
 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

IS
0

0
6

 
P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
in
ci
d
e
n
ts
 

re
so
lv
e
d
 w
it
h
in
 a
g
re
e
d
 

se
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

8
4

%
 

8
3

%
 

5
9

1
5

/6
9

1
0

 
8

5
.6

%
 

3
.1

%
 

�
 

1
.9

%
 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

H
R

0
0

7
 

C
ri
m
in
a
l 
R
e
co
rd
s 
C
h
e
ck
s 

- 
T
o
 f
a
ci
lit
a
te
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
ce
 

w
it
h
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 C
o
u
n
ci
l 
P
o
lic
y
 t
o
 

e
n
su
re
 t
h
a
t 
e
v
e
ry
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 w
h
o
 h
a
s 
a
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 h
a
v
e
 a
 

C
ri
m
in
a
l 
R
e
co
rd
 C
h
e
ck
 

(C
R
B
) 
u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
, 
h
a
s 
a
 

v
a
lid
 c
h
e
ck
 i
n
 p
la
ce
 w
h
ic
h
 

sh
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
 m

o
re
 t
h
a
n
 

th
re
e
 y
e
a
rs
 o
ld
 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

1
0

0
%

 
1

0
0

%
 

7
5

/7
5

 
1

0
0

%
 

0
%

 
�
 

0
%

 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
 T
h
is
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 1
,8
3
1
 c
a
lls
 a
n
s
w
e
re
d
 w
it
h
in
 2
0
 s
e
c
o
n
d
s
 b
y
 v
ir
tu
a
l 
a
g
e
n
ts
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r.
 1
7
 v
ir
tu
a
l 
a
g
e
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
re
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 –
 1
2
 f
o
r 
lib
ra
ri
e
s
, 
5
 f
o
r 
R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
. 

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a
n
 a
m
e
n
d
m
e
n
t 
to
 t
h
e
 f
ig
u
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
(p
re
v
io
u
s
 o
u
tt
u
rn
).

 

71



 
 

H
R

0
0

8
 

T
o
 e
n
su
re
 a
ll 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s 

a
re
 p
a
id
 c
o
rr
e
ct
ly
 

in
cl
u
d
in
g
 e
n
su
ri
n
g
 a
ll 

st
a
tu
to
ry
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

d
e
d
u
ct
io
n
s 
o
f 
p
a
y
 a
re
 

co
rr
e
ct
 

(M
in
im
a
l 
e
rr
o
rs
: 
P
a
y
 

E
rr
o
rs
 -
 a
n
 e
rr
o
r 
is
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
 a
s 
m
a
d
e
 d
ir
e
ct
ly
 

b
y
 H
R
 a
n
d
 e
x
cl
u
d
e
s 
a
n
y
 

e
rr
o
rs
 r
e
su
lt
in
g
 f
ro
m
 

in
co
rr
e
ct
 a
u
th
o
ri
sa
ti
o
n
 o
r 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
lie
d
 b
y
 

lin
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs
) 

J
u

l 
1

3
 –

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

0
.3

%
 

0
.3

4
%

 
3

5
/2

3
4

7
4

 
 

0
.1

%
 

5
6

.1
%

 
 

�
 

4
2

.7
%

 
 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

H
R

0
0

9
 

 T
o
 e
n
su
re
 a
ll 
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s 

a
re
 p
a
id
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 

'p
a
y
 d
a
te
' 

J
u

ly
 1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

1
0

0
%

 
1

0
0

%
 

2
3

4
7

4
 

/2
3

4
7

4
 

 
1

0
0

%
 

0
%

 
�
 

0
%

 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

F
IN

0
1

5
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

a
n
d
 d
ra
ft
 I
S
A
 2
6
0
 

p
ro
d
u
ce
d
 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

N
A

 
1

8
th

 
J

u
ly

 
N

A
 

D
ra

ft
 I

S
A

 2
6

0
 

re
c

e
iv

e
d

 o
n

 
1

2
th

 J
u

ly
 

0
%

 
�
 

0
%
 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

F
IN

0
1

6
 

U
n
q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

o
p
in
io
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 i
n
 

lin
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

d
e
a
d
lin
e
s 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

N
A

 
P

a
s

s
 

N
A

 
U

n
q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 

a
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
 

0
%

 
�
 

0
%
 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

E
S

T
0

1
9

 
F
M
 I
n
ci
d
e
n
t 
re
so
lu
ti
o
n
 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

1
0

0
%

 
1

0
0

%
 

4
3

8
/4

3
8

 
1

0
0

%
 

0
%

 
�
 

0
%

 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

R
B

0
2

2
 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
p
e
e
d
 o
f 

p
ro
ce
ss
in
g
 f
o
r 
n
e
w
 c
la
im
s 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

1
0

 
1

2
 

2
0

5
2

0
/4

4
1

2
 

4
.6

5
 

6
1

.2
%

 
�
 

5
2

.2
%

 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

R
B

0
2

3
 

A
v
e
ra
g
e
 s
p
e
e
d
 o
f 

p
ro
ce
ss
in
g
 f
o
r 
ch
a
n
g
e
s 

A
p

r 
1

3
 -

 
J

u
n

 1
3

 
6

 
6

 
1

3
6

0
1

1
/2

5
8

6
4

 
5

.2
6

 
1

2
.4

%
 

�
 

8
.7

%
 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

R
B

0
2

3
a

 
A
cc
u
ra
cy
 o
f 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 

a
ss
e
ss
m
e
n
ts
 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

9
4

.1
%

 
9

3
%

 
2

8
8

/3
0

0
 

9
6

%
 

3
.2

%
 

�
 

2
%

 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

72



 
 

P
R

0
2

4
a

4
 

%
 o
f 
th
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
n
e
w
 

co
n
tr
a
ct
s 
o
v
e
r 
£
2
5
k
 

a
w
a
rd
e
d
 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
 w
it
h
 C
P
R
's
 

a
n
d
 p
ro
cu
re
m
e
n
t 

le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

8
4

.3
%

 
1

0
0

%
 

2
0

6
5

5
4

/2
0

6
5

5
4

 
1

0
0

%
 

0
%

 
�
 

1
8

.6
%

 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

P
R

0
2

4
b

 

%
 o
f 
th
e
 v
a
lu
e
 o
f 
le
g
a
cy
 

co
n
tr
a
ct
s 
o
v
e
r 
£
2
5
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
 

w
it
h
 C
P
R
's
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
cu
re
m
e
n
t 
le
g
is
la
ti
o
n
 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

9
9

.5
%

 
9

8
.9

4
%

 
9

4
9

3
9

5
9

1
5

.3
7

/
9

5
1

2
8

6
3

7
7

.2
7

 
9

9
.8

%
 

0
.9

%
 

�
 

0
.3

%
 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

P
R

0
2

6
a

 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

a
p
p
re
n
ti
ce
sh
ip
s 
th
ro
u
g
h
 

n
e
w
 p
ro
cu
re
m
e
n
t 
a
ct
iv
it
y
 

&
 N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

a
p
p
re
n
ti
ce
sh
ip
s 
w
it
h
in
 

e
x
is
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
ly
 c
h
a
in
 

J
u

l 
1

3
 -

 
S

e
p

t 
1

3
 

0
 

1
 

N
/A

 
1

 
0

%
 

�
 

N
o

 b
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
d

a
ta

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 

a
v

a
ila

b
le

. 

 E
S

T
0

1
8

a
 

C
iv
ic
 E
st
a
te
s 
C
o
n
d
it
io
n
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

 

E
S

T
0

1
8

b
 

B
u
ild
in
g
 K
e
y
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 

C
o
m
p
lia
n
ce
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

E
S

T
0

2
0

 
A
ss
e
t 
D
is
p
o
sa
ls
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
ce
ip
ts
 T
a
rg
e
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

IS
0

0
5

 
P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
u
se
rs
 

sa
ti
sf
ie
d
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

H
R

0
1

0
 

A
ll 
p
ro
je
ct
s 
/ 

in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s 
th
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
re
 

d
e
liv
e
re
d
 i
n
 a
 r
o
lli
n
g
 

q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

W
o
rk
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 p
o
si
ti
v
e
ly
 

re
d
u
ce
 t
h
e
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
’s
 

a
b
se
n
ce
 i
n
 l
e
v
e
ls
 w
h
e
re
 

co
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 i
s 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 

   
N

e
w

 Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
r 

- 
T

o
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 f
ro

m
 Q

3
 

    

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
T

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s

 o
u

tt
u

rn
 h

a
s

 b
e

e
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e

c
t 

a
c

tu
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y

 a
s

 s
p

e
c

if
ie

d
 i

n
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

73



 
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
ro
v
id
e
rs
 s
p
a
n
 

o
f 
co
n
tr
o
l 

H
R

0
1

1
 

U
se
r 
sa
ti
sf
a
ct
io
n
 w
it
h
 

H
R
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

In
d

ic
a

to
r.

 

F
IN

0
1

4
 

P
ro
d
u
ct
io
n
 o
f 
d
ra
ft
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
cc
o
u
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 t
o
 p
a
ss
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
's
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
o
rs
, 
a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
 w
it
h
 a
ll 

w
o
rk
in
g
 p
a
p
e
rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
A
cc
o
u
n
ts
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

(Q
1

).
 

F
IN

0
1

7
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
u
se
rs
 

sa
ti
sf
ie
d
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

In
d

ic
a

to
r.

 

E
S

T
0

2
1

 
P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
u
se
rs
 

sa
ti
sf
ie
d
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

In
d

ic
a

to
r.

 

P
R

0
2

5
 

A
ll 
C
o
m
p
le
x
/H
ig
h
 R
is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 a
cc
o
rd
a
n
ce
 

w
it
h
 C
o
n
tr
a
ct
 P
ro
ce
d
u
re
 

R
u
le
s 
(C
P
R
's
) 
a
n
d
 C
o
d
e
 

o
f 
P
ra
ct
ic
e
 

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 t
o

 b
e

 d
e

fi
n

e
d

 b
y

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 i

n
 Q

3
. 

P
R

0
2

7
 

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
u
se
rs
 

sa
ti
sf
ie
d
  

A
n

n
u

a
l 

In
d

ic
a

to
r.

 

 

74



    1
.1

 Y
C

B
 D

A
S

H
B

O
A

R
D

 
 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
c
tu
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

£
0
0
0
[1
]  

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
c
tu
a
l 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 £
0
0
0
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
la
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t/
C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

N
o
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 
N

o
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 
N

o
t 

A
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 
 

 1
.2

 T
O

P
 A

C
H

IE
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
N

D
 A

C
T

IO
N

S
 

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

T
o
p
 3
 A
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

 
K
e
y
 E
s
c
a
la
ti
o
n
s
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

Y
C
B
 h
a
v
e
 p
ro
m
o
te
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
a
k
e
 

u
p
 –
 t
h
e
s
e
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
: 
re
fr
e
s
h
 o
f 
a
ll 
Y
C
B
 

p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
m
a
te
ri
a
ls
; 
a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
f 
th
e
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 w

it
h
 ‘
W
o
w
’ 
s
to
ri
e
s
 e
v
id
e
n
c
in
g
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
; 

a
n
d
 o
p
e
n
 d
a
y
s
 a
t 
V
a
lle

y
 W

a
y
 a
n
d
 F
lo
w
e
r 
L
a
n
e
 

in
 Q

3
r.
 T
h
is
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 

fr
e
s
h
 i
n
te
re
s
t 
fo
r 
Y
C
B
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
ro
m
 o
u
t 
o
f 

a
re
a
 (
a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 3
 e
n
q
u
ir
ie
s
).
 

 
A
s
 f
o
r 
Q
1
 t
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
ti
ll 
o
n
ly
 2
.1
%
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 D

ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t.
 

A
ll 
B
a
rn
e
t 
A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

U
s
e
rs
 a
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 a
 D

ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
(D

P
) 

a
t 
in
it
ia
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
. 

R
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
n
o
t 
ta
k
in
g
 u
p
 a
 D

P
 a
re
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C

a
re
 P
a
n
e
l.
 T
h
e
 Y
C
B
 %

 
o
f 
D
P
s
 i
s
 l
o
w
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
g
ro
u
p
 

o
f 
L
D
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 k
n
o
w
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
h
e
re
 s
o
m
e
 4
0
%
 t
a
k
e
 a
 D

P
 a
n
d
 

T
ra
n
s
it
io
n
s
 (
m
o
s
tl
y
 L
D
) 
w
h
e
re
 8
2
%
 t
a
k
e
 a
 

D
P
. 
M
o
re
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 b
y
 

Y
C
B
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
is
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 c
a
n
 

b
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 C

a
re
 Q

u
a
lit
y
 C

o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te
d
 t
w
o
 

Y
C
B
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
th
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 L
iv
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 o
n
 

th
e
 9

th
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 V
a
lle

y
 W

a
y
 R

e
s
p
it
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
n
 2
1
s
t  O

c
to
b
e
r.
 B
o
th
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w

e
re
 

 
T
h
e
 V
a
lle

y
 W

a
y
 R

e
s
p
it
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 h
a
d
 a
 

3
0
%
 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 r
a
te
 i
n
 Q

u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

M
o
n
d
a
y
s
 a
n
d
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
s
 e
a
c
h
 w

e
e
k
. 
  

Y
C
B
 h
a
s
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 a
 l
o
w
e
r 
d
a
ily
 r
a
te
 f
o
r 

re
s
p
it
e
 o
n
 s
o
m
e
 d
a
y
s
; 
th
e
 o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 r
a
te
 

h
a
s
 s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
Q
2
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
it
 

w
ill
 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
ts
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 

Y
o

u
r 

C
h

o
ic

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

(Y
C

B
) 

–
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
, 

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

2
 

75



  1
.3

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 O

F
 T

H
E

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 U

N
IT

’S
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 

Y
C

B
 d

e
liv

e
rs

 a
d

u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 u

n
d
e

r 
a

 5
-y

e
a

r 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

(e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e

 2
0

1
2

) 
to

 B
a

rn
e

t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
, 
o

n
 a

 s
m

a
lle

r 
s
c
a

le
, 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
p
p

ro
a

c
h
e

d
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
ir
e

c
t.

 T
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 c

o
v
e

r 
d

a
y
 c

a
re

, 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 c

a
re

 a
n
d

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
, 

re
s
p

it
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 l
iv

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

C
a

re
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
a
d

u
lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e

s
, 

a
u
ti
s
m

 a
n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

a
n

d
 s

e
n

s
o

ry
 i
m

p
a

ir
m

e
n

ts
. 

Y
C

B
 h

a
s
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 g

ro
w

 t
h
e

 s
iz

e
 o

f 
it
s
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
, 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

tr
o
n

g
 v

a
lu

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

G
ro

u
p

. 
In

 
2

0
1
2

/1
3
 Y

C
B

 r
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 t
h
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p
o

n
d

e
d
 t

o
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 L
iv

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

w
e

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 b

y
 B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il.

 Y
C

B
 a

ls
o

 h
e

ld
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
e

n
g
a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
e

v
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

 

 Y
C

B
’s

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 f
o

r 
2
0

1
3

/1
4

 i
s
 £

5
.5

 m
ill

io
n

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 a
p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 £

5
.3

 m
ill

io
n

 i
s
 f
ro

m
 B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

re
p
re

s
e

n
ti
n

g
 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
A

d
u

lt
s
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 (

A
&

C
) 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 2

5
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 t
o

 u
s
e

 Y
o

u
r 

C
h

o
ic

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

S
o
m

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 c
a

re
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 e

a
c
h
 d

a
y
 w

h
ile

 o
th

e
rs

 o
n

 a
 l
e

s
s
 f
re

q
u

e
n
t 
b

a
s
is

. 
B

e
c
a
u

s
e

 
B

a
rn

e
t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
n

ly
 p

a
y
s
 f

o
r 

c
a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
, 

th
is

 i
n

c
o
m

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
w

ill
 v

a
ry

 a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
. 
Y

C
B

 h
a

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 

a
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
fl
e

x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
n

ti
ty

 o
f 

c
a

re
 t
h

a
t 
is

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

. 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 “
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 C

y
c
le

” 
fo

rm
a

l 
m

o
n
th

ly
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 A
&

C
 

a
n

d
 Y

C
B

. 
T

h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

s
e

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

a
s
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

is
 s

e
c
o
n

d
 y

e
a

r 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 i
ts

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
d

 f
it
n

e
s
s
 f
o

r 
p
u

rp
o

s
e

 g
o

in
g
 f
o

rw
a

rd
. 

T
h
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

.2
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p
o

rt
 f
o

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d

 a
re

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 b
a

la
n

c
e
d

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 i
.e

. 
c
e
n

tr
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 t
h

e
m

e
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
, 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
M

e
a

s
u

re
s
, 
S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e
r 

M
e

a
s
u

re
s
; 
a

n
d
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
M

e
a

s
u
re

s
. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

is
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
a

re
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
c
lie

n
t 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 b

y
 A

&
C

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
ta

ff
. 

It
 i
s
 i
n

te
n
d

e
d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 t
o

 “
s
tr

e
tc

h
” 

Y
C

B
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

, 
p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
. 

 O
v
e

ra
ll,

 Y
C

B
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 w
e

ll 
in

 Q
2
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
. 
T

w
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

s
p

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
a

re
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 (

o
n
e

 i
n

 
Q

2
 a

n
d

 o
n

e
 i
n

 Q
3

) 
a

n
d
 f
o

u
n

d
 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
. 

B
a

rn
e
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 o

w
n

 s
ta

ff
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 a

 r
o

lli
n

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
Y

C
B

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 Q

2
 (

a
n

d
 i
n

to
 Q

3
) 

a
n
d

 f
o

u
n
d

 t
h

a
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 m

e
t 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 s
it
e

 v
is

it
s
 w

e
re

 o
f 

R
o

s
a

 M
o

ri
s
o

n
 o

n
 1

3
.8

.1
3

, 
B

IL
S

 o
n
 1

4
.1

0
.1

3
 a

n
d

 F
lo

w
e
r 

L
a

n
e

 o
n

 2
3

.1
0

.1
3

.

fo
u
n
d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
ll 
fi
v
e
 C

Q
C
 E
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 c
ri
te
ri
a
. 

w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 i
n
 Q

3
. 

  

Y
C
B
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 l
o
w
e
r 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 

s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
s
. 
W
h
ils
t 
s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 h
a
s
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 f
o
r 
Q
2
 i
t 
is
 s
ti
ll 
a
t 
a
 m

u
c
h
 b
e
tt
e
r 
le
v
e
l 

th
a
n
 t
h
is
 t
im

e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.
 

 
--
/-
- 

--
/-
- 

76



 2
. 

D
E

L
IV

E
R

IN
G

 T
H

E
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 P
L

A
N

 

 2
.1

 H
o

w
 t

h
e
 D

e
li

v
e

ry
 U

n
it

 i
s

 p
e

rf
o

rm
in

g
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
it

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
  

C
P
I 

N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 

a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 
O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

*T
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 o

u
tt
u

rn
 u

s
e
d

 w
ill

 e
it
h

e
r 

b
e

 t
h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 q

u
a

rt
e

r,
 o

r 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
e

 s
a
m

e
 q

u
a

rt
e

r 
o

f 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 f
o
r 

a
n
n

u
a
l 

in
d

ic
a

to
rs

, 
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 (

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 a

d
d
 u

p
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 a
re

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

s
 ‘
y
e

a
r 

to
 d

a
te

’)
 a

n
d

 i
f 

th
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 a
ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 s

e
a

s
o

n
a

l 
fl
u

c
tu

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

 T
h

is
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 i

s
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

 t
o

 Y
C

B
 a

s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

la
n

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 o

n
ly

 a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 T
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

G
ro

u
p

. 

 2
.2

 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s

 &
 E

s
c

a
la

ti
o

n
s
 

C
P
I 
N
O
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
  

 
U

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c

e
 o

n
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 e

s
c

a
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s
, 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

 U
n

it
 a

n
d

 L
e

a
d

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

r 
s

h
o

u
ld

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

 t
h

e
 l

e
v

e
l 

o
f 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 I

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 m
is

s
e

d
 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

t.
 

 T
h

is
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 i

s
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

 t
o

 Y
C

B
 a

s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

la
n

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 o

n
ly

 a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 T
h

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

G
ro

u
p

. 

 

77



 3
. 

Y
C

B
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 

3
.1

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 (
a

g
re

e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 Y
C

B
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t)

  

T
o
ta
l 
N
o
. 

o
f 
P
Is
 

R
A
G
 r
a
ti
n
g
s
  

P
o
s
it
iv
e
/n
e
u
tr
a
l 
D
o
T
 

N
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 D
o
T
 

N
o
. 
o
f 
in
d
ic
a
to
rs
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 

re
p
o
rt
 t
h
is
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r 

G
re
e
n
 

G
re
e
n
 A
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 A
m
b
e
r 

R
e
d
 

2
8
 

1
8
 

2
 

 
2

 
 1

8
 

4
 

2
2

  
 

  3
.2

 H
o

w
 i
s

 Y
C

B
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
it

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 (
a

g
re

e
d

 a
s

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

C
B

 C
o

n
tr

a
c

t)
?

 

In
c
lu

d
e

 a
n

y
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 b

e
in

g
 e

s
c
a

la
te

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
u

n
d
e

rp
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
th

a
t 

is
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

 k
e

y
 i
s
s
u
e
).

 

P
I 
N
O
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

P
e
ri
o
d
 

C
o
v
e
re
d
 

P
re
v
io
u
s
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
 

N
u
m
e
ra
to
r 
a
n
d
 

D
e
n
o
m
in
a
to
r 
 

O
u
tt
u
rn
  

T
a
rg
e
t 

V
a
ri
a

n
c
e
  

D
o
T
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
  

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in

g
 

(w
h
e
re
 

a
p
p
li
c
a
b
le
) 
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
1
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

fo
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
r 
p
la
c
e
d
 b
y
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

n
/a
 

M
e
t 
8
0
%
 

 P
a
rt
ia
lly
 M

e
t 

1
0
%
 

 N
o
t 
m
e
t 
1
0
%
 

In
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
v
ie
w
s
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
Y
C
B
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 p
la
c
e
d
 

b
y
 L
B
B
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 c
a
re
 p
la
n
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
: 

 

•
 

m
e
t 

•
 

p
a
rt
ia
lly
 m

e
t 

•
 

n
o
t 
m
e
t 

 T
h
is
 i
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 t
o
ta
l 

Y
C
B
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

p
la
c
e
d
 b
y
 L
B
B
 

n
/a
 

n
/a
 

n
/a
 

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 
L
B
B
 

h
a
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

b
u
t 
n
o
t 
a
c
ro
s
s
 

w
h
o
le
 p
ro
v
id
e
r.
 

78



 Y
C
B
 

P
I 
2
 

C
a
re

 p
la

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

m
e
a
su

re
d
 b

y
 

p
ro

te
ct

e
d
 

ch
a
ra

ct
e
ri
st

ic
s 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

n
/a
 

T
a
rg
e
ts
 w
ill
 

b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

fo
llo
w
in
g
  
Q
3
 

w
h
e
n
 s
o
m
e
 

in
te
ri
m
 

re
s
u
lt
s
 a
re
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

T
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
Y
C
B
 P
I 

1
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 9
 p
ro
te
c
te
d
 

c
h
a
ra
c
te
ri
s
ti
c
s
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 E
q
u
a
lit
y
 A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 

n
/a
 

n
/a
 

n
/a
 

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
. 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
3
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

le
rt
s 

a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

Q
2
 

3
 a
le
rt
s
 

ra
is
e
d
, 
n
o
n
e
 

u
p
h
e
ld
 

0
 u
p
h
e
ld
 

T
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 A
le
rt
s
 

ra
is
e
d
 a
b
o
u
t 
Y
o
u
r 

C
h
o
ic
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o
f:
 

  

•
 

A
le
rt
s
 u
p
h
e
ld
 

•
 

A
le
rt
s
 n
o
t 

u
p
h
e
ld
 

•
 

A
le
rt
s
 s
ti
ll 

u
n
d
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 

 

5
 a
le
rt
s
 

ra
is
e
d
, 
0
 

u
p
h
e
ld
  

 

0
 

�
�
 

W
e
 e
x
p
e
c
t 

a
le
rt
s
 t
o
 b
e
 

ra
is
e
d
 i
n
 s
m
a
ll 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 

a
n
d
 n
o
n
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

u
p
h
e
ld
. 
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
4
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

le
rt
s 

ra
is
e
d
 b

y
 Y

o
u
r 

C
h
o
ic
e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
st

a
ff
 

Q
2
 

3
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
n
o
t 

a
p
p
lic
a
b
le
 

T
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 A
le
rt
s
 

ra
is
e
d
 b
y
 Y
o
u
r 
C
h
o
ic
e
 

s
ta
ff
 

8
 

0
 

�
�
 

W
e
 e
x
p
e
c
t 

Y
C
B
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 

ra
is
e
 a
le
rt
s
 i
n
 

s
m
a
ll 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
  

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
5
 

U
se

 o
f 
D
ir
e
ct

 

P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

, 
P
re

-P
a
id

 

C
a
rd

s 
a
n
d
 I
n
d
iv
id

u
a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

u
n
d
s 

Q
2
 

2
.1
%
 

1
0
%
 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
se

rv
ic
e
 

u
se

rs
 p

la
ce

d
 b

y
 B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o
u
n
ci
l 
w
it
h
 Y

C
B
 w

h
o
 

u
se

 a
 D

ir
e
ct

 P
a
y
m

e
n
t,
 

o
r 
a
 P

re
-P

a
id

 C
a
rd

 o
r 

a
n
 I
n
d
iv
id

u
a
l 
S
e
rv

ic
e
 

F
u
n
d
 e

x
p
re

ss
e
d
 a

s 
a
 

co
m

b
in

e
d
 f
ig

u
re

 a
n
d
 

a
s 

a
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

to
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
se

rv
ic
e
 

u
se

rs
 p

la
ce

d
 w

it
h
 Y

C
B
 

b
y
 L

B
B
  

2
.1
%
 

7
.9
%
 

�
�
 

1
0
%
 i
s
 o
u
r 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 f
o
r 

a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

79



 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
6
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

se
rs

 m
o
v
e
d
 

o
n
 f
ro

m
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

le
v
e
l 
to

 a
 l
o
w
e
r 

se
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

Q
2
 

0
 

2
5
 p
e
o
p
le
  

a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 p
la
c
e
d
 w
it
h
 Y
C
B
 

b
y
 L
B
B
 w
h
o
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
h
a
d
 

th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
h
o
u
rs
 o
f 
c
a
re
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 

1
9
 H
o
u
rs
 

d
e
c
re
a
s
e
d
. 
0
 

m
o
v
e
d
 o
n
 

n
/a
 

�
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
7
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

se
rs

 m
o
v
e
d
 

o
n
 f
ro

m
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

le
v
e
l 
to

 a
 h

ig
h
e
r 

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
cy

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

Q
2
 

1
 

1
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 p
la
c
e
d
 w
it
h
 Y
C
B
 

b
y
 L
B
B
 w
h
o
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
h
a
d
 

th
e
 t
o
ta
l 
h
o
u
rs
 o
f 
c
a
re
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 

o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 

1
2
 h
o
u
rs
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
: 
3
 

m
o
v
e
d
 o
n
 

n
/a
 

�
�
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
8
 

C
a
re

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

C
o
m

m
is
si
o
n
 

in
sp

e
ct

io
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

N
o
 s
e
t 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
c
y
 

4
 o
u
t 
o
f 
5
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

m
e
t 

A
ll 
5
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

a
re
 m

e
t 

T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
C
a
re
 

Q
u
a
lit
y
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 

u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 C
Q
C
 f
iv
e
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
, 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

e
it
h
e
r 
m
e
t 
o
r 
n
o
t 
m
e
t 

Q
2
: 
2
 C
Q
C
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 a
ll 
F
iv
e
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

m
e
t 

0
 

�
�
 

A
ll 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

a
re
 t
o
 b
e
 m

e
t 

 
Y
C
B
 

P
I 
9
 

 

A
&
C
 C

a
re

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 

T
e
a
m

 i
n
sp

e
ct

io
n
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

N
o
 s
e
t 

fr
e
q
u
e
n
c
y
 

n
/a
 

A
ll 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

m
e
t 

T
h
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
 o
f 
A
&
C
 

C
a
re
 Q
u
a
lit
y
 T
e
a
m
  

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 e
it
h
e
r 
m
e
t 
in
 f
u
ll 
o
r 

n
o
t 
m
e
t 
in
 f
u
ll 
a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

Q
2
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
u
n
d
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

m
e
t 

0
 

�
�
 

A
ll 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

a
re
 t
o
 b
e
 m

e
t 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
1
0
 

S
ta

ff
 s

ic
k
n
e
ss

 
Q
2
 

2
.2
 

3
.1
 

A
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
a
v
e
ra
g
e
 

d
a
y
s
 o
f 
s
ic
k
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

e
a
c
h
 Y
C
B
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 

o
n
 a
 r
o
lli
n
g
 1
2
 m

o
n
th
 

b
a
s
is
  

4
.2
 

0
 

�
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
1
1
 

 
A
g
e
n
cy

 s
ta

ff
 

Q
2
 

7
.2
%
 

1
0
%
 

A
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 

w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
, 

c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 a
s
 a
 

h
e
a
d
c
o
u
n
t,
 b
y
 Y
C
B
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 

q
u
a
rt
e
r 
th
a
t 
w
e
re
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
 

a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
 

1
4
.3
%
 

0
 

�
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

80



 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
1
2
 

S
e
ss

io
n
a
l 
st

a
ff
 

Q
2
 

1
2
%
 

2
0
%
 

A
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 o
f 
th
e
 u
s
e
 

o
f 
s
e
s
s
io
n
a
l 
s
ta
ff
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

Y
C
B
 w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
, 

c
a
lc
u
la
te
d
 a
s
 a
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
C
B
 

w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 a
s
 a
 w
h
o
le
, 

u
s
in
g
 a
 h
e
a
d
c
o
u
n
t 

1
4
.6
 

0
 

�
�
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
1
3
 

A
cc

id
e
n
t 
In

ci
d
e
n
t 

ra
te

 
Q
2
 

4
0
0
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
is
 

b
e
lo
w
 5
,0
0
0
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
n
o
n
-f
a
ta
l 

w
o
rk
 r
e
la
te
d
 a
c
c
id
e
n
ts
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l 

a
s
s
a
u
lt
s
) 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 

p
re
v
io
u
s
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
X
 

1
0
0
,0
0
0
 /
 t
h
e
 a
v
e
ra
g
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff
 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
 

1
2
0
0
 

0
 

�
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
1
4
 

A
cc

id
e
n
t 
F
re

q
u
e
n
cy

 

R
a
te

 
Q
2
 

0
.6
4
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
is
 

1
0
%
 b
e
lo
w
 

th
e
 i
n
d
u
s
tr
y
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
n
o
n
-f
a
ta
l 

R
ID
D
O
R
 r
e
p
o
rt
a
b
le
 

in
c
id
e
n
ts
 o
v
e
r 
th
e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 x
 1
0
0
,0
0
0
/ 
to
ta
l 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
h
o
u
rs
 

w
o
rk
e
d
 o
v
e
r 
th
a
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

0
.4
6
 

0
 

�
 

 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
1
5
 

W
o
rk

 r
e
la

te
d
 

fa
ta

lit
ie

s 
Q
2
 

0
 

0
 

W
o
rk
 r
e
la
te
d
 f
a
ta
lit
ie
s
 

0
 

0
 

�
�
 

0
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
1
6
 

M
a
jo

r 
in

ci
d
e
n
ts

 
Q
2
 

0
 

0
 

T
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

R
ID
D
O
R
 m

a
jo
r 
in
ju
ry
 

re
p
o
rt
s
 

0
 

0
 

�
�
 

0
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
1
7
 

M
a
jo

r 
in

ci
d
e
n
ts

 

im
p
a
ct

 o
n
 s

ta
ff
 

Q
2
 

0
 

0
 

T
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

R
ID
D
O
R
 ‘
o
v
e
r 
7
 d
a
y
’ 

re
p
o
rt
a
b
le
 i
n
ju
ri
e
s
 t
o
 

e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

0
 

0
 

�
�
 

0
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
1
8
 

R
e
g
u
la

to
ry

 /
 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
N
o
ti
ce

s 

Q
2
 

0
 

0
 

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
  

0
 

0
 

�
�
 

 

81



 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
1
9
 

N
e
w
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

sa
fe

ty
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

: 
 

Q
2
 

0
 

N
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
n
e
w
 

p
o
lic
y
 o
r 
p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 

d
o
c
u
m
e
n
ts
 i
n
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
  
 

1
 A
c
c
id
e
n
t 
&
 

In
c
id
e
n
t 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 

p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
  

w
a
s
 r
e
n
e
w
e
d
 

0
 

�
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

b
u
t 
re
v
ie
w
s
 a
re
 

e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
2
0
 

S
a
ti
sf

ie
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

u
se

rs
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

8
0
.2
%
 d
u
ri
n
g
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

(u
s
in
g
 a
 

d
if
fe
re
n
t 

m
e
th
o
d
) 

9
0
%
 

T
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

Y
C
B
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

p
la
c
e
d
 b
y
 B
a
rn
e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
w
h
o
 e
x
p
re
s
s
 

s
a
ti
s
fa
c
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 Y
C
B
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 

a
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
L
B
B
 

p
la
c
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

 
0
 

n
/a
 

0
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
2
1
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

se
r 
a
n
d
 

ca
re

r 
in

v
o
lv
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 

se
rv

ic
e
 d

e
si
g
n
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 

w
a
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 i
n
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

y
e
a
r-
e
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt
 

N
o
 t
a
rg
e
t 

A
 q
u
a
lit
a
ti
v
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re
, 

e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 Y
C
B
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
re
p
o
rt
, 
s
h
o
w
in
g
 

e
x
a
m
p
le
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 c
a
re
rs
 a
n
d
 

e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

m
a
d
e
 t
o
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

 
0
 

n
/a
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
2
2
 

N
e
w
 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls
 f
ro

m
 

B
a
rn

e
t 

Q
2
 

5
 

2
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
n
e
w
 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 

fr
o
m
 B
a
rn
e
t 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

2
 

0
 

�
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
2
3
 

N
e
w
 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls
 f
ro

m
 

o
th

e
r 
lo

ca
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s 

Q
2
 

6
 

1
2
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
n
e
w
 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 t
h
a
t 
w
e
re
 

fr
o
m
 o
th
e
r 
lo
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

6
  

0
 

�
�
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
2
4
 

N
e
w
 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls
 f
ro

m
 

p
e
o
p
le

 
Q
2
 

1
 

6
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
n
n
u
a
lly
 

N
e
w
 p
e
o
p
le
 r
e
c
e
iv
in
g
 

c
a
re
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

Y
C
B
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
lf
-r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 

2
 

0
 

�
�
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
2
5
 

N
e
w
 i
n
co

m
e
 f
ro

m
 

o
u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
B
a
rn

e
t 

C
o
u
n
ci
l 
re

fe
rr
a
ls
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

N
o
t 
re
p
o
rt
e
d
 

in
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

1
0
%
 o
f 
to
ta
l 

in
c
o
m
e
 

T
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 

to
ta
l 
in
c
o
m
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

b
y
 Y
C
B
 i
n
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

th
a
t 
w
a
s
 f
ro
m
 s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

o
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 B
a
rn
e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
 

 
0
 

n
/a
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

82



 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
2
6
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

ti
lis

a
ti
o
n
 

Q
2
 

Q
1
 

 
B
IL
S
 -
9
2
.9
%
 

 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
p
a
c
e
 –
 

9
6
.3
%
 

 
F
lo
w
e
r 
L
a
n
e
 

–
 9
9
.6
%
 

 
R
o
s
a
 

M
o
ri
s
o
n
 –
 

9
9
.4
%
 

 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

L
iv
in
g
 –
 

9
9
.4
%
 

 

9
5
%
 

u
ti
lis
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
ti
lis
a
ti
o
n
 

(m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 b
y
 

c
a
lc
u
la
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta
ff
 h
o
u
rs
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 a
s
 a
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
ta
ff
 

h
o
u
rs
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
) 
fo
r 

Y
o
u
r 
C
h
o
ic
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 

V
a
lle
y
 W

a
y.
 T
h
is
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 c
o
v
e
rs
 a
ll 

Y
C
B
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

B
IL
S
 -
8
3
.9
%
 

 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
p
a
c
e
 –
 

9
8
.8
%
 

 
F
lo
w
e
r 
L
a
n
e
 

–
 9
8
.2
%
 

 
R
o
s
a
 

M
o
ri
s
o
n
 –
 

9
8
.9
%
 

 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

L
iv
in
g
 –
 

9
8
.4
%
 

 

A
 

s
in
g
l

e
 

fi
g
u
r

e
 i
s
 

n
o
t 

u
s
e
d
 

fo
r 
a
ll 

s
e
rv
i

c
e
s
 

�
�
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
2
7
 

V
a
lle

y
 W

a
y
 

Q
2
 

M
o
n
 t
o
 T
h
u
rs
 

–
 3
3
%
 

v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 

 
F
ri
d
a
y
 t
o
 

S
u
n
d
a
y
 

1
9
.2
%
 

5
%
 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 

ra
te
 

T
h
e
 v
a
c
a
n
t 
n
ig
h
ts
 a
t 
 

th
e
 V
a
lle
y
 W

a
y 

R
e
s
p
it
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
, 

e
x
p
re
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 

p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f 
n
ig
h
ts
 

b
o
o
k
a
b
le
. 
T
h
e
 

in
d
ic
a
to
r 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

to
 s
h
o
w
 w
e
e
k
e
n
d
 a
n
d
 

m
id
-w
e
e
k
 v
a
c
a
n
c
y
 

ra
te
s
. 

 M
o
n
 t
o
 

T
h
u
rs
: 
3
0
.7
%
 

 
F
ri
d
a
y
 t
o
 

S
u
n
: 
2
2
.6
%
 

M
o
n
 

to
 

T
h
u
r

s
 
2
8
%
 

v
a
ri
a

n
c
e
 

 F
ri
 t
o
 

S
u
n
 

1
7
.2

%
 

�
�
 

N
o
 b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

Y
C
B
 

P
I 
2
8
 

B
u
si
n
e
ss

 C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 /
 

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
cy

 P
la

n
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 -
 

Y
e
s
 

Y
e
s
 

A
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

w
h
e
th
e
r 
Y
C
B
 h
a
s
 a
 

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 P
la
n
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
. 

 
0
 

n
/a
 

A
ll 
c
a
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
re
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 

P
la
n
s
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 

9
 

  

83



 3
.3

 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s

 &
 E

s
c

a
la

ti
o

n
s
 

P
I 
N
O
 a
n
d
 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
  

Y
C
B
 P
I 
5
 U
s
e
 o
f 
D
ir
e
c
t 

P
a
ym

e
n
ts
, 
P
re
-P
a
id
 

C
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 I
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 F
u
n
d
s
 

A
ll 
B
a
rn
e
t 
A
d
u
lt
s
 &
 C

o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 U

s
e
rs
 a
re
 o
ff
e
re
d
 a
 D

ir
e
c
t 
P
a
y
m
e
n
t 
(D

P
) 
a
t 
in
it
ia
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a
n
n
u
a
l 

re
v
ie
w
. 
R
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
n
o
t 
ta
k
in
g
 u
p
 a
 D

P
 a
re
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 C

a
re
 P
a
n
e
l.
 T
h
e
 Y
C
B
 %

 o
f 
D
P
s
 i
s
 l
o
w
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

to
ta
l 
g
ro
u
p
 o
f 
L
D
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 k
n
o
w
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 
w
h
e
re
 s
o
m
e
 4
0
%
 t
a
k
e
 a
 D

P
 a
n
d
 T
ra
n
s
it
io
n
s
 (
m
o
s
tl
y
 L
D
) 
w
h
e
re
 

8
2
%
 t
a
k
e
 a
 D

P
. 
M
o
re
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 b
y
 Y
C
B
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 h
o
w
 t
h
is
 p
o
s
it
io
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
. 

Y
C
B
 P
I 
6
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 

m
o
v
e
d
 o
n
 f
ro
m
 a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

le
v
e
l 
to
 a
 l
o
w
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 

le
v
e
l 

T
h
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 o
f 
th
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
is
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
Y
C
B
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
. 

W
it
h
 t
h
e
 Y
C
B
 c
lie
n
t 
g
ro
u
p
, 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
ill
 h
a
v
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 t
h
e
ir
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
 r
e
v
ie
w
. 
T
h
e
 

k
e
y 
ro
le
 f
o
r 
Y
C
B
 i
s
 t
o
 a
m
e
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 p
la
n
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
re
 m

e
t.
 T
h
is
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic
a
to
r 
s
h
o
w
s
 t
h
a
t 
1
9
 p
e
o
p
le
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
rs
 o
f 
c
a
re
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 (
w
h
ile
 2
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
d
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
).
 T
h
is
 m

a
y
 b
e
 d
u
e
 t
o
 a
 c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
Y
C
B
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 o
v
e
r 
a
 l
o
n
g
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 
ti
m
e
 a
n
d
 /
o
r 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 h
o
u
rs
 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 C
a
re
 

P
la
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

Y
C
B
 P
I 
1
1
 T
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
 

T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
 i
n
 Y
C
B
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 w
it
h
in
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 

L
iv
in
g
. 
C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 B
o
a
rd
 h
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
. 
P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 W

o
rk
e
r 
p
o
s
ts
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 t
a
k
e
n
 p
la
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 W

o
rk
e
r 
p
o
s
ts
 w
ill
 s
h
o
rt
ly
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
. 
W
e
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 e
x
p
e
c
t 
to
 s
e
e
 a
 m

in
o
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
is
 f
ig
u
re
 f
o
r 
Q
3
 w
it
h
 g
re
a
te
r 
im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
Q
4
. 
C
o
re
 s
ta
ff
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
ill
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 g
o
in
g
 f
o
rw
a
rd
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r.
  

Y
C
B
 P
I 
2
7
 V
a
lle
y
 W

a
y
 

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
fl
e
x
ib
le
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
d
a
y
 a
n
d
 T
u
e
s
d
a
y
 t
h
is
 h
a
s
 h
a
d
 a
 s
lig
h
t 
p
o
s
it
iv
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 v
o
id
 r
a
te
 

fo
r 
M
o
n
 –
 T
h
u
rs
d
a
y
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 h
ig
h
e
r 
le
v
e
ls
 o
f 
o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 d
u
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
t 
m
o
n
th
ly
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

 4
. 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 A

N
D

 V
A

L
U

E
 F

O
R

 M
O

N
E

Y
 

4
.1

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 

 T
h

is
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 i

s
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

 t
o

 Y
C

B
. 

 4
.2

 C
a

p
it

a
l 

 T
h

is
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 i

s
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

 t
o

 Y
C

B
. 

 5
. 

O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 O

F
 D

E
L

IV
E

R
Y

 U
N

IT
 

5
.1

 M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 t

h
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s

s
 

. T
h

is
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 i

s
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

 t
o

 Y
C

B
.

84



 5
.2

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

  
 

P
ro
je
c
t 
 

O
u
tt
u
rn
  

D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

T
ra
v
e
l 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ry
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

B
IL

S
, 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

p
a

c
e
, 

S
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 L

iv
in

g
) 

 
 

T
h

is
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 a

 r
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 n

o
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
 

 
 

 
 

  P
le

a
s
e

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 a
n

y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 i
n

it
ia

te
d
 (

i.
e

. 
h
a

v
e

 P
ro

je
c
t 

B
ri
e

f/
P

ID
).

  
F

o
r 

th
o
s
e

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

v
e
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

it
ia

te
d

, 
p

le
a

s
e
 g

iv
e

 a
 s

in
g

le
 c

o
lo

u
r 

ra
n

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 
–

 w
it
h

 a
 s

h
o

rt
 e

x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

s
. 
  

 R
A

G
 

R
e

d
 

A
m

b
e

r 
 

G
re

e
n

 

D
e

li
v
e

ra
b

le
s

/ 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

D
e

liv
e

ra
b

le
s
/ 

O
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 m

a
y
 

n
o

t 
b

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

o
n

 t
im

e
 o

r 
o

n
 

b
u

d
g
e

t 

D
e

liv
e

ra
b

le
s
/ 

O
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 

c
o

m
p

ro
m

is
e
d

, 
ti
m

e
 o

r 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 

D
e

liv
e

ra
b

le
s
/ 

O
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 o

n
 

tr
a

c
k
 i
n

 
a

c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 
w

it
h

 t
im

e
 a

n
d

 
b

u
d

g
e

t 

 D
O

T
 

 U
p

  
 S

a
m

e
 

D
o

w
n

  

C
ri
te

ri
a

 
B

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 i
n

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
t 

re
p

o
rt

 

S
a

m
e

 a
s
 i
n

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
re

p
o

rt
 

W
o
rs

e
 t
h

a
n

 i
n

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
t 
 

  

85



  5
.3

 R
is

k
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
  
 

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in
g
 i
s
 t
h
e
 5
 X
 5
 m

a
tr
ix
 ‘
h
e
a
t 
m
a
p
’ 
h
ig
h
lig

h
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
ri
s
k
s
 f
o
r 
Y
C
B
 a
n
d
 w

h
e
re
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
a
te
d
: 

   

PROBABILITY 

S
C
O
R
E
 

IM
P
A
C
T
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

N
e

g
li

g
ib

le
 

M
in

o
r 

M
o

d
e

ra
te

 
M

a
jo

r 
C

a
ta

s
tr

o
p

h
ic

 

5
 

A
lm

o
s

t 
C

e
rt

a
in

 
 

 
 

 
 

4
 

L
ik

e
ly

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
 

P
o

s
s

ib
le

 
 

 
4

 
3

 
 

2
 

U
n

li
k

e
ly

 
 

 
 

1
 

 

1
 

R
a

re
 

 
 

2
 

 
 

   
 

R
is
k
 C
o
m
m
e
n
ta
ry
 f
o
r 
Y
C
B
 (
ri
s
k
s
 r
a
te
d
 1
2
 a
n
d
 

a
b
o
v
e
):
  
  

1
. 
Y
C
B
 I
n
c
o
m
e
: 
T
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
g
e
n
e
ra
te
 t
h
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
in
c
o
m
e
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
v
ia
b
ili
ty
: 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm
 r
is
k
. 

•
 
C
o
n
tr
o
l:
 Y
C
B
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

fo
r 
p
ro
m
o
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 n
e
w
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
, 
b
o
th
 i
n
c
re
m
e
n
ta
l 
a
n
d
 o
rg
a
n
ic
 g
ro
w
th
. 

T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
re
 n
o
w
 r
e
fl
e
c
te
d
 w
it
h
in
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

O
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
3
/1
4
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
. 

 2
. 
Y
C
B
 c
a
s
h
 f
lo
w
: 
M
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
fr
o
m
 p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
in
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 

p
a
y
m
e
n
t 
in
 a
rr
e
a
rs
 p
re
s
e
n
ts
 a
 c
a
s
h
 f
lo
w
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 

re
q
u
ir
in
g
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t:
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 r
is
k
. 

•
 
C
o
n
tr
o
l:
 C
h
a
rg
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
L
B
B
 a
n
d
 B
a
rn
e
t 

C
C
G
. 
C
lo
s
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
b
u
d
g
e
ta
ry
 i
n
c
o
m
e
 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 v
ia
 m
o
n
th
ly
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w
it
h
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 c
lo
s
e
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 a
t 
Y
C
B
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

 3
. 
Y
C
B
 N
e
w
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
: 
L
a
c
k
 o
f 
a
b
ili
ty
 t
o
 g
ro
w
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f 

c
o
m
p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m
a
rk
e
t:
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 r
is
k
. 

•
 
C
o
n
tr
o
l:
 Y
C
B
 O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
a
l 
P
la
n
 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o
n
 g
ro
w
th
 i
n
 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t/
n
ic
h
e
 m
a
rk
e
t 
w
h
e
re
 q
u
a
lit
y
 a
n
d
 t
ra
c
k
 r
e
c
o
rd
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
d
. 
R
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 b
e
in
g
 p
u
rs
u
e
d
 (
s
e
e
 1
 a
b
o
v
e
).
 

 4
. 
T
h
e
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
y 
s
ta
ff
 c
a
n
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 

th
a
t 
s
ta
ff
 h
a
v
e
 l
e
s
s
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
k
ill
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
c
a
re
 

•
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l:
 Y
C
B
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 r
o
b
u
s
t 
re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 h
ig
h
 c
a
lib
re
 o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
y 
s
ta
ff
. 
C
o
re
 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

(n
o
n
-a
g
e
n
c
y
) 
s
ta
ff
in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls
 f
o
r 
e
a
c
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
re
a
 w
ill
 

a
ls
o
 n
o
w
 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 Y
C
B
 R
is
k
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
a
s
 a
 

ri
s
k
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 r
e
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 &
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
’s
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

(S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 O
S
C
 2
7
.1
1
.2
0
1
3
 r
e
fe
rs
) 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
b
y
 C
a
b
in
e
t.
 

  
 

N
o
te
: 
Y
C
B
 r
e
p
o
rt
s
 r
is
k
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 R
is
k
 

R
e
g
is
te
r,
 w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
t 
T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 B
o
a
rd
. 

86



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Contract Monitoring Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 13 January 2013 

Subject Year 1 Performance of HB Public Law 

Report of Commercial & Customer Services 
Director 

Summary of Report This report covers the performance of HB Public law 
during the first year of operation under the Inter 
Authority Agreement with Harrow 

 

 
Officer Contributors Claire Symonds, Commercial & Customer Services 

Director  

Marcus Jordon, Contract Manager 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected All 

Key Decision No 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not Applicable 

Function of Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Enclosures  
Appendix A - Service levels 
 
Appendix B - HBPL performance against KPI’s 
 
Appendix C - Risks 
 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Claire Symonds, Commercial & Customer Services 
Director, Claire.symonds@barnet.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7

87



 
 
1. RECOMMENDATION  
 
1.1 That the Committee consider the information in this report and make 

comments and recommendations as appropriate. 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Council, 16 April 2013, (item 4.3) – approved recommendations from the 

Constitution Ethics and Probity Committee, which included the establishment 
of a Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee with responsibility 
for scrutinising the performance of the main externalised contracts. The 
Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee has requested this 
review as part of the agreed Forward Work Programme. 

 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The three priority outcomes set out in the 2013/16 Corporate Plan are: 

• Promote responsible growth, development and success across the 
borough 

• Support families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, 
learning and wellbeing 

• Improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London 
Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study 

 
3.2  All the commercial partnerships are intended to contribute to one or more of

 these priorities. 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 Risk monitoring is an essential component of robust contract management. 

The risk log is reviewed routinely by the contract manager and reported to the 
partnership governance board. Risks with a rating above 12 are reported to 
the Delivery Board, the Lead Commissioner, and the Strategic Commissioning 
Board and the lead Cabinet Member. They are also reported to this 
Committee. 

 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Inter Authority Agreement (IAA) obligates the joint legal service to comply 

with the Equalities policy of Harrow. 
 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
 
6.1 The indications are that the joint legal service (JLS) is providing good value for 

money and the base charge for core hours is certainly very competitive. As of 
the end of Q2 2013, The Council is forecasting an overspend on HB Public 
Law of £0.294m due to the cost of additional hours purchased in quarter 1 and 

88



a shortfall on income recovery such as Section 106 agreements . Further 
costs will also fall on the service areas which will be in addition to the 
overspend indicated above. This is largely due to increased usage particularly 
in the Childrens’ area. This is dealt with in section 9.14 below. 

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 The relationship is governed by the terms of the Inter Authority Agreement. 
 
7.2      In the unlikely event that the Council required independent legal advice with 

respect to the Inter Authority Agreement with Harrow, advice would be 
sourced from an appropriately qualified independent legal advisor 

 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 The roles and terms of reference of all scrutiny Committees are contained 

within Part 2, Article 6 of the Constitution; and in the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution). The Contract Monitoring 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for scrutinising reports from 
the Commissioning Group, Delivery Units and Lead Commissioners detailing 
the performance against targets that are included within the Corporate Plan 
and otherwise relating to the services provided by the Customer & Support 
Group, Development & Regulatory Services, The Barnet Group Ltd, HB Public 
Law and NSL (external Delivery Units) NSL and other major contracts, and to 
be able to challenge external providers. 

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 HB public Law (HBPL) was established in September 2012 through an inter 

authority agreement (IAA) with Harrow. Under the IAA the legal services of 
Harrow and Barnet were combined. All Barnet legal staff were transferred to 
Harrow under TUPE arrangements (the pension fund deficit in respect of those 
transferring remains with Barnet). 

 
9.2 The joint legal service is based in Harrow. The IAA has an initial term of 5 

years with an option to extend for a further 5 years.  The objectives of the 
parties in establishing the service included – 

• Gaining an improved quality of service. 

• Obtaining greater clarity as to legal costs 

• Gain a more resilient service 

• To reduce costs through more efficient working, reduced management 
and accommodation costs and outsourcing less work to third parties, 
both barristers and solicitors, as a result of having a larger skill base. 

• To explore the possibility of raising income from additional sources, 
especially selling excess capacity to other organisations. 

 
9.3 How the IAA works - At the beginning of each financial year, Barnet and 

Harrow commit to buy an agreed number of “core hours” for the year. The 
intention is that subject to other third party external work that HBPL may 
budget for, the core hours will fund the service for the year. The core hours are 
then given a monthly profile across the council for the year and each month 

89



they are then available on a “use it or lose it” basis. This enables core hours to 
be priced at cost as it provides guaranteed income to HBPL. 

 
9.4 Hours required in excess of core hours are then charged at £90 per hour to 

reflect the fact that additional legal resources may need to be bought in at 
short notice and may therefore be more expensive. After costs of staff and 
equipment are taken out of this £90, the remainder goes into a surplus which 
is shared between the two councils at the end of the year according to usage.  

 
9.5 The IAA that set out the minimum standards relating to the service to be 

provided by HBPL, details are set out in Appendix A. These primarily relate to 
response times. A management agreement is also in place between Barnet 
and HBPL which builds upon the service levels required. If as a result of 
Barnet significantly reducing the hours required from one year to the next 
there is a need for redundancies within HBPL, the redundancy costs fall to 
Barnet, however, at present the work is increasing. 

 
9.6 Management of HBPL - The legal service is located in Harrow and managed 

on a day to day basis by Harrow. 
The Council manages the service through – 

• A strategic monitoring board that meets quarterly and reviews strategy 
and operational matters of the practice. The Board consists of the 
Barnet Chief Executive, Harrow’s Head of Paid Service, Both Council’s 
Monitoring Officers, the Head of Legal Practice and the HBPL contract 
manager. 

• The Barnet HBPL contract manager manages the contract on a day to 
day basis from a Barnet perspective and is part of the Commercial 
Team. Regular meetings are held between the Contract Manager and 
the Head of Legal. 

• Service Level Agreements exist with Delivery Units/Delivery Units 
manage their commissions for legal advice and also the budgetary 
impact. Client liaison meetings are conducted regularly. 

• Quarterly performance reporting, HBPL complete the quarterly reports 
on key performance indicators Barnet risks are recorded on the central 
JCAD risk management system and comply with the Council’s risk 
management policy.   

• Legal budgets have historically been managed centrally by Barnet. 
They have now been devolved to the delivery units so each unit is 
responsible for any overspend arising in their area. This will encourage 
closer monitoring of legal costs and usage by the users.      

• Quarterly contingency updates are given to finance. 
 

9.7 Performance- The transfer of the Council staff to Harrow has been relatively 
seamless with no interruption or deterioration in service. Feedback from legal 
staff has also been very positive about the new offices. 

 
9.8 Client satisfaction forms are sent out when a matter is closed. In the 12 

months to 31/08/13 the percentage of responses received marking the service 
as satisfactory or better was 92.84, with 26% giving and excellent response. It 
is also worth noting that in the 5 months to 31/08/13 the corresponding figure 
were 100% satisfactory or better and 51% excellent. This would appear to 
support the view that the service has improved and/or all the integration issues 
have been sorted out in the first six months of service. Full details are set out 
in table 1 below. 

90



 
                                                                         Table 1 

CLIENT SATISFACTION Responses Received 01/04/13 to 
31/08/13 

Number of forms sent  607 

Number of forms received  125 

Number of unanswered not graded forms 5 

Analysis Taken From  120 

Number of Excellent Responses 62 

Number of Good Responses  37 

Number of Satisfactory Responses  21 

Number of Poor Responses 0 

Excellent/Good/Satisfied Total  120 

Number Dissatisfied 0 

Percentage Satisfied or better  100% 

  

CLIENT SATISFACTION Responses Received 01/09/12 to 
31/08/13 

Number of forms sent  916 

Number of forms received  381 

Number of unanswered not graded forms  14 

Analysis Taken From  377 

Number of Excellent Responses  99 

Number of Good Responses  61 

Number of Satisfactory Responses  190 

Excellent/Good/Satisfied Total  350 

Number Dissatisfied  17 

Percentage Satisfied or better  93% 

 
 
9.9  Since September 2012 HBPL have received 72 recorded unsolicited 

compliments from clients these include – 
 

Internal (Barnet) 12/04/2013 "This is an Excellent outcome, Well done 
to you and others who worked on the case." 

 
Internal Harrow, libraries project August 2013 “The legal team were 
stars.” 

 
Internal (Barnet) Hendon FC/Jewish Girls School 12/04/2013 "Thank 
you, for your briefing and for your excellent work on this difficult case.  

 
 

9.10  The IAA includes performance indicators that are monitored by the Strategic 
Monitoring Board. The indicators are also monitored in the quarterly 
performance reports which reflect the targets set out in the Management 
Agreement. Details of the performance in Q2 are set out in Appendix 2. 

 
9.11  HBPL continue to increase the amount of work that they perform in house. 

This means that Barnet benefit from their low rate rather than paying the much 
higher rates of external barristers and solicitors. In the year 2012/13 HBPL 
believe that the amount spent on Barristers decreased from £610,685 in the 
previous year to £500,507 (an 18% reduction). 

91



 
9.12  Savings have been made in the areas of employment tribunal work, 

prosecutions, property, regeneration and planning through doing additional 
work. The HBPL team has been strengthened in the area of property and 
regeneration to enable it to provide a better service and do more of the work 
that was previously given to third parties. 
 

9.13 HBPL have obtained accreditations from both Investors in People and Lexel 
(the law society quality management body). The latest Lexcel accreditation 
inspection has just taken place and no non compliances were found. It is 
possible to pass with minor non compliances and we are told that it is very 
unusual for an inspection to find no non compliances. HBPL have recently 
been short listed for the Local Government Cronicle Public / Public partnership 
of the year. 
 

9.14 Financials – Details of the hours used by HBPL are provided on a monthly   
 basis. These hours are then circulated to the delivery units by the contract 
manager so that they can be checked to ensure that the hours are in line with 
expectations and raise questions if they are not. The cost per hour charged by 
HBPL reduced by c. 3% 0n 1st April 2013, although it has since increased by 
just under 1% to reflect pay increases. This still represents a saving of some 
2% year on year against what was already a very competitive rate. 
 

9.15 In the current year the hours are exceeding the budget level by some 2,800 
hours. This is in part because too few hours were budgeted and in part due to 
increased usage – particularly in the areas of child protection work and 
regeneration. HBPL are actively working with Barnet to try to reduce the 
number of hours where it is practical to do so. Examples of this include 
carrying out training and giving a list of frequently asked questions in the 
adults area so that staff feel more able to make decisions with consulting 
lawyers. In the children’s area work will be done to improve the quality of 
reports provided to HBPL so that lawyers can spend less time correcting them. 
HBPL are also supporting the regeneration team and taking on work that 
would previously have been outsourced. 
 

9.16 2013 was the first full year of operation of HBPL and budgeting was always 
going to be difficult because of poor records relating to total legal spend. In 
addition the volume of legal work in any year will always fluctuate either 
because of changing legislative demands or because it is simply not possible 
to predict with certainty what the legal demands in any year will be. 
 

9.17 The budget for 2014/15 will be closely reviewed as it is important to purchase 
the right number of hours from HBPL at the beginning of the year in order to 
get the best value. If too few hours are purchased, then a premium is paid for 
extra hours used. On the other hand, if too many hours are purchased then 
any hours not used in a month are lost under the use it or lose it principle. 
 

9.18 At the end of each financial year the IAA provides that HBPL will pay a “gain 
share” to Barnet and Harrow if any profit is made. For the 7 months ending 
31/03/13 a surplus of £21,199 was paid to Barnet. 
 

9.19 Issues- The IAA was put in place at a time when the in-house Barnet legal 
service was generally regarded as poor. Legal costs were not controlled as 
well as they could have been as services were not accountable for legal 

92



expenditure which was met centrally. In addition the use of external lawyers 
was not always monitored as on some occasions delivery units would instruct 
lawyers directly. The issues that have arisen with HBPL need to been viewed 
against this context: 
 
 

1. Whilst the hourly rate being charged by HBPL is clearly cheaper than 
the comparable service while it was being provided by Barnet, it is 
proving difficult to accurately measure VFM as – 

 
� There was a backlog of work within the Barnet legal department 

prior to the transfer (particularly in the areas of contracts, 
prosecutions and property) this is being dealt with by HBPL. 

� HBPL are doing a greater amount of work in house than Barnet 
did. More advocacy work is being done and more work is being 
done for regeneration. 

� The volume of legal work required by Barnet year on year varies 
through a number of factors including activity levels, legislation 
and council processes. 

� The Council does not have clear records of total legal spend on 
a year on year basis. The internal legal function was costed but 
external legal advice was paid for both by the legal service and 
also by individual departments, total legal spend was not 
accurately tracked. 

� Whilst it is relatively simple to measure areas such as 
responsiveness and client satisfaction it is difficult to ensure that 
the number of hours being charged on individual matters 
represents value for money. In recognition of this is intended to 
do some benchmarking to ensure that HBPL remains 
competitive in terms of both hourly rates and the number of 
hours charged on individual matters. 

 
2. HBPL has two computer systems as a result of the two entities coming 

together. This makes it a little more complex to monitor hours and 
performance. It had been hoped to move to a single system by now but 
this has not yet happened. It is now hoped that the new system will go 
live in the New Year. 

3. HBPL is not yet providing time estimates for all work, similar to a quote 
system. Estimates will help Barnet monitor hours used and to ask 
questions when hours are exceeded or indeed where fewer hours are 
used than forecast. It is recognised that in some areas this is easier to 
do others for example estimates would be far easier to provide for right 
to buys   but very difficult in other areas such as child protection , 
employment and litigation.  

 
4. A few costs have come through in the current year (c. £40k) that relate 

to mainly barristers fees incurred prior to HPBL going live in September 
2012. These have not been budgeted for and therefore add to 
pressures on the budget. It is hoped that there will not be any more 
such costs given that any will now be more than 12 months old. 

 
5. With Capita now controlling both CSG and RE there is a risk that they 

may decide to use HBPL less or not at all. The Council has encouraged 
Capita to use HBPL as it is a key performance indicator that they work 

93



effectively with our partners. Where work diminishes for HBPL this will 
have obvious consequences for staff working at the shared service and 
impact on the costs payable by Barnet for any resulting redundancies. 
Strategically a change to the business model may impact the service on 
attracting additional local government partners in the future. 

 
9.20 Risk - Risk relating to HBPL and its management are recorded on the 

Council’s JCAD system. In addition HBPL maintain their own log of cases 
where there is perceived to be a greater than normal risk. This risk log 
provided to Barnet finance and is discussed at the monthly formal meeting 
between Head of HBPLaw and the contract manager. JCAD risks are set out 
in Appendix 3 
 

9.21 Conclusion - This is the first year of operation of HB Public Law and as the  
report shows, there has been a smooth transition to the new service, 
governance arrangements have been put in place and customer satisfaction 
ratings have been high. 
 

9.22 Units costs are cheaper, although the hours used are exceeding the budget 
level. HBPL are actively working with Barnet to try to reduce the number of 
hours where it is practical to do so 

 
10.  LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 Appendix 1 Service levels 
 
10.2    Appendix 2 HBPL performance against KPI’s 
 
10.3   Appendix 3 Risks 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officers initials) JH 

Cleared by Legal  (Officers initials) JF 

 
 
 
 

94



APPENDIX 1 

 

HB Public Law Service Levels 

 

• Based upon the total chargeable hours available to the Client over the 
period of this agreement, the JLS shall aim to meet the following standards 
("the generic standards") at least 95% of the time provided that in relation 
to the standards defined below as "deferred standards" the JLS shall aim to 
meet them at least 95% of the time by 1 April 2013 to recognise that there 
needs to be a transitional time to allow for the setting up of the means of 
measuring and monitoring such standards.  Some matters (which are non-
standard) may take longer and the JLS shall agree a target deadline with 
the Client when the JLS commence the work. 

• All work to be allocated to a named officer and the Client shall receive his 
or her contact details and that of the manager. 

• All new instructions shall be assessed and acknowledged within 3 Working 
Days of receipt of instructions, at which stage the Client shall be notified of 
the officer who shall have conduct of the matter and identity of his/her 
manager. 

• A file shall be opened and within 5 Working Days of receipt of instructions 
the Client shall be sent a memorandum notifying it of the fee earner who 
shall have conduct of the matter, and the identity of his/her manager   

• All Client e-mails to be acknowledged the Working Day it is received, 
unless the member of staff to whom an email is addressed is absent from 
the office in which case it shall be acknowledged on the Day that it comes 
to the attention of another member (a deferred standard) 

• Subject to receipt of full instructions, including plans, etc first draft 
documentation shall be produced and sent to the Client within 10 Working 
Days from instructions.  If there are any difficulties in meeting this target the 
Client shall be notified and discussions held with the Client concerning the 
same. 

• The JLS shall endeavour to respond to all phone calls or messages on the 
Day they are received or passed to a manager for a response (a deferred 
standard). 

• The JLS shall respond to all further instructions, on an existing matter, 
within 5 Working Days. 

• The JLS shall try to complete all transactions as quickly as possible, but 
this is dependent on the time it takes for the Client to respond to the JLS on 
any queries. 

• The JLS shall clear all draft committee reports and delegated power reports 
within 5 clear Working Days unless otherwise agreed with the Client.  

• The JLS shall treat all urgent requests, received before 3.00 p.m. on the 
Day in question, as requiring action on the Day the JLS receive the Client's 
instructions but the JLS shall verify with the Client why this is urgent.  It 
may be that other matters the JLS are dealing with for the Client may have 
to receive lower priority and the JLS shall discuss this with the Client. 

• The JLS shall deal with all non urgent advice requests within 10 Working 
Days of receipt unless otherwise agreed with the Client. 

 

95



96

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

it
s

 K
e

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 (

K
P

Is
) 

Q
2

 2
0

1
3
 

K
P

I 
N

O
 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

d
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

P
e

ri
o

d
 

C
o

v
e

re
d

 
P

re
v

io
u

s
 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
 

N
u

m
e

ra
to

r 
a

n
d

 
D

e
n

o
m

in
a

to
r 

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

D
o

T
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

  

H
B

L
0
0
1
 

T
o
 e
n
su

re
 t
im

e
ly
 r
e
sp

o
n
se
 t
o
 

a
ll 
in
st
ru
ct
io
n
s/
m
a
tt
e
rs
 

a
) 
N
o
. 
o
f 
h
o
u
rs
 t
o
 

a
ck
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 e
m
a
ils
 (
2
4
 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

b
) 
N
o
. 
o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s 
to
 

re
p
ly
 t
o
 e
m
a
ils
 (
ta
rg
e
t 
5
) 

c)
 N
o
. 
o
f 
d
a
y
s 
to
 r
e
p
ly
 t
o
 f
a
x
 

o
r 
le
tt
e
r 
(t
a
rg
e
t 
1
0
) 

d
) 
N
o
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s 
to
 o
p
e
n
 

a
 f
ile
 (
ta
rg
e
t 
5
) 

e
) 
N
o
. 
o
f 
d
a
y
s 
to
 r
e
sp

o
n
d
 t
o
 

n
o
n
-u
rg
e
n
t 
re
q
u
e
st
s 
(t
a
rg
e
t 

1
0
) 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
3
%
 

9
5
%
 

1
0
9
/1

2
0
 

9
1
%
 

4
.4
%
 

�
 

2
.3
%

 
L
o
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

T
h
e
 K
P
I 
is
 m
a
d
e
 u
p
 o
f 
th
e
 s
u
b
-t
a
rg
e
ts
 b
e
lo
w
: 

H
B

L
0
0
1
 

(a
)*

 

N
o
. 
o
f 
h
o
u
rs
 t
o
 a
ck
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 

e
m
a
ils
 (
2
4
 t
a
rg
e
t)
 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

N
/A
 

9
5
%
 

2
2
/2
4
 

9
2
%
 

3
.5
%
 

N
/A
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 
 

H
B

L
0
0
1
 

(b
)*

 

N
o
. 
o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s 
to
 r
e
p
ly
 

to
 e
m
a
ils
 (
ta
rg
e
t 
5
) 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

N
/A
 

9
5
%

 
2
3
/2
4
 

9
6
%
 

0
.9
%
 

N
/A
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 

97



  A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w
a
s
 d
o
w
n
 a
t 
9
1
%
 t
h
is
 w
a
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 7
5
%
 o
u
tt
u
rn
 f
o
r 
th
e
 K
P
I 
re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 f
ile
 o
p
e
n
in
g
. 
D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 

fi
le
s
 w
e
re
 n
o
t 
o
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 a
 t
im
e
ly
 m
a
n
n
e
r 
b
u
t 
th
is
 i
s
 l
a
rg
e
ly
 a
n
 a
d
m
in
is
tr
a
ti
v
e
 m
a
tt
e
r 
a
n
d
 h
a
s
 n
o
 r
e
a
l 
e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
It
 i
s
 m
e
a
s
u
re
d
 a
s
 i
t 
p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 L
E
X
C
E
L
 a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 
L
E
X
C
E
L
 i
s
 t
h
e
 L
a
w
 S
o
c
ie
ty
 a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 l
e
g
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
. 
T
h
e
 m
a
tt
e
r 
is
 n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
. 
W
ith
o
u
t 
th
is
 m
e
a
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 9
5
%
 (
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t)
. 

 
 

H
B

L
0
0
1
 

(c
 )

* 

N
o
. 
o
f 
d
a
y
s 
to
 r
e
p
ly
 t
o
 f
a
x
 o
r 

le
tt
e
r 
(t
a
rg
e
t 
1
0
) 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

N
/A
 

9
5
%

 
2
4
/2
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

5
.3
%
 

N
/A
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 

H
B

L
0
0
1
 

(d
)*

 

N
o
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s 
to
 o
p
e
n
 a
 

fi
le
 (
ta
rg
e
t 
5
) 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

N
/A
 

9
5
%

 
1
8
/2
4
 

7
5
%
 

2
1
.1
%
 

N
/A
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 

H
B

L
0
0
1
 

(e
)*

 

N
o
. 
o
f 
d
a
y
s 
to
 r
e
sp

o
n
d
 t
o
 

n
o
n
-u
rg
e
n
t 
re
q
u
e
st
s 
(t
a
rg
e
t 

1
0
) 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

N
/A
 

9
5
%

 
2
2
/2
3
 

9
6
%
 

0
.7
%
 

N
/A
 

L
o
c
a
l 
In
d
ic
a
to
r 

98



 

K
P

I 
N

O
 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

d
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
  

P
e

ri
o

d
 

C
o

v
e

re
d

 
P

re
v

io
u

s
 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
 

N
u

m
e

ra
to

r 
a

n
d

 
D

e
n

o
m

in
a

to
r 

 
O

u
tt

u
rn

  
T

a
rg

e
t 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

D
o

T
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

B
e

n
c

h
m

a
rk

in
g

  

H
B

L
0
0
2
 

%
 o
f 
cl
ie
n
ts
 g
iv
in
g
 a
 r
a
ti
n
g
 o
f 

sa
ti
sf
a
ct
o
ry
, 
g
o
o
d
, 
o
r 
e
x
ce

lle
n
t 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

9
3
%
 

9
0
%
 

7
8
/7
8
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
1
.1
%
 

�
 

7
.2
%

 
L
o
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

H
B

L
0
0
3
 

%
 o
f 
cl
ie
n
ts
 g
iv
in
g
 a
 r
a
ti
n
g
 o
f 

sa
ti
sf
a
ct
o
ry
, 
g
o
o
d
, 
o
r 
e
x
ce

lle
n
t 

fo
r 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
w
o
rk
 

D
a
ta
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 Q
3
 

H
B

L
0
0
4
 

(a
) 

A
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
cc
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
  

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

3
/3
 

1
0
0
%
 

0
%
 

�
 

0
%
 

 

L
o
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

H
B

L
0
0
4
 

(b
) 

E
n
su

re
 a
ll 
st
a
ff
 a
re
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
 q
u
a
lif
ie
d
 

J
u
l 
1
3
 -
 

S
e
p
t 
1
3
 

1
0
0
%
 

1
0
0
%
 

8
4
/8
4
 

1
0
0
%
 

0
%
 

�
 

0
%
 

L
o
c
a
l 
in
d
ic
a
to
r 

H
B

L
0
0
5
 

(b
) 

O
n
-g
o
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
in
g
 v
a
lu
e
 

fo
r 
m
o
n
e
y
: 
£
5
0
,0
0
0
 r
e
d
u
ct
io
n
 

in
 u
se
 o
f 
e
x
te
rn
a
l 
co

u
n
se
l 

A
n
n
u
a
lly
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
. 
F
in
a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn
 d
u
e
 i
n
 q
u
a
rt
e
r 
4
. 

         

99



100

This page is intentionally left blank



 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 3
 

 3
.1
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 O
F
 H
B
 P
u
b
li
c
 L
a
w
 r
is
k
s
 

T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 i
s
 t

h
e

 5
 X

 5
 m

a
tr

ix
 ‘
h

e
a

t 
m

a
p

’ 
h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

ri
s
k
s
 a

t 
a

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 L
e

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 r

a
te

d
: 

  

IMPACT 

S
C
O
R
E
 

P
R
O
B
A
B
IL
IT
Y
  

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
 

R
a

re
 

U
n

li
k

e
ly

 
P

o
s

s
ib

le
 

L
ik

e
ly

 
A

lm
o

s
t 

C
e

rt
a

in
 

5
 

C
a

ta
s

tr
o

p
h

ic
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

4
 

M
a

jo
r 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

3
 

M
o

d
e

ra
te

 
0

 
3

 
3

 
1

 
0

 

2
 

M
in

o
r 

0
 

0
 

1
 

0
 

0
 

1
 

N
e

g
li

g
ib

le
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

0
 

  T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 r

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

lis
ts

 t
h

o
s
e

 r
is

k
s
 r

a
te

d
 a

s
 1

2
 a

n
d
 a

b
o

v
e

: 
 

 
 

R
is

k
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 f

o
r 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 U

n
it

: 
  

G
e
n
e
ra

lly
 t
h
e
 r
is

k
s
 s

u
rr
o
u
n
d
in

g
 H

B
P

L
 a

re
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 
w

e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 v

ig
ila

n
t 
b
u
t 
d
o
 n

o
t 
re

p
re

s
e
n
t 
im

m
in

e
n
t 

th
re

a
ts

. 
T
h
e
 o

n
e
 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 
s
c
o
re

s
 1

2
 i
s
 a

n
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 r
is

k
 

th
a
t 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 w
ill
 b

e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
is

 
ti
g
h
t 
in

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
b
o
th

 t
h
e
 h

o
u
rs

 a
llo

tt
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 t
h
e
 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 
d
is

b
u
rs

e
m

e
n
t 
s
p
e
n
d
. 
T
h
e
re

 i
s
, 
th

e
re

fo
re

, 
a
 r
is

k
 

o
f 
c
o
s
t 
o
v
e
rr
u
n
 e

v
e
n
 i
f 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
le

g
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 r
is

k
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
h
o
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 u
n
it
s
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
a
n
y
 

c
o
s
t 
o
v
e
rr
u
n
s
 o

n
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 a

s
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 u
n
it
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 
th

e
ir
 o

w
n
 c

o
s
t 

o
v
e
rr
u
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 1

s
t  
J
u
ly

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 l
it
tl
e
 d

o
u
b
t 
th

a
t 
th

is
 

w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

b
e
tt
e
r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
le

g
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

 
 

101



3
.2
. 
R
is
k
s
 

R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

R
is
k
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
h
o
u
rs
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 a
n
d
 o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 o
n
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
. 

 C
a
u
s
e
: 
 

- 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
s
 a
re
 n
o
t 
u
s
e
d
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 u
s
e
 o
f 
le
g
a
l 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 b
u
d
g
e
t 

- 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
v
is
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
re
a
l-
ti
m
e
 

d
a
ta
 o
n
 u
s
a
g
e
 

- 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 l
e
s
s
 h
o
u
rs
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
y
 

n
e
e
d
. 

 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 

- 
L
e
g
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
is
 e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 

- 
U
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 u
s
e
 o
f 
le
g
a
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 

- 
H
B
P
L
 s
u
ff
e
r 
fr
o
m
 l
a
s
t 
m
in
u
te
 u
rg
e
n
t 
re
q
u
e
s
ts
 p
u
tt
in
g
 

p
re
s
s
u
re
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 

- 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
s
 i
n
c
u
r 
e
x
tr
a
 l
e
g
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
 n
o
t 
m
e
t 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 

c
e
n
tr
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

- 
D
e
liv
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
s
e
e
k
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 w
h
e
n
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 a
s
 

re
lu
c
ta
n
t 
to
 p
a
y
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
c
o
s
t 
w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
is
 e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

L
ik
e
ly
 

4
 

M
e
d
 

H
ig
h
 

1
2
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

T
h
is
 r
is
k
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 

g
iv
in
g
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
th
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
le
g
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
s
 o
p
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 p
a
y
in
g
 

fr
o
m
 a
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t.
  

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 w
ill
 p
u
t 

g
a
te
k
e
e
p
e
rs
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 

u
s
a
g
e
. 

 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
 

H
B
 P
u
b
lic
 L
a
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

w
ill
 a
ls
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
u
s
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
 

u
n
it
s
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 o
r 
in
 d
a
n
g
e
r 
o
f 
b
e
in
g
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 

T
re
a
t 

M
in
o
r 

2
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
  

M
e
d
 L
o
w
 

6
 

T
h
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
s
e
tt
in
g
 u
p
 

H
B
P
L
 d
o
 n
o
t 
m
a
te
ri
a
li
s
e
. 

 C
a
u
s
e
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 c
a
u
s
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 -
 

1
. 
T
h
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
is
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
to
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
le
g
a
l 

a
d
v
ic
e
 

2
. 
P
o
o
r 
p
la
n
n
in
g
/m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
le
a
d
s
 t
o
 o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 o
f 
le
g
a
l 

b
u
d
g
e
ts
 

3
. 
T
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
le
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 g
e
n
u
in
e
ly
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
s
  

4
. 
T
h
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 f
a
ile
d
 t
o
 c
a
p
tu
re
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
l 
le
g
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 o
f 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 s
e
tt
in
g
 u
p
 o
f 
H
B
P
L
 

5
. 
H
B
P
L
 i
s
 m
o
re
 e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
 t
o
 o
p
e
ra
te
 t
h
a
n
 p
la
n
n
e
d
. 

  

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
 

H
ig
h
 
P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

L
e
g
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
in
g
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 b
y
 a
re
a
. 
 

D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 

H
B
P
L
 t
o
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
a
s
 

th
e
y
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 p
e
rf
o
rm
 

ta
s
k
s
 t
o
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
y
 a
d
d
 l
it
tl
e
 o
r 
n
o
 

v
a
lu
e
. 

L
e
g
a
l 
s
p
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
g
o
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 H
B
P
L
 w
ill
 b
e
 m
o
re
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
rd
e
d
. 

  D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
 

T
h
e
 t
o
ta
l 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 
H
B
P
L
 i
s
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 

T
re
a
t 

M
in
o
r 
 

2
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
iu
m
 

L
o
w
 

102



R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

R
is
k
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 

T
h
e
 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 w
ill
 f
o
r 
th
e
 m
o
s
t 
p
a
rt
 b
e
 a
n
 o
v
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
b
u
d
g
e
t.
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 e
v
e
ry
 e
ff
o
rt
 

m
a
d
e
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 w
h
y
 i
t 
o
c
c
u
rs
 a
s
 i
f 
it
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 a
 g
e
n
u
in
e
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 l
e
g
a
l 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 d
o
e
s
 n
o
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly
 u
n
d
e
rm
in
e
 

th
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
e
e
d
 c
o
u
ld
 r
e
in
fo
rc
e
 i
t 
if
 t
h
e
 r
a
te
s
 

b
e
in
g
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 o
v
e
ra
ll 
a
re
 s
m
a
lle
r 
th
a
n
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
h
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H
B
P
L
 

a
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
c
o
s
t 
to
 B
a
rn
e
t 

Q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
a
d
v
ic
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 

H
B
P
L
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te
/p
e
rc
e
iv
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 o
r 
H
B
P
L
 f
a
il
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

 C
a
u
s
e
 

P
o
o
r 
o
r 
in
c
o
rr
e
c
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 f
ro
m
 H
B
P
L
 l
e
a
d
s
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
to
 a
c
t 

in
 a
 m
a
n
n
e
r 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
to
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 d
o
n
e
 w
it
h
 d
if
fe
re
n
t 

a
d
v
ic
e
. 

 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
/o
r 
re
p
u
ta
ti
o
n
a
l 
lo
s
s
. 

A
 r
e
lu
c
ta
n
c
e
 b
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 u
s
e
 H
B
P
L
 i
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
, 
o
r 
is
 

p
e
rc
e
iv
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
, 
b
e
lo
w
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
. 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
 

H
ig
h
 
P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 d
ia
lo
g
u
e
 w
it
h
 H
B
P
L
 a
n
d
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
. 
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 a
n
 S
L
A
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
. 

H
B
P
L
 h
a
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 B
a
rn
e
t 
in
 t
h
e
 

re
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
ro
le
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re
 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
to
 B
a
rn
e
t 

 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 u
n
it
 g
a
te
k
e
e
p
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
w
ill
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 a
n
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 b
a
s
is
 

a
n
d
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 s
ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 o
n
 a
 q
u
a
rt
e
rl
y
 b
a
s
is
 b
y
 

th
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 B
o
a
rd
. 

 

T
re
a
t 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
 L
o
w
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 d
o
 n
o
t 
w
is
h
 t
o
 u
s
e
 

H
B
P
L
 f
o
r 
re
a
s
o
n
s
 o
f 
q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 

s
e
rv
ic
e
, 
q
u
a
li
ty
 o
f 
a
d
v
ic
e
 o
r 
c
o
s
t.
 

 C
a
u
s
e
 

T
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 o
r 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
a
d
v
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 

H
P
B
L
 d
ro
p
s
 t
o
 a
n
 u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 

 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
 

L
o
w
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 u
n
it
s
 w
ill
 o
n
ly
 b
e
 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 

to
 u
s
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 

H
B
P
L
 i
f 
th
e
 u
s
e
 i
s
 s
ig
n
e
d
 o
ff
 b
y
 a
 

s
e
n
io
r 
e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
. 

If
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
it
h
 H
B
P
L
 d
o
 a
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
y
 

w
ill
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 a
t 
a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 s
ta
g
e
 t
o
 

m
in
im
is
e
 t
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
to
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
. 

T
re
a
t 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
 L
o
w
 

103



R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

R
is
k
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

P
o
o
r 
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 w
it
h
 H
B
P
L
 l
e
a
d
in
g
 t
o
 l
e
s
s
 o
r 
la
te
r 

in
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 b
e
in
g
 g
iv
e
n
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 w
ill
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r
is
k
 o
f 

le
g
a
l;
 e
x
p
o
s
u
re
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 

 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
 

 T
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
H
B
P
L
 w
ill
 b
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 o
n
 a
n
 o
n
-g
o
in
g
 b
a
s
is
 b
y
 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 t
h
e
 

g
a
te
k
e
e
p
e
rs
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 B
o
a
rd
. 

H
B
P
L
 t
ri
e
s
 t
o
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 t
o
o
 q
u
ic
k
ly
 o
r 

e
n
te
rs
 i
n
to
 u
n
s
u
it
a
b
le
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
 3
rd
 p
a
rt
ie
s
 

  C
a
u
s
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
e
ff
o
rt
 i
s
 c
h
a
n
n
e
lle
d
 i
n
to
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
n
g
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 

o
r 
d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
re
o
f 
ra
th
e
r 

th
a
n
 i
n
to
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
re
 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
/i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
. 
 

 
C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 

A
 d
ro
p
 i
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 f
ro
m
 H
B
P
L
 o
r 
le
s
s
 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 b
e
in
g
 

g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
. 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
 

L
o
w
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

T
h
e
 I
n
te
r 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

s
ta
te
s
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

to
 a
n
y
 t
h
ir
d
 p
a
rt
y
 b
y
 H
B
P
L
 m
u
s
t 
n
o
t 

b
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
e
tr
im
e
n
t 
o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t.
 I
n
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
 a
n
y
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 m
u
s
t 
b
e
 

ta
k
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

B
o
a
rd
 a
n
d
 i
f 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 

re
a
c
h
e
d
 t
h
e
re
 i
t 
is
 t
o
 b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 

th
e
 t
w
o
 c
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
. 

 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
to
 g
a
in
 a
n
 e
a
rl
y
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 

p
la
n
s
 o
f 
H
B
P
L
 a
n
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 e
tc
. 

  

T
re
a
t 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
 L
o
w
 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 H
B
P
L
 r
a
te
s
 a
re
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
 

th
e
 h
o
u
rs
 c
h
a
rg
e
d
 f
o
r 
tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re
 t
o
o
 g
re
a
t.
 

 C
a
u
s
e
 

E
it
h
e
r 
H
B
P
L
 i
s
 n
o
t 
e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
o
r 
th
e
 t
im
e
 k
e
e
p
in
g
 i
s
 n
o
t 
a
s
 

a
c
c
u
ra
te
 a
s
 i
t 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 (
i.
e
. 
h
o
u
rs
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 i
n
c
o
rr
e
c
tl
y
 

c
h
a
rg
e
d
 t
o
 f
ile
s
).
 

  

M
in
o
r 

2
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
 

L
o
w
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

T
h
e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
m
o
v
in
g
 t
o
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 h
o
u
rs
 f
o
r 
s
o
m
e
 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 

G
a
te
k
e
e
p
e
rs
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
rs
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

h
o
u
rs
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

  D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
 

B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
in
g
 t
o
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 

T
re
a
t 

M
in
o
r 

2
 

P
o
s
s
ib
le
 

3
 

M
e
d
 L
o
w
 

104



R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

R
is
k
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 

B
e
s
t 
v
a
lu
e
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 H
B
P
L
 b
e
c
o
m
e
 

e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
 e
v
e
n
 i
f 
th
e
 u
n
d
e
rl
y
in
g
 h
o
u
rl
y
 r
a
te
 l
o
o
k
s
 a
tt
ra
c
ti
v
e
. 

B
a
rn
e
t 
lo
s
e
 f
a
it
h
 i
n
 H
B
P
L
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re
fo
re
 u
s
e
 o
th
e
r 
le
g
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
r 
b
e
c
o
m
e
 r
e
lu
c
ta
n
t 
to
 o
b
ta
in
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 e
v
e
n
 

w
h
e
n
 n
e
e
d
e
d
. 

e
it
h
e
r 
th
ro
u
g
h
 C
ip
fa
 o
r 
o
th
e
r 
o
n
 a
 

p
e
ri
o
d
ic
 b
a
s
is
. 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 o
f 
H
B
P
L
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 
b
e
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 i
f 
th
e
 v
o
lu
m
e
 o
f 
le
g
a
l 

w
o
rk
 f
ro
m
 B
a
rn
e
t 
a
n
d
 H
a
rr
o
w
 d
ro
p
s
 

a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
o
u
ts
o
u
rc
in
g
 e
tc
. 

 C
a
u
s
e
 

D
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
H
B
P
L
's
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
e
c
re
a
s
e
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

b
e
in
g
 o
u
ts
o
u
rc
e
d
 b
y
 B
a
rn
e
t 
a
n
d
 o
r 
H
a
rr
o
w
. 

 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 

H
B
P
L
 c
a
n
n
o
t 
g
ro
w
 o
r 
re
d
u
c
e
s
 i
n
 s
iz
e
 a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 i
t 
is
 

le
s
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 a
tt
ra
c
t 
th
e
 r
ig
h
t 
c
a
lib
re
 o
f 
s
ta
ff
 a
n
d
 m
a
in
ta
in
 a
 

h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

T
h
is
 m
a
y 
th
e
n
 i
n
 t
u
rn
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
le
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

s
p
e
e
d
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 c
a
n
 b
e
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
. 

A
n
y
 s
ta
ff
 m
a
d
e
 r
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
t 
a
s
 a
 r
e
s
u
lt
 o
f 
a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 w
o
rk
 

fr
o
m
 B
a
rn
e
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 a
 c
o
s
t 
to
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
 

L
o
w
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

H
B
P
L
 a
re
 a
c
ti
v
e
ly
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 f
o
r 
o
th
e
r 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
fe
e
 p
a
y
in
g
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 

p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
n
e
w
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
. 

B
a
rn
e
t 
a
re
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
in
g
 C
a
p
it
a
 a
n
d
 

o
th
e
r 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 t
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

o
f 
H
B
P
L
. 

 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
to
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 

u
s
e
 o
f 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
. 

T
re
a
t 

M
in
o
r 

2
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
 L
o
w
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w
il
l 
n
o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a
n
d
 c
a
p
a
b
il
it
y
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 

th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
w
it
h
 H
B
P
L
 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
m
a
te
ri
a
li
s
e
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
y
 a
re
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
ly
 p
u
rs
u
e
d
/m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 

 C
a
u
s
e
 

F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 s
o
 a
s
 t
o
 

m
a
x
im
is
e
 t
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
t.
 

F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
to
 e
n
s
u
re
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 m
a
te
ri
a
lis
e
. 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
 

L
o
w
 

P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

A
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
r 
h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 

a
p
p
o
in
te
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 

fi
n
a
lis
e
d
 b
y
 3
1
/0
7
/1
3
 

 D
e
te
c
ti
v
e
 

M
o
n
it
o
r 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
b
ta
in
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 

th
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
 

T
re
a
t 

M
o
d
e
ra
te
 

3
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
 L
o
w
 

105



R
is
k
 

 
C
u
rr
e
n
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

R
is
k
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

Im
p
a
c
t 
P
ro
b
a
b
il
it
y
 R
a
ti
n
g
 

 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 

A
n
 e
ro
s
io
n
 o
f 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 l
e
g
a
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
o
 n
o
t 
re
a
c
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 

th
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
a
s
e
. 

T
h
a
t 
H
B
 P
u
b
li
c
 L
a
w
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 
g
iv
e
 t
h
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

te
a
m
/p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 C
a
u
s
e
 

C
a
p
it
a
 d
o
 n
o
t 
w
is
h
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 u
s
e
 H
B
P
L
. 

 C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 

W
h
ils
t 
b
y 
n
o
 m
e
a
n
s
 f
a
ta
l 
to
 H
B
P
L
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
v
o
lu
m
e
 t
h
a
t 

w
o
u
ld
 a
ri
s
e
 f
ro
m
 C
a
p
it
a
 c
e
a
s
in
g
 t
o
 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 o
f 
H
B
P
L
 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
e
tr
im
e
n
ta
l 
to
 i
ts
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 m
o
d
e
l.
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 

 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

U
n
lik
e
ly
 

2
 

M
e
d
 

H
ig
h
 
P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 

T
h
is
 r
is
k
 h
a
s
 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 w
it
h
 R
E
 

g
o
in
g
 l
iv
e
. 
C
a
p
it
a
 a
re
 n
o
t 
b
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 

u
s
e
 H
B
 P
u
b
lic
 L
a
w
 s
o
 t
h
e
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 i
s
 b
e
in
g
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 H
B
P
L
 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 p
ro
v
e
 

th
e
m
s
e
lv
e
s
. 

 

T
re
a
t 

M
a
jo
r 

4
 

R
a
re
 

1
 

M
e
d
 L
o
w
 

   

106



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Contract Monitoring Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 13 January 2013 

Subject External Contracts – Management 
resources – creation of a new 
Commercial & Customer Services 
Team 

Report of Commercial & Customer Services 
Director 

Summary of Report This report sets out the dedicated 

staffing structure being put in place to 
manage key external contracts 
currently; CSG, Re, HB Public law, 
Barnet Homes and Public Health 

 

 
Officer Contributors Claire Symonds, Commercial & Customer Services 

Director  

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected All 

Key Decision Not Applicable 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

Not Applicable 

Function of Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Enclosures Appendix A – Management Structure 
 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Claire Symonds, Commercial & Customer Services 
Director, Claire.symonds@barnet.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 8

107



 

 
1. RECOMMENDATION  
 
1.1 That the Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee consider 

the information in this report and make comments and recommendations 
as appropriate.  
 

2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Cabinet, 6 December 2012 (item 5) – approved the New Support & Customer 

Service Organisation: Recommendation for Preferred and Reserved Bidder 
and Full Business Case. 

 
2.2 Overview and Scrutiny, 18 June 2013, (item 2) – resolved that the quarterly 

performance report to the next meeting of the Committee provides details on 
the resources dedicated to managing each key contract (including finances, 
staffing and structure), this item was deferred at the October meeting to the 
January one.  

 
2.3 Cabinet, 24 June 2013, (item 5) – approved Development and Regulatory 

Services (DRS); Selection of the Preferred and reserved Bidder as the 
Council’s Strategic Partner to form a Joint Venture (called Re) to deliver the 
DRS Service 

 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The three priority outcomes set out in the 2013/16 Corporate Plan are: 

• Promote responsible growth, development and success across the 
borough 

• Support families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, 
learning and wellbeing 

• Improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London 
Borough of Barnet as a place to live, work and study 

 
3.2 All the commercial partnerships are intended to contribute to one or more of
 these priorities. 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 Risk monitoring is an essential component of robust contract management. 

Shared risk logs are reviewed routinely by the contract managers and reported 
to the respective partnership governance board. Risks with a rating above 12 
are reported to the Delivery Board, the Lead Commissioner, and the Strategic 
Commissioning Board and the lead Cabinet Member. They are also reported 
to this Committee. 

 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Each contract places obligations on our partners to support the Council in 

carrying out its public sector equalities duty. This means having due regard to 
the need to: 

  

  a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under the Act;  

108



 

  

 b) advance equality of opportunity between those with a protected 
characteristic and those without;  

  

 c) promote good relations between those with a protected characteristic and 
those without.  

  

 The ‘protected characteristics’ referred to are: age; disability; gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex and 
sexual orientation. With respect to a) the ‘protected characteristics’ also 
include marriage and civil partnership. 

 
5.2 Effective contract management is vital to ensuring that the Council’s duties 

under the Equality Act 2010 are supported by its partners. 
 
5.3 Equalities will be monitored by collecting data on service usage, customer 

feedback and specific performance indicators. Where service changes 
affecting residents or service users are proposed, equalities impact 
assessments will be undertaken, and where needed, these will include 
consultation with residents or service users. 

 
5.4 The Council has recently established a new equalities policy, containing 

equalities targets across all delivery units, and has a dedicated equalities 
advisor in the Commissioning Group to promote good practice and oversee 
compliance. 
 

6 USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 
Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 

 
6.1 All of the roles within the Commercial Team are currently being resourced on 

an interim basis, and are costing over and above the substantive salary levels. 
The recruitment process to fill these posts permanently was initiated at the 
end of November 2013 with the intention that the permanent structure would 
be in place for 1 April 2014. 
 

6.2 The new structure is shown Appendix A and is affordable within the 2014/15 
Commissioning Group budget.  
 

6.3 As a number of these posts are fairly unusual in their nature for local 
government, in that they require a degree of commercial acumen and 
experience of managing contracts, recruitment will be supported by an 
external organisation, at the time of writing, a brief for the procurement of such 
support has just been agreed and authorisation to procure has been taken 
under the delegated powers process. 
 

6.4 There are no other resource implications 
 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
 7.1 There are no additional legal comments to those contained in the body of the 

report. 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 

109



 

8.1 The roles and terms of reference of all scrutiny Committees are contained 
within Part 2, Article 6 of the Constitution; and in the Overview and Scrutiny 
Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution).  

 
8.2 The Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for 

scrutinising reports from the Commissioning Group, Delivery Units and Lead 
Commissioners detailing the performance against targets that are included 
within the Corporate Plan and otherwise relating to the services provided by 
the CSG, Re, The Barnet Group Ltd, HB Public Law and NSL and other major 
contracts, and to be able to challenge external providers. 

 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The Council’s new Commissioning Model went live on 1 April 2013, creating a 

distinction between officers who commission, review and contract manage 
services (the Commissioning Group), those who deliver services (Delivery 
Units and major commercial partnerships) and those that provide independent 
assurance to Members, the Chief Executive and Chief Officers that the 
organisation is operating properly and effectively (the Assurance Group). 
 

9.2 The diagram below shows these separate groups:- 
 

 
 
The core functions of the Council’s Commissioning Group are to: 

  

• Work with Delivery Units, Support Services and Customer 
Services to provide data and analysis that informs strategic 
decision making by the Strategic Commissioning Board and 
Members;  

• Translate outcomes and priorities set by Members and the 
Strategic Commissioning Board into commissioning strategies 
and delivery plans;  

• Identify innovative solutions that could be used in Barnet to 
deliver outcomes and suggest these to Members and Delivery 
Units;  

• Define evaluation criteria and performance measures for 
commissions;  

110



 

• Provide advice to the Strategic Commissioning Board and Lead 
Commissioners on how to approach technical elements of the 
commissioning process; and 

• Manage contractual relationships with major providers on behalf 
of the Strategic Commissioning Board. 

 
9.3 The Lead Commissioners for each contract are located within the 

Commissioning Group. Their role with respect to the contracts is to lead on 
strategies and annual business planning; review any performance issues and 
agree remedial actions or intervention. 
 

9.4 The lead Commissioning role for CSG is split between the Deputy Chief 
Operation Officer (DCOO) and the Commercial & Customer Services Director. 
The DCOO is effectively the lead commissioner for support services, 
supported by the DCOO team which has specialist expertise in finance (who 
will also oversee contractual payments), insurance, revenues and benefits, 
information management, complaints, and programme and project 
management. This team similarly leads on these issues across the rest of the 
contracts and delivery units. The Commercial & Customer Services Director is 
the Lead Commissioner for Customer Services. 
 

9.5 For Re, the Lead Commissioners are Enterprise & Regeneration Lead 
Commissioner, and the Housing & Environment Lead Commissioner. These 
officers will draw on additional expertise as required via third party experts. 

 
9.6 For Barnet Homes, the Lead Commissioner is the Housing & Environment 

Lead Commissioner. There are additional officers responsible for developing 
housing policy and strategy within Re, and these officers will continue to 
support the Lead Commissioner. 

 
9.7 Within this Commissioning Group, the Commercial & Customer Services 

Team has two major functions :- 
 

• the responsibility for overseeing performance, contract 
compliance and managing any contractual changes for each of 
the partnerships/contracts within its remit.  These currently are 
CSG, Re, HBLaw, Barnet Homes, and Public Health; and  
 

• to lead on the policy development for the Council’s customer 
strategies to ensure that service developments are delivered 
within the agreed framework maximising customer benefit.  

 
9.8 Attached as Appendix A is the proposed organisation chart for this structure. 

The costing of which is within the approved budget for 14/15.  The creation of 
this structure was undertaken through the Council’s delegated powers 
process.    The charts show three direct reports to the Commercial & 
Customer Services Director. Two in relation to contractual relationships and 
one responsible for the development of customer strategy. All roles shown are 
new. 

9.9 The role of Head of Customer Strategy & Programmes will be central in 
leading on developing the Council’s relationship with our residents and policy 
lead for the Council’s customer strategies to ensure that service developments 
are delivered and that they maximise the benefits to customers as well as 
ensuring the Council achieves effective outcomes for the residents of Barnet. 
 

111



 

9.10 This role is supported by a Customer Strategy & Insight Officer. 
 

9.11 The contract monitoring elements are divided into two teams, with the aim that 
they will collectively be responsible for monitoring a number of contracts each. 
The Support team will monitor; CSG, HBLaw, Public Health and it is expected 
Registrars.  The Growth & Regeneration team will look after Re, Barnet 
Homes and the expected Mortuary contract. Both teams have identical 
structures which include three main roles:- 
 
A  Partnership Relationship Manager 

• Who will be the lead for managing the relationship between the 
Council and a number of its partners such that the Council 
maximises the financial and non-financial benefits of these 
relationships. The aim is to achieve effective outcomes for 
customers and continuous innovation and improvement for the 
Council.  

• They will lead and develop effective relationships through the 
engagement and co-ordination of all relevant stakeholders to 
foster and promote a shared and understood vision in respect of 
the delivery of specific Council contracts. 

• They will intervene, analyse, manage and resolve business 
conflicts between the Council, the partner, and/or other Council 
partners/stakeholders promoting constructive dialogue.  They will 
be supported by:- 
 

Commercial Performance & Development Managers 

• Who will be responsible for undertaking day to day performance 
and development activities ensuring that benefit realisation, 
management of contract change, performance monitoring and 
reporting is undertaken effectively and efficient for the contracts 
within their remit. 

• They will initiate initial remedial / improvement activity, advising 
the Commercial & Customer Services Director, Lead 
Commissioner/s and Members on whether each partner is on 
track to deliver the commissioned outcomes and engage in day-
to-day contractual monitoring and engagement, setting up and 
managing appropriate communication and decision-making 
forums and problem-resolution mechanisms to ensure effective 
performance monitoring. Alongside these will be a: 
 

Performance Monitoring Manager 

• Who will be responsible for the corporate monitoring of and 
challenge to performance data, including the all Super KPIs, KPi 
and PIs as well as supporting the co-production and monitoring of 
improvement plans. 

 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1  None 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) TH 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) LC 

 
 

112



 

APPENDIX A  

 

 
 

 

113



 

 
 

114



 

 
 
 
 
 
   

 

 

Officer Contributors Ash Tadjrishi, Overview & Scrutiny Officer 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Key Decision  

Enclosures 

No 

Appendix A – Advanced Notice of Executive Decisions 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in  

N/A 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Ash Tadjrishi, Overview & Scrutiny Officer 

020 8359 2368, ash.tadjrishi@barnet.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Meeting Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date 13 January 2014 

Subject Advanced Notification of Executive Decisions 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary This report gives details of proposed decisions due to be taken 
under Executive functions, together with information as to whether 
any proposed decisions are subject to an exempt report, 
consideration of which will not be in public session. The report also 
indicates any of the decisions which at this stage are intended to 
be classified as ‘key’. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

115



 

 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Committee comment on and consider the Advanced Notification of 

Executive Decisions when identifying areas of future scrutiny work. 
 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 None. 
 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is 

reflective of the Council’s priorities. 
 

3.2  The three priority outcomes set out in the 2013 – 2016 Corporate Plan are; 
 

• Promote responsible growth, development and success across the borough; 

• Support families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, learning and 
well-being; and 

• Improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London Borough of 
Barnet as a place to live, work and study. 

 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010, the Council has a legislative duty to have ‘due regard’ 

 to eliminating unlawful discrimination, advancing equality and fostering good relations in 
 the contexts of age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy, and maternity, religion 
 or belief and sexual orientation. 

 
5.2 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as relating to 

matters within its remit, the role of the Committee is to perform the Overview and 
Scrutiny role in relation to: 

• The Council’s leadership role in relation to diversity and inclusiveness; and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment and retention, 
personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff development, equalities and health 
and safety 

 
 
 
 
 

116



 

6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance & 
Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 

 
6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 

(England) Regulations 2012 removes the requirement for local authorities to publish a 
Forward Plan of Key Decisions.  This has been replaced with a requirement to publish an 
Advance Notification of Executive decisions which the Council has been compliant with 
since the regulations came into force on 10 September 2012. 

 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS 
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, Article 6 

of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Scrutiny Committees are included in the Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution). 
 
 
9.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 Under the current overview and scrutiny arrangements, the Contract Monitoring 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee will ensure that the work of scrutiny is reflective of 
Council priorities, as evidenced by the Corporate Plan and the programme being 
followed by the Executive.  

 
9.2  The Advanced Notification of Executive Decisions will be included on the agenda at each 

meeting of the Contract Monitoring Overview Scrutiny Committee as a standing item.  
 
9.3 The Committee is encouraged to comment on the Notification.  
 
9.4 The Committee is asked to consider items contained within the Advanced Notification of 

Executive Decisions to assist in identifying areas of future scrutiny work, particularly 
focussing on areas where scrutiny can add value in the decision making process (pre-
decision scrutiny).   

 
9.5 When identifying items for pre-decision scrutiny, the Committee are requested to provide 

specific information on the rationale behind the pre-decision scrutiny request and the 
expected outcome to enable Cabinet Members and officers to prepare appropriately. 

 
9.6 Any further Advanced Notices which become available will be tabled at the meeting.   
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None 

. 

117



118

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

London Borough of Barnet Decisions Taken Under Executive Functions – Advance 
Notice of Proposed Items for Decision and Parts of Meetings which will not be held in 
public session (‘subject to exempt report’). 

 
This notice gives details of proposed decisions due to be taken under Executive functions, 
together with information as to whether any proposed decisions are subject to an exempt 
report, consideration of which will not be in public session. The document below is also 
indicative of the decisions which at this stage are intended to be classified as ‘key’. For the 
purposes of complying with the The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 however, all prospective decisions listed 
below are to be regarded as potentially key or potentially subject to a separate exempt report 
(not held in public session). 
 
Please note: this plan lists prospective decisions. The final agenda for each meeting, which 
may not include all prospective decisions listed for that meeting on this document, will be 
published five clear working days prior to the meeting on the authority’s website: 
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk 
 

Title Description of proposed decision Cabinet Member 
Key 
Decision 

(Y/N). 

Subject 
to 
Exempt 
Report 

(Y/N). 

CABINET RESOURCES COMMITTEE, 16 JANUARY 2014 
Hendon Town Hall, The Burroughs, NW4 4BG 

 
Brent Cross/ 
Cricklewood 
Regeneration 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This report will seek to approve 

1) the changes to the terms and 
conditions of the Brent Cross PDA and 
the terms and conditions of the CRL 
Co-operation Agreement; and 
authorise the Chief Executive  in 
consultation with the Leader of the 
Council to approve the Brent Cross 
PDA and CRL Co-operation 
Agreements. 

2) approve procurement strategy to 
enable the Council to deliver the 
regeneration of the southern parts of 
Brent Cross Cricklewood Regeneration 
Area 

3) approve that the Council enter into 
negotiations with landowners to 
acquire land required in advance of 
any CPO.    

4) approve that the Council progress and 
fund the design and development work 
required to develop the business case 
and funding strategy for the 
Thameslink Station. 
 

 
Leader of the 
Council 

 

      Y Y 

 
Notice published: 19 December 2014 
 

119



This page is intentionally left blank

120



 

 
 
 
 
 
   

 

 

Officer Contributors Ash Tadjrishi, Overview & Scrutiny Officer 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Key Decision  

Enclosures 

No 

Appendix A – Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work Programme 2013/14 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in  

N/A 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Ash Tadjrishi, Overview & Scrutiny Officer 

020 8359 2368, ash.tadjrishi@barnet.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date 13 January 2014 

Subject Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Forward Work Programme 2013/14 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary This report outlines the Committee’s work programme for 2013/14 

AGENDA ITEM 10

121



 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Committee consider and comment on the items included in the 2013/14 

work programme of the Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(Appendix A). 

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 None. 
 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1. The Overview and Scrutiny Committees must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is 

reflective of the council’s priorities. 
 
3.2. The three priority outcomes set out in the 2013 – 2016 Corporate Plan are; 
 

• Promote responsible growth, development and success across the borough; 

• Support families and individuals that need it – promoting independence, learning and 
well-being; and 

• Improve the satisfaction of residents and businesses with the London Borough of 
Barnet as a place to live, work and study. 

 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None. 
 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as relating to 

matters within its remit, the role of the Committee is to perform the Overview and 
Scrutiny role in relation to: 

 

• The Council’s leadership role in relation to diversity and inclusiveness; and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment and 
retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff development, equalities 
and health and safety. 

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance & 

Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 None in the context of this report. 

122



 

 
8 CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS 
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, Article 6 

of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Scrutiny Committees are included in the Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution). 
 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Work Programme 2013/14 

indicates items of business previously considered by the Committee and forthcoming 
items. 
 

9.2 The work programme of this Committee is intended to be a responsive tool, which will 
be updated on a rolling basis following each meeting, for the inclusion of areas which 
may arise through the course of the year.  

 
9.3 The Committee is empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own schedule of 

work within the programme.  
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 

123



124

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
   

 
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 o
f 
B
a
rn
e
t 

 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 

a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
  

W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 –
 M
a
y
 2
0
1
4
 

 

 

  
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t:
 A
s
h
 T
a
d
jr
is
h
i 
0
2
0
 8
3
5
9
 2
3
6
8
 a
s
h
.t
a
d
jr
is
h
i@

b
a
rn
e
t.
g
o
v
.u
k
  

 125



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
A

u
th

o
r 

1
8
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 –
 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
  

 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 d
e
ta
ili
n
g
: 

th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
; 
a
n
d
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
; 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 i
n
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 

o
v
e
ra
ll 
v
is
io
n
. 
 

 

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 /
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

  

T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 E
n
d
 o
f 
Y
e
a
r 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
. 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 f
o
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

a
n
d
 A
d
u
lt
s
 

 

T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
  

P
a
rk
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 U
n
it
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 P
a
rk
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
e
e
t 
S
c
e
n
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 
/ 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

9
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
 2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
r:
 

a
) 
N
S
C
S
O
 a
n
d
 D
R
S
 –
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o
f 
in
-

h
o
u
s
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 u
n
it
s
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 t
ra
n
s
fe
r 
to
 

e
x
te
rn
a
l 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
; 
a
n
d
, 

b
) 
H
B
 P
u
b
lic
 L
a
w
 a
n
d
 T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 L
td
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
r 

C
h
o
ic
e
 B
a
rn
e
t)
. 

N
/A
 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 /
 

L
e
a
d
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 /
 

A
d
u
lt
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 

126



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
  

S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
 

A
u

th
o

r 

N
e
w
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
 

(N
S
C
S
O
) 
a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
D
R
S
) 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 

C
a
p
it
a
 a
n
d
 C
a
p
it
a
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 a
n
d
 

In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
ro
a
d
 m
a
p
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 N
S
C
S
O
 

a
n
d
 D
R
S
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
/ 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

K
ie
r 
(P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
P
a
rt
n
e
r)
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

–
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

  

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
in
g
 

th
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 K
P
Is
) 
o
f 
th
is
 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

C
h
ild
re
n
 /
 

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

N
S
C
S
O
 /
 F
a
m
ily
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

1
3
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
4
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
2
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

(E
x
te
rn
a
l 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
) 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

K
P
Is
) 
o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
’s
 

te
rm

s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
. 

  

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 /
 

L
e
a
d
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 

 

L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 S
h
a
re
d
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 U
p
d
a
te
 

T
h
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 f
u
ll 
y
e
a
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 L
B
 B
a
rn
e
t 
/ 
L
B
 H
a
rr
o
w
 l
e
g
a
l 

s
h
a
re
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 (
H
B
 P
u
b
lic
 L
a
w
).
 

 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 /
 

A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 –
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 d
e
ta
ili
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
ta
ff
in
g
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 t
o
 m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 k
e
y
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 (
N
S
C
S
O
, 
D
R
S
, 
H
B
 P
u
b
lic
 L
a
w
, 

T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
).
 

 

N
/A
 

C
h
ie
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
/ 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

127



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
  

S
u

b
je

c
t 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s

te
d

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
M

e
m

b
e

r 
 

A
u

th
o

r 

1
7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
4
 

 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

(E
x
te
rn
a
l 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
) 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

K
P
Is
) 
o
f 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
’s
 

te
rm

s
 o
f 
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 

   

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 /
 

L
e
a
d
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 

 

C
lo
s
e
d
o
w
n
 R
e
p
o
rt
s
 -
 C
S
G
 a
n
d
 

R
e
 L
td
. 
 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 k
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 o
f 
a
n
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 

e
n
d
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
 

   

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

C
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 /
 

L
e
a
d
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
rs
 

 

T
B
C
 –
 L
o
n
g
 L
is
t 

 

S
tr
e
e
t 
L
ig
h
ti
n
g
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
–
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 s
u
m
m
a
ri
s
in
g
 

th
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 K
P
Is
) 
o
f 
th
is
 

P
F
I 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

  

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 

128


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Update on matters from October meeting

	6 Quarter Two Performance 2013/14
	Quarter 2 Commercial Partnerships Performance - Appendix 1
	Quarter 2 Commercial Partnerships Performance - Appendix 2
	Quarter 2 Commercial Partnerships Performance - Appendix 3
	Quarter 2 Commercial Partnerships Performance - Appendix 4
	Quarter 2 Commercial Partnerships Performance - Appendix 5
	Quarter 2 Commercial Partnerships Performance - Appendix 6

	7 HB Public Law - Full Year Performance Report
	HB Public Law Full Year Performance - Appendix 1
	HB Public Law Full Year Performance - Appendix 2
	HB Public Law Full Year Performance - Appendix 3

	8 External Contracts - Management Resources
	External Contracts: Management resources - Appendix A

	9 Advance Notice of Executive Decisions
	Advance Notice of Executive Decisions - Appendix A

	10 Contract Monitoring Overview and Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme
	Forward Work Programme 2013-14 - Appendix A


